LONDON

Hillingdon
Planning
Committee

Date: THURSDAY 11 APRIL 2024

Time: 7.00 PM

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOM 5 -
CIVIC CENTRE

Meeting Members of the Public and

Details: Media are welcome to attend.

This meeting may also be
broadcast live.

This Agenda is available online at:
www.hillingdon.gov.uk or use a smart phone
camera and scan the code below:

Lloyd White
Head of Democratic Services
London Borough of Hillingdon,

Phase Il, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW

Public Document Pack

To Councillors on the Committee

Councillor Henry Higgins (Chair)
Councillor Adam Bennett (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Roy Chamdal

Councillor Darran Davies

Councillor Elizabeth Garelick
Councillor Gursharan Mand
Councillor Jagjit Singh

Published: Wednesday 3 April 2024

Contact: Anisha Teji
Tel: 01895 277655
Email: ateji@hillingdon.gov.uk

Putting our residents first


http://www.hillingdon.gov.uk/
mailto:ateji@hillingdon.gov.uk

Visiting the Civic Centre in Uxbridge for the meeting

Travel and parking

Meetings are held at the Civic Centre in
Uxbridge. Bus routes 427, U1, U3, U4 and U7 o o
all stop at the Civic Centre. Uxbridge \2

underground station, with the Piccadilly and /
«.c“
°.L
Chimes
Shopping

Metropolitan lines, is a short walk away. o4

Limited parking is available at the Civic \//>
Centre. For details on availability and how to
book a parking space, please contact Pavilions

Democratic Services at S*&oppmz
. - entre
democratic@hillingdon.gov.uk

Please enter via the main reception (on the \/‘
forecourt outside) and visit the security deskto “
sign-in and collect a visitors pass. You will el N
then be directed to the relevant Committee
Room.

Accessibility

For accessibility options regarding this agenda
please contact Democratic Services. For those
hard of hearing an Induction Loop System is
available for use.

Emergency procedures

If there is a FIRE, you will hear a continuous alarm. Please follow the signs to the nearest
FIRE EXIT and assemble on the Civic Centre forecourt. Lifts must not be used unless
instructed by a Fire Marshal or Security Officer. In the event of a SECURITY INCIDENT,
follow instructions issued via the tannoy, a Fire Marshal or a Security Officer. Those unable to
evacuate using the stairs, should make their way to the signed refuge locations.

Watching & recording this meeting
You may be attending this meeting to speak and you will be called on when it is your time to

do so. Anyone is also welcome to just attend to observe proceedings, subject to room
capacity. Additionally, you can watch the meeting on the Council's YouTube channel.

Anyone may report on the public part of the meeting, record or film proceedings as long as it
does not disrupt proceedings. It is recommended to give advance notice of filming to ensure
any particular requirements can be met. The officer shown on the front of this agenda
should be contacted for further information and will be available to assist. When present in
the room, silent mode should be enabled for all mobile devices.


mailto:democratic@hillingdon.gov.uk
https://www.youtube.com/@HillingdonLondon

A brief guide to the Planning Committee meeting

About the Committee

Councillors on

the Committee '

and Council ‘
Officers Speakers -
petitioners,
applicants, ward

councillors

Committee Members and Officers — The Planning Committee is made up of
experienced Councillors who meet in public every month to make decisions on key
planning applications. Advising them are Council Officers, primarily from the Planning
Department, Democratic Services and Legal Services.

Other speakers — If a valid petition is received which refers the planning application to
the Committee, the lead petitioner will be invited to attend and speak for up to 5 minutes.
If the petition opposes the application, the applicant/agent may also address the meeting
for up to 5 minutes also. This ensures both sides have their say. The Chairman may vary
speaking times if there are multiple petitions on the same matter. Local Ward Councillors
for the area where the application is may also speak for up to 3 minutes.

Broadcasting — the Planning Committee meetings are broadcast live on the Council’s
YouTube channel: Hillingdon London. This means anyone speaking at the meeting will be
filmed and have their statements made public and recorded.

How the meeting works - an agenda, like this one, is prepared for each meeting, which
comprises the officer reports on each application with a recommendation, e.g. approval /
refusal. The agenda is published on the Council’s website a week before the meeting.
Matters with valid petitions will normally be taken at the beginning of the meeting. The
procedure will be as follows:-


https://www.youtube.com/@HillingdonLondon

1. The Chairman will introduce the Committee and deal with administrative business
at the start of the meeting.

2. The Chairman will then announce the reports on the planning application, usually in
the order they are listed on this agenda.

3. The Planning Officer will introduce each report; with a presentation of plans and
photographs on the large LED TV screens.

4. If there is a petition(s),the lead petitioner will speak, followed by the agent/applicant
followed by any Ward Councillors;

5. The Committee may ask questions of the petition organiser or of the
agent/applicant and Ward Councillor;

6. The Committee then discuss the application and may seek clarification from
officers;

7. After considering all the information and representations received, the Committee
will vote on the recommendation in the report, or on an alternative recommendation
put forward by a Member of the Committee, which has been seconded.

How the Committee makes decisions

1. The Committee must make its decisions by having regard to legislation, policies laid
down by National Government, by the Greater London Authority — under ‘The
London Plan’ and Hillingdon’s own planning policies. The Committee must also
make its decision based on material planning considerations and case law and
material presented to it at the meeting in the officer's report and any
representations received.

2. Guidance on how Members of the Committee must conduct themselves when
dealing with planning matters and when making their decisions is contained in the
‘Planning Code of Conduct’, which is part of the Council’s Constitution.

3. When making their decision, the Committee cannot take into account issues which
are not planning considerations such as the effect of a development upon the value
of surrounding properties, nor the loss of a view (which in itself is not sufficient
ground for refusal of permission), nor a subjective opinion relating to the design of
the property. When making a decision to refuse an application, the Committee will
be asked to provide detailed reasons for refusal based on material planning
considerations.

4. If a decision is made to refuse an application, the applicant has the right of appeal
against the decision. A Planning Inspector appointed by the Government will then
consider the appeal. There is no third party right of appeal, although a third party
can apply to the High Court for Judicial Review, which must be done within 3
months of the date of the decision.



Agenda

Chairman's Announcements
1  Apologies for absence

Declarations of Interest in matters coming before this meeting
To receive the minutes of the previous meeting 1-12

Matters that have been notified in advance or urgent

o b~ W DN

To confirm that the items of business marked Part | will be considered in
Public and the items marked Part Il will be considered in Private

Applications with a Petition

6 | Willowtree Marina Yeading Conversion of the first floor and 13 -46
loft space to create 3 x 2-bed and
46463/APP/2023/2279 1 x 1- bed flats with ground floor 168- 177
extension for relocation of existing
Chandlery

Recommendations: Approval

7 | 34, 36, 38 Green Lane | Northwood | Partial demolition of ground floor 47 — 68
space to the rear of number 38,
77897/APP/2023/2663 and amalgamation of number 178 — 199

36/38 to form a larger and more
coherent retail unit on the ground
floor. Partial demolition of ground
floor space to the rear of number
34 to facilitate the erection of a
single storey E-Use workshop
building. New external staircase to
retained upper floor residential
units. Shop front to retail to remain
as existing.

Recommendations: Approval

8 | 90 Long Lane Ickenham | Demolition of the existing 69 — 102
& South detached, single dwelling and the
8905/APP/2023/2419 | Harefield erection of a building consisting of | 200 — 211
9 no. two-bedroom flats, with

associated parking and amenities.

Recommendations: Refusal




Applications without a Petition

9 | Meadow High School | Yiewsley Temporary redevelopment of the 103 - 130
site to provide a single storey
3348/APP/2024/74 temporary modular classroom 212 - 221
(Use Class F1)

Recommendations: Approval

10| Former Garages Site | Harefield Variation of Condition 2 (Approved | 131 — 160

Rear of Sullivan Village Plans) of planning permission ref.

Crescent 60653/APP/2022/531, dated 10- 222 — 227
03-23 (Erection of no. 4 x two

60653/APP/2024/295 storey terraced houses and no.2 x

two storey semi-detached houses,
with associated car parking and
landscaping works) to alter
footprint and design of Plot 5 to
accommodate fully accessible
dwelling to meet M4(3) technical
specification.

Recommendations: Approval

Plans for the Hillingdon Planning Committee 167 — 228




Minutes

HILLINGDON PLANNING COMMITTEE

Agenda Iltem 3

«
TR ORALS .

14 March 2024 HILINGDON

LONDON

Meeting held at Committee Room 5 - Civic Centre

Committee Members Present:
Councillors:

Farhad Choubedar

Darran Davies

Elizabeth Garelick

Henry Higgins (Chair)
Gursharan Mand

Jagjit Singh

LBH Officers Present:

Eoin Concannon, Area Team Leader

Katie Crosbie, Planning Team Leader

Ed Laughton, Principal Planning Officer

Liz Penny, Democratic Services Officer

Haydon Richardson, Principal Planning Officer

Dr Alan Tilly, Transport Planning and Development Manager
James Walsh, Legal Advisor

58.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Agenda Item 1)

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Roy Chamdal with Councillor
Farhad Choubedar substituting.

59.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST IN MATTERS COMING BEFORE THIS MEETING
(Agenda Item 2)

Councillor Adam Bennett declared a non-pecuniary interest in item 9 (Dyson Drive) as
he lived in an adjacent road. He confirmed that he would leave the room while this item
was being considered and would not vote on the item.

60.

TO RECEIVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (Agenda Item 3)

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting dated 14 February 2024 be agreed
as an accurate record.

61.

MATTERS THAT HAVE BEEN NOTIFIED IN ADVANCE OR URGENT (Agenda Item
4)

None.

62.

TO CONFIRM THAT THE ITEMS OF BUSINESS MARKED PART | WILL BE
CONSIDERED IN PUBLIC AND THE ITEMS MARKED PART Il WILL BE
CONSIDERED IN PRIVATE (Agenda Item 5)

Page 1




It was confirmed that all items were in Part | and would be considered in public.

63.

32 NORWICH ROAD, NORTHWOOD - 35516/APP/2022/3676 (Agenda Item 6)

Demolition of the existing dwelling, and construction of a two and half storey
building comprising 3 no. flats with associated car parking, amenity space, and
bin and cycle storage.

Officers introduced the application noting that the proposed layout was similar to the
existing. This was a re-submission following a previously refused application. The new
proposal had made substantial amendments to the previously refused application; the
number of flats now proposed had reduced from eight to three. The original eight
reasons for refusal, which mainly related to overdevelopment of the site, had been
addressed in the latest application hence it was recommended for approval.

The agent for the application, Mr Joseph Kent, was in attendance and addressed the
Committee. Mr Kent noted that he had engaged extensively with the Council to address
the concerns previously raised. He was happy with the content of the officer’s report
and the proposed conditions therein.

In response to representations received objecting to the proposal, Mr Kent informed the
Committee Members that the proposal complied with parking standards and included
provision for cycle parking. There was ample on-street parking in the surrounding area.
The proposed development met all planning and building control requirements and
would not set a precedent as planning policies restricted the number of properties in an
area which could be converted to flats.

In response to questions from the Committee, it was confirmed that it was difficult to
quantify the amount of parking available in the vicinity of the application site. However,
it was noted that there were no parking restrictions in the area and no Parking
Management Schemes had been requested which was a good indicator of the absence
of parking stress.

Members welcomed the progress that had been made with the application and raised
no concerns.

The officer's recommendation was moved, seconded and, when put to a vote,
unanimously agreed subject to the conditions set out in the officer’s report.

RESOLVED: That the application be approved subject to the conditions set out in
the officer’s report.

64.

12 MORELLO AVENUE, HILLINGDON - 77998/APP/2023/2616 (Agenda Item 7)

Change of use of a Class C3 dwellinghouse to a Class C4 Small Scale HMO with
associated refuse and bike storage.

Officers introduced the application which included associated parking and cycle
storage. No external changes to the building were proposed. The application was
recommended for refusal for four reasons — the proposed layout and size of the
bedrooms were more akin to a large HMO which could accommodate up to ten
occupants; the proposal would give rise to undue noise and disturbance to
neighbouring residents; the proposed development would fail to provide adequate

Page 2




parking; and the dwelling offered inadequate internal communal space and kitchen
area for occupants.

A petition had been received in objection to the application. The lead petitioner was in
attendance and addressed the Committee. Concerns highlighted included:

e Morello Avenue was a quiet residential area not suited to an HMO;

e Atree in the lead petitioner's garden had been felled by the applicant against his
wishes — this did not bode well in terms of how the HMO would be run; and

e Due to the size of the bedrooms, the proposed HMO had the potential to house
considerably more than five people.

With regard to the felling of the tree, it was agreed that officers would be requested to
explore this matter further outside of the Committee.

The agent for the application had submitted a written representation which was read
out to the Committee Members. Key points highlighted included:

e Planning officers were thanked for their help and support to date;

e Parking provision had been raised as a concern although officers had advised
the agent to amend the plans to include 2 rather than 3 spaces;

e Being akin to a large HMO was purely an assumption — there was no evidence
to support this;

e The applicant and agent were willing to be flexible with the design and would be
happy to amend the plans to incorporate only living space downstairs and
bedrooms upstairs;

e The only reason planning permission had been sought was due to Hillingdon’s
Article 4 Direction which did not prevent the development but required planning
permission to be obtained first from the Council;

e Article 4 was to remove permitted development rights relating to the change of
use of a dwelling house into an HMO. The application did not meet any of the
criteria for refusal of an HMO — the overcrowding of HMOs did not apply as there
were none on Morello Avenue;

e Objections were based on the assumption that 6 or more people would live in
the HMO although the application was for a 5 person HMO only;

e Stated refusal reasons were based on taking away the rights of people with
lower socioeconomic standing — the application sought to offer more than the
minimum space standards required at an affordable price;

e The agent was happy to accept a condition limiting the HMO to 5 people only;

¢ |If the application were to be refused, the applicant and agent would appeal the
decision and consider legal action.

Ward Councillor Gohil was in attendance and addressed the Committee in support of
the petitioners. Councillor Gohil noted that 12 Morello Avenue was a lovely house in a
lovely road with lovely families living there. An HMO which could potentially house up
to 10 people was an awful idea. Councillor Gohil noted that the Council’s ambition was
to build nice family homes and an HMO did not fit into that category. The neighbours
had been going through hell with work being carried out at all hours at no.12 and with
the uncertainty of what would happen in relation to the application. An additional
reason for refusal or strengthening of reason for refusal number 2 was proposed in
relation to planning policy which stated that developments should create spaces that
were ‘safe, inclusive and accessible which promote health and wellbeing.” It was
agreed that officers would refer to this policy so it appeared in the report.

Page 3




In response to questions from Members, it was confirmed that there were currently no
HMOs in the area. Policy allowed for up to 20% of properties to be HMOs but they had
to comply with all planning standards.

Members sought clarification as to the feasibility of controlling the number of future
occupants by way of conditions. It was confirmed that it would not be possible for the
local authority to police this going forward. Officers would be obliged to confirm it in
writing prior to any inspection of the premises.

In response to further questions from the Committee, Members heard that the London
Ambulance Service had not been consulted on the application. They were informed
that the proposed bedrooms were bigger than a standard double room and could
therefore accommodate more than one person.

No further concerns were raised. The officer's recommendation was moved, seconded
and, when put to a vote, unanimously agreed.

RESOLVED: That the application be refused.

65.

39 PARKFIELD ROAD, ICKENHAM - 24825/APP/2023/81 (Agenda Item 8)
Erection of a replacement dwelling.

Officers presented the application and highlighted the additional information in the
addendum. It was noted that some additional objections had been received in respect
of the application, but no new concerns had been raised.

Members heard that the large oak tree to the rear of the site was protected by a TPO.
There was a mix of housing along Parkfield Road and quite a few replacement
buildings including numbers 29, 54 and 55; the principle of replacement dwellings was
therefore acceptable. The height and scale of the proposed development was similar to
that at number 29. On balance, it was considered that the proposed design of the
development would not cause harm to the overall character of the area or to the
amenity of the neighbours. The application was recommended for approval.

Two petitions had been submitted in objection to the application. The Chair noted that,
on this occasion, both petitioners would be permitted to speak for up to 5 minutes each
due to some late notification to one of the petitioners regarding the meeting. However,
the Chair usually exercised his discretion where there were multiple petitions on the
same application and reserved his right to reduce the speaking times.

The lead petitioner for the first petition was in attendance and addressed the
Committee on behalf of the petitioners. Key points highlighted included:

e The new owners had purchased no. 39 Parkfield Road a year previously but had
never actually lived at the property. Strangers used the property and came and
went at random — it was essentially already an HMO;

e |t appeared that the property had been purchased as a commercial investment
only rather than to be used as a family home;

e No. 39 was located between four bungalows with five bungalows opposite and
the proposal was not in keeping with the street scene;

e The documents and plans submitted by the applicant were inaccurate;

Page 4




Proposed off-street parking provision would be inadequate;

Planning officers had stated that the proposal complied with BRE guidelines.
The consultant had chosen sections which benefited the applicant but the BRE
should be considered in its entirety;

The findings of the daylight / sunlight report were disputed as they vastly
underestimated the impact of the construction and the light remaining thereafter.
The application site was surrounded by elderly neighbours who needed more
light. All windows at no. 41 should be included in the calculations;

The drawings were inaccurate. The Council should at least independently verify
the calculations taking into account all loss of light to all windows and rooms;

It would not be possible to construct the building as planned — the roof ridge
would need to be extended or the velux windows lowered;

Hidden heights had not been allowed for and would increase the height
indicated in the diagrams. The diagrams had been prepared with a lack of care
and attention and included inaccuracies e.g. no. 43 had not been drawn to
scale;

Petitioners requested refusal of the application or deferral for a site visit.

Members enquired whether the lead petitioner had been able to have any open
dialogue with the owners. It was confirmed that this had not been possible as the
owners did not live at the property, and he had only met them twice.

The second petitioner had submitted a written representation which was read out to the
Committee. Key points highlighted included:

Number 39’s design had been modelled on number 29’s;

Small sympathetic developments in Parkfield Road had led an erosion of the
street scene. Recent developments had ignored agreed conditions and plans
and future developers built even more dominant houses;

The ‘emerging street scene’ was wholly unwelcome;

Parkfield was a majority bungalow street with the four original 2-storey buildings
being set in large plots so neighbours could enjoy natural sunlight. Residents
had paid a premium for their houses as the bungalows were private, light and
sunny at all times;

The first developments to disrupt the street scene had been 31la and 31b — a
visiting Councillor had remarked that the developments should not have been
approved;

Number 43 was then extended with changes to roof pitch, height and inclusion
of rear dormer windows which had not been approved. It now cast shadow and
overlooked neighbours and was due for planning enforcement investigation;
Number 29 had been passed on appeal. However, the plans submitted to the
planning inspector had been confusing — particularly that showing the street
scene which suggested no.29 was the same height as 31a;

The planning inspector had stated that the roof space at no.29 was not to be
habitable and no windows were to be installed. This had been ignored and the
roof space housed another bedroom with many windows. The bays at the front
had been widened, roof height raised, and the front bay’s hipped roof
exchanged for gable ends. The result was a large, intimidating building which
overlooked neighbours;

No. 39 had been modelled on this illegal building which was due to be
investigated by the Planning Enforcement team;

Planning permission for no. 39 should be refused or at least delayed pending

Page 5




enforcement investigation at no.29.

Ward Councillor Martin Goddard was in attendance and addressed the Committee
Members. Councillor Goddard stated that, given that there appeared to be material
doubts about the application, it would not be appropriate to approve it. The doubts
related to 1) the accuracy and reliability of the plans, 2) the reliability of the daylight /
sunlight assessment and 3) the question as to whether or not the agreed plans for
number 29 had been adhered to — this needed to be investigated further. Councillor
Goddard was of the opinion that, if the application were not to be refused, the matter
should at least be adjourned for a site visit. If the application were to be approved, the
addition of further conditions were recommended to ensure the premises could not be
used as an HMO, hostel or Airbnb in the future, to restrict further permitted
development rights and to ensure set construction hours were adhered to.

In response to questions from the Committee, it was confirmed that officers were happy
with the daylight / sunlight report. A professional report funded by the applicant could
be arranged if needed. Members were informed that daylight / sunlight reports were
carried out by professional experts and were not routinely verified by officers. Officers
conducted a site inspection to see the layout of existing buildings and, if any
discrepancies were identified, these would be raised with the applicant.

The Committee requested further clarification in relation to the concerns regarding
dimensions raised by petitioners. It was confirmed that officers had reviewed all these
comments. With regard to the proposed rooflights, it was confirmed that further details
would be sought by condition to ensure the siting of the rooflights on the side
elevations was consistent across all the drawings. Members were informed that, on
average, the proposed doors were approximately 2m in height. Should the overall
height of the dwelling be changed, this would require further planning permission. No
new dwelling in the roof was proposed so there was no requirement for 2.5m floor to
ceiling space - this could be slightly smaller to fit with the depicted height on the plan. It
was confirmed that, should the finished development be significantly larger than every
other dwelling in the street, this would not be consistent with the plans.

Members raised concerns regarding the potential use as an HMO. Officers advised that
this matter had not been addressed in the report as it was considered that the impact
would be largely the same whether the development were used as an HMO or a
occupied by a larger family.

In reply to further questions from the Committee, Members heard that a planning
enforcement investigation had been conducted at number 29 which had revealed that
the development had been built in accordance with the agreed plans; no further action
had been taken. It was confirmed that the proposed garage was deemed to be large
enough to accommodate a car.

Given the speculation regarding the dimensions, the proximity to other properties and
concerns regarding the sunlight / daylight report, Members proposed a deferment for a
site visit and requested a further daylight / sunlight report approved by a third party.

A deferment for a site visit and a further daylight / sunlight report approved by a third
party was moved, seconded and, when put to a vote, agreed with 6 Members voting in
favour and one abstention.

RESOLVED: That a decision on the application be deferred to allow Members to

Page 6




conduct a site visit and to request a further daylight / sunlight review.

66.

DYSON DRIVE, UXBRIDGE - 78464/APP/2023/3668 (Agenda Item 9)
Alteration to car parking layout.

Councillor Adam Bennett had declared a non-pecuniary interest in this item as he lived
in an adjacent road. He left the meeting and did not participate in the deliberations and
did not vote on this item.

Officers presented the report. It was confirmed that the proposal was to formalise the
parking arrangements in a private road and provide 8 additional car parking spaces.
The additional spaces, in combination with the existing spaces, would exceed the
London Plan (2021) maximum car parking standards which sought to reduce vehicle
trips and promote sustainable travel modes. Moreover, the design of the proposed new
spaces would result in residents existing their vehicles directly onto the shared surface,
not a pedestrian footpath, which raised highway safety concerns. The application was
recommended for refusal.

In terms of liability, it was confirmed that the Council would not be liable in any way as
this was a private road.

A petition in support of the application had been received. The agent for the application
and a petitioner were in attendance and addressed the Committee. Key points
highlighted included:

e The agent and residents understood the planning policy but felt a commonsense
approach was needed;

e The site in question was a private cul de sac. The parking spaces already
existed and were in use;

¢ Residents in the street had submitted an application to better regulate and
manage the parking in Dyson Drive;

e Transport Specialists had prepared a transport statement in support of the
proposal;

e The spaces were already provided on the street but were currently unregulated,;
formal spaces could be managed better and highways safety would be
improved.

e 8 house owners had submitted the application — these homes include 14
children under the age of 9. Home owners had chosen to live there as it was a
nice safe quiet road;

e The resident in attendance had a 3-bed house with only one allocated parking
space — this had been a mistake by the developers, and they had now made the
land available to rectify the error;

e The Council's Highways report findings differed from the findings of the
residents’ Highways report;

¢ Non-residents often used the parking spaces — sometimes for months on end.
Vans parked overnight and this was very disruptive to residents;

o If the proposal were agreed, the number of car journeys would be reduced and
the street would be safer for residents;

e The reason for refusal quoted in the officer’s report referenced over-provision of
car parking yet no additional spaces were proposed — just better management of
existing parking arrangements. Residents were supportive of the proposal.

Page 7




In response to queries from the Committee, it was explained that Dyson Drive was a
private road. The matter had only been brought to the attention of the Committee due
to the submission of a petition. The current parking situation was informal and not
consented or regulated by the Council. Formalising it would consent the additional
parking. It could set a precedent and would need to be brought in line with the
requirements of the London Plan (2021) maximum car parking standards which sought
to reduce vehicle trips and promote sustainable travel modes.

It was clarified that planning consent was required for the additional parking, but the
Council did not own the road therefore could not enforce parking on the site or legally
paint lines on the road.

Members sympathised with the position of the applicant and petitioners but noted that
the Council was limited in what it could do to address the issue. It was suggested that
the applicant should lobby the owner of the site to take action. The green spaces at the
site could be used for additional parking. Health and safety concerns were of
paramount importance.

Members enquired whether officers could be requested to work with residents and give
them advice. It was confirmed that the residents would need to approach the owner
independently. Any proposed alternative parking solution would be brought back to the
Planning Committee.

The Committee noted the health and safety concerns of officers. The officer’s
recommendation was moved, seconded and, when put to a vote, unanimously agreed.

RESOLVED: That the application be refused.

67.

LAND AT AUSTIN ROAD, HAYES - 76550/APP/2023/2931 (Agenda Item 10)

Section 73 application to vary Condition 3 of application reference
76550/APP/2021/4499 dated 28-09-22 (Hybrid planning application seeking
OUTLINE permission (with all matters reserved) for residential floorspace (Class
C3) including demolition of all existing buildings and structures; erection of new
buildings; provision of a community centre (up to 140sg.m of Use Class F2(b)
floorspace); new pedestrian and vehicular access; associated amenity space,
open space, landscaping; car and cycle parking spaces; plant, refuse storage,
servicing area and other works incidental to the proposed development; and
FULL planning permission for Blocks A and B comprising 80 residential units
(Class C3); new pedestrian and vehicular access; associated amenity space and
landscaping; car and cycle parking; refuse storage, servicing area, and other
associated infrastructure to include temporary highways and landscaping works)
to increase the parapet height by 50cm in the Detailed First Phase.

Officers presented the application which comprised a minor material amendment to
vary Condition 3 of planning application reference 76550/APP/2021/4499 dated
28/9/22. The current application sought to amend the original consent for the detailed
first phase Building A to increase the parapet height by 50cm and was recommended
for approval.

Members enquired whether it would be possible to condition the colour of the parapet.
It was confirmed that a materials condition would be included and the colour would be
agreed at a later date.

Page 8




The Committee welcomed the project and did not object to the minor amendment.

The officer's recommendation was moved, seconded and, when put to a vote,
unanimously agreed subject to the conditions set out in the officer’s report.

RESOLVED: That the application be approved, subject to the conditions set out
in the officer’s report.

68.

HIGH VIEW FARM, HAREFIELD - 39755/APP/2023/652 (Agenda Item 11)

Regularisation of the existing green waste composting operations and proposed
extension to the green waste open windrow compost maturation yard,
construction of a storage container, site offices, welfare building,
weighbridge/weighbridge offices, 2 no. leachate holding tanks, 2 no. 180kW
generator sets, landscaping and areas of ecological enhancement, including a
change of use of the land from pasture to a waste management use.

Officers presented the application which sought to regularise the buildings and
infrastructure on the existing site of the green waste composting operations and extend
the maturation yard to the north and east. The Central Government move to process
more green waste was noted and the application was recommended for approval.

Members sought clarification as to the future use of the biodiversity area near the
woodland. It was confirmed that a scrub area was proposed.

In response to further questions from the Committee, it was confirmed that the proposal
would not result in increased vehicle movements and the tonnage would remain
unchanged.

The Committee noted that green composting was important and much needed. The
officer’'s recommendation was moved, seconded and, when put to a vote, unanimously
agreed subject to referral to the Secretary of State and the Mayor of London .

RESOLVED: That the application be approved subject to referral to the Secretary
of State and the Mayor of London.

69.

GARAGE COURT R/O 66-74 FARMLANDS, JOEL STREET, EASTCOTE -
77586/APP/2023/2460 (Agenda Item 12)

Demolition of existing single-storey garages and the construction of 4no. 2-
bedroom, two-storey houses with associated car parking and landscaping.

Officers presented the application noting that officers were happy with the proposal in
terms of its design, living conditions, impact on the street scene and effect on the
amenity of neighbours. Highways officers had raised no concerns, the proposed
parking at the site was acceptable and tree protection and landscaping conditions had
been added. The application was recommended for approval.

Members sought further clarification in respect of access arrangements and enquired
whether the new development would have a separate street address. It was agreed
that officers would follow this up with the Street Naming and Numbering Team.

Page 9




In response to further queries from Members, it was confirmed that the current garages
were in a state of disrepair and were not in use.

Members welcomed the proposal to remove the redundant garages and create new
attractive mews-style homes in their place.

The officer's recommendation was moved, seconded and, when put to a vote,
unanimously agreed subject to the conditions set out in the officer’s report.

RESOLVED: That the application be approved subject to the conditions set out in
the officer’s report.

70.

YEADING INFANT SCHOOL, YEADING - 17997/APP/2023/3294 (Agenda Item 13)

Demolition of existing single storey buildings and the erection of a new single
storey kitchen and dining hall facility with associated external works.

Officers presented the application and informed the Committee that the existing café
was in a state of disrepair. The proposal would result in no loss of play space at the
school. The proposed new building would be more energy efficient, better insulated
and would offer improved dining facilities. It was considered that there would be no
harm to the appearance of the building or to the amenity of neighbours.

Members sought clarification regarding the waste removal and delivery times as set out
in the Construction Management Plan, noting that deliveries between the hours of
09:30 and 15:30 were proposed. Officers were requested to ensure that deliveries did
not coincide with school closure times, so children were able to leave the school safely.
It was agreed that delegated authority be granted to the Area Service Planning
Manager, in consultation with the Chair and the Labour Lead, to amend the delivery
times in the Construction Management Plan to ensure they did not compromise safety
at school closing times.

With regard to asbestos, Members were informed that this came under separate
legislation. It was agreed that delegated authority be granted to the Area Service
Planning Manager to add an informative in relation to asbestos management.

The Committee welcomed the proposal and raised no further concerns. The officer’s
recommendation, subject to the conditions in the officer’s report, the agreed
amendment to the delivery times and the addition of an informative in relation to
asbestos, was moved, seconded and, when put to a vote, unanimously agreed.

RESOLVED:

1. That the application be approved subject to the conditions set out in the
officer’s report;

2. That delegated authority be granted to the Area Service Planning Manager,
in consultation with the Chair and the Labour Lead, to amend the delivery
times in the Construction Management Plan to ensure they do not
compromise safety at school closing times; and

3. That delegated authority be granted to the Area Service Planning Manager
to add an informative in relation to asbestos management.

71.

GARAGES TO REAR OF 15 ASH GROVE - 77939/APP/2023/2448 (Agenda Item 14)

Page 10




Demolition of four existing garages and erection of two terrace dwellings (1x2
bed and 1x3 bed) over two storeys with associated car parking spaces and
private gardens.

Officers presented the application and highlighted the additional information in the
addendum. It was noted that, at present, parking in the area was erratic and
hazardous. The proposal would alleviate this issue. Members heard that the current
garages were sub-standard and unoccupied and adequate street parking was available
in surrounding roads. The application was recommended for approval.

In response to questions from the Committee, it was confirmed that a business was
being run from the main road - Ash Grove which was exacerbating parking stress in the
area. Enforcement officers were already aware of this.

Members were advised that the new development would form part of Ash Grove
therefore would have the same street name. The Committee was advised that none of
the garages was currently in use.

Members raised no further concerns or queries. The officer's recommendation was
moved, seconded and, when put to a vote, unanimously agreed subject to the
addendum and the conditions in the report.

RESOLVED: That the application be approved subject to the information in the
addendum and the conditions set out in the officer’s report.

The meeting, which commenced at 7.00 pm, closed at 9.36 pm.

These are the minutes of the above meeting. For more information on any of the
resolutions please contact Liz Penny on epenny@hillingdon.gov.uk Circulation of
these minutes is to Councillors, Officers, the Press and Members of the Public.

Page 11




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 6

Report of the Head of Development Management and Building Control
Address: WILLOWTREE MARINA WEST QUAY DRIVE HAYES

Development: Conversion of the first floor and loft space to create 3 x 2-bed and 1 x 1- bed
flats with ground floor extension for relocation of existing Chandlery

LBH Ref Nos: 46463/APP/2023/2279

Drawing Nos: WTMWQD_PLN _004.3
WTMWQD_PLN_006.3
Cherryfield Ecology Report 20/01/2023
Design and Access Statement
WTMWQD_LOC_001
WTMWQD_PLN_001
WTMWQD_PLN_005
WTMWQD_PLN_003
WTMWQD_PLN_002 Rev B
WTMWQD_PLN_007

Date Plans received: 01-08-2023 Date(s) of Amendments(s):  01-08-2023

15-11-2023
Date Application valid  01-08-2023

1. SUMMARY

Planning Permission is sought for the conversion and extension of the first floor and loft space to
create 3 x 2-bed and 1 x 1- bed flats with ground floor extension for relocation of existing Chandlery.

In terms of the principle of development, the proposal involves development within the Green Belt. As
such the applicant must demonstrate that the proposal would meet one or more the exceptions within
para 154 of the NPPF to be considered appropriate development or demonstrate that very special
circumstances exist (VSC). In this case the proposal would involve a residential development
facilitated by a modest roof extension to accommodate the residential units within the upper floor area
and an infill extension at ground floor level to relocate the chandlery. It is considered that the
proposed extensions would appear subordinate additions to the existing building and would be
proportionate. As such the proposal meets exception c) of paragraph 154 of the NPPF (2023) and is
therefore appropriate development within the Green Belt and would have a limited impact upon
openness.

Having regard for the sites Green Belt designation, during the assessment of the application it has
been necessary to negotiate the submission of amended plans and additional supporting information
to respond to design and highway concerns.

The applicant has submitted a set of revised drawings which are considered to respond to Officer's
initial design concerns regarding the scale of the proposed dormer and its potential to have an

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 13



adverse impact on the appearance of the building. The amended plans demonstrate a reduction in
the scale of the dormer which is now considered to form proportionate addition to the existing
building.

In terms of the highway concerns, the application site benefits from a large car park which serves the
Marina moorings and the existing building on site which contains a restaurant and nursery. The initial
application provided an indication that the proposal to introduce residential use on this site above the
existing restaurant, chandlery and nursery uses, would not lead to a reduction in car parking which
would impact the uses which the car park serves resulting in parking over spilling onto the public
highway outside of the site.

The applicant has provided additional evidence to demonstrate how the existing car park is used. In
summary, 63 parking spaces currently exist at the site. 18 spaces are allocated for the site's
commercial users and 12 for residential moorings. The remaining 33 spaces are unallocated and 6 of
those spaces would be allocated to users of proposed flats. Taking into consideration these points,
the proposal would cause no loss of parking to the sites existing users and would provide sufficient
parking space for users of the new flats, alongside overflow parking space. The development is
therefore considered to have an acceptable highways impact.

Overall, it is considered that subject to the recommended conditions the proposed development
would cause no harm to the character and appearance of the area or the host building, nor would it
cause significant harm to neighbouring amenities or the local highways network. Residents of the new
flats would be provided with an acceptable standard of internal and external living accommodation.
Additionally, the development would constitute appropriate development in the Green Belt and would
cause no harm to its openness or purposes.

It is therefore recommended that the committee grant planning permission for the proposed
development.

2. RECOMMENDATION

APPROVAL subiject to the following:

1. RES3  Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the date
of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2. RES4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete accordance with the
details shown on submitted plans numbers:

WTMWQD_LOC_001

WTMWQD_PLN_006.3

WTMWQD_PLN_004.3

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 14



WTMWQD_PLN_002 Rev B
and shall thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1 (2012),
Part 2 (2020) and the London Plan (2021).

3. RES5 General compliance with supporting documentation

The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the following has been completed in
accordance with the specified supporting plans and/or documents:

Cherryfield Ecology Report 20/01/2023

Thereafter the development shall be retained/maintained in accordance with these details for as long
as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1 (2012),
Part 2 (2020) and the London Plan (2021).

4. NONSC Sustainable Drainage and Water Management

No development above ground level shall take place until a scheme for the provision of sustainable
water management and water efficiency shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The scheme shall:

i. Provide information about the design storm period and intensity, the method employed to delay and
control the surface water discharged from the site and the measures taken to prevent pollution of the
receiving groundwater and/or surface waters;

ii. Include a timetable for its implementation; and

iii. Provide a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development

The scheme shall also demonstrate the use of methods to minimise the use of potable water through
water collection, reuse and recycling and will:

iv. Provide details of water collection facilities to capture excess rainwater;

v. Provide details of how rain and grey water will be recycled and reused in the development;

vi. Provide details of how the dwelling will achieve a water efficiency standard of no more than 110
litres per person per day maximum water consumption (to include a fixed factor of water for outdoor
use of 5 litres per person per day in accordance with the optional requirement defined within
Approved Document G of the Building Regulations).

Thereafter the development shall be implemented and retained/maintained in accordance with these
details for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON

To ensure the development does not increase the risk of flooding in accordance with Policies DMEI 9
and DMEI 10 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020) and Policies SI2 and Sl 13 of the London
Plan (2021).

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 15



5. RES7 Materials (Submission)

No development above ground level shall take place until details of all materials and external
surfaces (associated with the proposed development) have been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the development shall be constructed in
accordance with the approved details and be retained as such.

Details should include information relating to make, product/type, colour and photographs/images.

REASON
To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with Policy DMHB
11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

6. RES9 Landscaping (car parking & refuse/cycle storage)

No development above ground level shall take place until a landscape scheme has been submitted
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include:

1. Details of Soft Landscaping

1.a Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100)

1.b Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken

1.c Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities where
appropriate and to include pollution absorbing species.

2. Details of Hard Landscaping

2.a Refuse Storage (secure and enclosed)

2.b Cycle Storage (6 cycle storage spaces shall be provided for the approved dwelling and the
storage shall be secure and enclosed)

2.d Hard Surfacing Materials

2.e External Lighting

2.f Other structures (such as play equipment and furniture)

2.g Car parking layout for 6 parking spaces, including details to demonstrate that 2 of the 6 spaces to
serve the residential units are provided with active electrical vehicle charging points (EVCP).

3. Details of Landscape Maintenance

3.a Landscape Maintenance Schedule for a minimum period of 5 years

3.b Proposals for the replacement of any tree, shrub, or area of turfing/seeding within the
landscaping scheme which dies or in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority becomes seriously
damaged or diseased

4. Schedule for Implementation

Thereafter the development shall be carried out and maintained in full accordance with the approved
details.

REASON

To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities of the
locality and provide adequate facilities in compliance with policies DMHB 11, DMHB 12, DMHB 14,
DMEI 1 and DMT 2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

7. O0M10 Construction Management Plan

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 16



Prior to development commencing, a demolition and construction management plan shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Canals
and Rivers Trust. The plan shall detail:

(i) The phasing of development works

(ii) The hours during which development works will occur (please refer to informative 115 for
maximum permitted working hours).

(iilMeasures to prevent mud and dirt tracking into the nearby water source, footways and adjoining
roads (including wheel washing facilities).

(iv) Traffic management and access arrangements (vehicular and pedestrian) and parking provisions
for contractors during the development process (including measures to reduce the numbers of
construction vehicles accessing the site during peak hours).

(vi Measures to reduce the impact of the development on local air quality and dust through
minimising emissions throughout the demolition and construction process.

(vi) The storage of demolition/construction materials on site.

(vii) A site operation plan shall be submitted detailing the measures that will be taken during
construction to ensure that the sites existing uses can function and are not adversely impacted by
construction works at the site.

The approved details shall be implemented and maintained throughout the duration of the demolition
and construction process.

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of surrounding areas in accordance with Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

8. NONSC Non Standard Condition

The 6 car parking spaces illustrated on drawing reference WTMWQD_PLN_002 Rev A shall be
allocated for the residential units and shall be retained for this use for the lifetime of the development.

REASON

To safeguard the amenity of surrounding areas in accordance with Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan Part 2 (2020) and to ensure that adequate parking is provided for the sites users in
compliance with Policy DMT 6 and Policy T6 of the London Plan (2021).

9. NONSC Non Standard Condition

Notwithstanding the approved drawings, prior to the occupation of the hereby approved dwellings,
details of the siting, design and materials of all privacy screens to balconies shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Thereafter, the screens shall be installed as per the consented details prior to the first occupation of
the development here by approved and the privacy screens shall be retained on site for so long as
the development remains in existence.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties and to protect the privacy of occupiers of the flats in
accordance with Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

10. NONSC Non Standard Condition

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 17



Prior to the occupation of the hereby approved dwellings, a Servicing and Delivery Plan shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The plan shall include details of
how the sites existing commercial uses will be serviced; where servicing and delivery vehicles would
park; and mitigation measures which will be implemented to minimise the impacts of servicing and
deliveries on residents at the site.

REASON

To safeguard the amenity of surrounding areas in accordance with Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan Part 2 (2020) and to ensure that adequate parking is provided for the sites users in
compliance with Policy DMT 6 and Policy T6 of the London Plan (2021).

11. NONSC Non Standard Condition

Prior to the commencement of the development either revised floor plans illustrating the re-location
of the existing plant room equipment or evidence to demonstrate the equipment within the existing
plant room is no longer required, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.

REASON

To safeguard the functionality of the existing uses within the building whilst the development is
constructed and for the lifetime of the development and to ensure to the amenities of local residents
are protected in accordance with Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020) and
Policy S3 of the London Plan (2021).

12. NONSC Non Standard Condition

No floodlighting or other form of external lighting shall be installed unless it is in accordance with
details which have previously been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. Such details shall include location, height, type and direction of light sources and intensity
of illumination.

REASON

To safeguard the amenity of surrounding properties in accordance with Policy DMHB 11 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020); and to protect the ecological value of the area in accordance
with Policy DMEI 7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

INFORMATIVES

1. 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant planning
legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The Human Rights Act
(1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention
rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family
life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2. 173 Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) (Granting Consent)

Under the terms of the Planning Act 2008 (as amended) and Community Infrastructure Levy
Regulations 2010 (as amended), this development is liable to pay the London Borough of Hillingdon

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 18



Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) and the Mayor of London's Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL).
This will be calculated in accordance with the London Borough of Hillingdon CIL Charging Schedule
2014 and the Mayor of London's CIL Charging Schedule 2012. Before commencement of works the
development parties must notify the London Borough of Hillingdon of the commencement date for the
construction works (by submitting a Commencement Notice) and assume liability to pay CIL (by
submitting an Assumption of Liability Notice) to the Council at planning@hillingdon.gov.uk. The
Council will then issue a Demand Notice setting out the date and the amount of CIL that is payable.
Failure to submit a valid Assumption of Liability Notice and Commencement Notice prior to
commencement of the development may result in surcharges being imposed.

The above forms can be found on the planning portal at:
www.planningportal.gov.uk/planning/applications/howtoapply/whattosubmit/cil

Pre-Commencement Conditions: These conditions are important from a CIL liability perspective as a
scheme will not become CIL liable until all of the pre-commencement conditions have been
discharged/complied with.

3. 115 Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control of Pollution
Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you should ensure that the
following are complied with:-

A. Demolition and construction works which are audible at the site boundary shall only be carried out
between the hours of 08.00 and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between the hours of 08.00 hours
and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.

B. All noise generated during such works shall be controlled in compliance with British Standard
Code of Practice BS 5228:20009.

C. Dust emissions shall be controlled in compliance with the Mayor of London's Best Practice
Guidance' The Control of dust and emissions from construction and demolition.

D. No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit (www.hillingdon.gov.uk/noise
Tel. 01895 250155) or to seek prior approval under Section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you
anticipate any difficulty in carrying out construction other than within the normal working hours set out
in (A) above, and by means that would minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

4. 123 Works affecting the Public Highway - Vehicle Crossover

The development requires the alteration of a vehicular crossover, which will be constructed by the
Council at the applicant's expense. This work is also subject to the issuing of a separate licence to
obstruct or open up the public highway. For further information and advice contact: - Highways
Maintenance Operations, 4W/07, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1TUW.

5. IT05 Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981

Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981: Note that it is an offence under this act to disturb roosting bats,
nesting birds or any other protected species. Therefore, if applicable, it is advisable to consult your

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 19



tree surgeon / consultant to agree an acceptable time for carrying out the approved works.

153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies and
proposals in the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1 (2012) and Part 2 (2020) set out below, including
Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations, including The London
Plan (2021) and national guidance.

DMEI 10 Water Management, Efficiency and Quality

DMEI 14 Air Quality

DMEI 4 Development on the Green Belt or Metropolitan Open Land
DMH 2 Housing Mix

DMHB 11 Design of New Development

DMHB 12 Streets and Public Realm

DMHB 14 Trees and Landscaping

DMHB 15 Planning for Safer Places

DMHB 16 Housing Standards

DMHB 17 Residential Density

DMHB 18 Private Outdoor Amenity Space

DMT 1 Managing Transport Impacts

DMT 2 Highways Impacts

DMT 5 Pedestrians and Cyclists

DMT 6 Vehicle Parking

EM2 (2012) Green Belt, Metropolitan Open Land and Green Chains
LPP D1 (2021) London's form, character and capacity for growth
LPP D3 (2021) Optimising site capacity through the design-led approach
LPP D4 (2021) Delivering good design

LPP D5 (2021) Inclusive design

LPP D6 (2021) Housing quality and standards

LPP D7 (2021) Accessible housing

LPP G2 (2021) London's Green Belt

LPP H1 (2021) Increasing housing supply

LPP H2 (2021) Small sites

LPP S3 (2021) Education and childcare facilities

LPP SI13 (2021) Sustainable drainage

LPP T5 (2021) Cycling

LPP T6 (2021) Car parking

LPP T6.1 (2021) Residential parking

NPPF11 NPPF 2021 - Making effective use of land

NPPF12 NPPF 2021 - Achieving well-designed places

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 20



3.2

NPPF13 NPPF 2021 - Protecting Green Belt Land

NPPF2 NPPF 2021 - Achieving sustainable development
NPPF4 NPPF 2021 - Decision-Making

NPPF5 NPPF 2021 - Delivering a sufficient supply of homes
NPPF9 NPPF 2021 - Promoting sustainable transport
CONSIDERATIONS

Site and Locality

The application site is located at the end of West Quay Drive. The site comprises the Willowtree
Marina which is made up of a part single part two storey building in mixed use as well as moorings for
boat owners and users of the Grand Union Canal. Alongside the moorings, a large car park, trees and
other greenery exist within the site.

The building within the site is currently used as a chandlery, restaurant and nursery.
The development site is within the Green Belt and the site has a PTAL rating of 1A.

Planning Permission is sought for the conversion of the first floor and loft space to create 3 x 2-bed
and 1 x 1- bed flats with ground floor extension for relocation of existing Chandlery.

Proposed Scheme

Planning Permission is sought for the conversion and extension of the first floor and loft space to
create 3 x 2-bed and 1 x 1- bed flats with ground floor infill extension to facilitate the relocation of
existing Chandlery. Cantilever balconies are proposed to provide private amenity and terraces to
serve the new residential units.

The site nursery, chandlery and restaurant would be retained, as would the toilet and shower
facilities.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

46463/A/91/1703 Yeading Marina Boathouse West Quay Drive Hayes
Change of use of first floor flat to office use ancillary to chandlery
Decision: 25-02-1992 Approved

46463/APP/2001/664 Willowtree Marina West Quay Drive Hayes

CHANGE OF USE FROM MARINA WORKSHOP TO USE FOR PURPOSES WITHIN CLASS B8
(RETROSPECTIVE APPLICATION)

Decision: 21-05-2001 Approved

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 21



46463/APP/2002/186 North Eastern Edge Of The Marina , South Of The Footpath West Quay
Drive Hayes

INSTALLATION OF A BOARDWALK TO LAND ADJACENT TO WILLOW TREE MARINA (FOR
EDUCATIONAL PURPOSES)

Decision: 19-04-2002 Approved

46463/APP/2004/3092 Willow Tree Marina West Quay Drive Hayes

CHANGE OF USE FROM BOATHOUSE TO CHILDREN'S NURSERY AND ALTERATIONS TO
FRONT AND REAR ELEVATIONS

Decision: 20-09-2005 Approved

46463/APP/2005/3105 Willowtree Marina West Quay Drive Hayes

DETAILS OF LANDSCAPING REMEDIATION SCHEME, DUSTBIN, REFUSE COLLECTION
AREA, CYCLE PARKING SPACES, "SAFE STRIP", WELD MESH, DISABLED RAMP,
BOLLARDS, "GO SLOW" SIGN ETC IN COMPLIANCE WITH CONDITIONS 9, 11, 12, 13, 14 AND
15 OF PLANNING PERMISSION REF 46463/APP/2004/3092 DATED 22.9.2005 : CHANGE OF
USE FROM BOATHOUSE TO CHILDRENS'S NURSERY.

Decision: 16-05-2006 Approved

46463/APP/2006/372 Willowtree Marina West Quay Drive Hayes

VARIATION OF CONDITION 15 TO REMOVE REQUIREMENT TO PLACE WELD MESH ON
RAILINGS SURROUND TO THE MARINA OF PLANNING PERMISSION REF.46463/APP/2004/
3092 DATED 22/09/2005 (CHANGE OF USE FROM BOATHOUSE TO CHILDREN'S NURSERY
AND ALTERATIONS TO FRONT AND REAR ELEVATIONS).

Decision: 04-04-2006 Approved

46463/C/94/3151 Yeading Marina Boathouse West Quay Drive Hayes
Installation of two externally illuminated fascia signs
Decision: 27-01-1995 Approved

46463/E/96/0486 Yeading Marina Boathouse Complex West Quay Drive Hayes
Change of use of part of first floor from office to one-bedroom flat (retrospective application)
Decision: 24-05-1996 Approved

46463/F/96/0487 Yeading Marina Boathouse Complex West Quay Drive Hayes
Change of use of part of first floor chandlery to Class B1 (office)
Decision: 24-05-1996 Approved

46463/G/96/0855 Willowtree Marina West Quay Drive Hayes
Change of use of workshop to Class B8 (packaging, storage and distribution)

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 22



Decision: 05-07-1996 Approve Limited
Time

46463/H/98/0601 Willowtree Marina West Quay Drive Hayes
Erection of a summerhouse/storeroom (for use ancillary to the residential houseboats at the Marina)
Decision: 21-05-1998 Approved

Comment on Relevant Planning History

The sites planning history is cited above.

Planning application reference 46463/E/96/0486 is of particular importance as this application
proposed to introduce residential use to the site. Whilst the development plan has been subject to
significant change since this application was approved, it is considered to be material to the
assessment of the application.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

Planning law requires that applications for planning permission be determined in accordance with the
development plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

The Development Plan for the London Borough of Hillingdon currently consists of the following
documents:

The Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (2012)

The Local Plan Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020)
The Local Plan Part 2 - Site Allocations and Designations (2020)
The West London Waste Plan (2015)

The London Plan (2021)

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2023) is also a material consideration in planning
decisions, as well as relevant supplementary planning documents and guidance.

Local Plan Designation and London Plan
The following Local Plan Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

PT1.H1 (2012) Housing Growth

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 23



Part 2 Policies:

EM2

DMH 2

DMEI 4

(2012) Green Belt, Metropolitan Open Land and Green Chains
Housing Mix

Development on the Green Belt or Metropolitan Open Land

DMHB 11 Design of New Development

DMEI 10 Water Management, Efficiency and Quality

DMEI 14  Air Quality

DMHB 12 Streets and Public Realm

DMHB 14 Trees and Landscaping

DMHB 15 Planning for Safer Places

DMHB 16 Housing Standards

DMHB 17 Residential Density

DMHB 18 Private Outdoor Amenity Space

DMT 1

DMT 2

DMT 5

DMT 6

LPP G2

LPP D1

LPP D3

LPP D4

LPP D5

LPP D6

LPP S3

LPP D7

LPP H1

Managing Transport Impacts

Highways Impacts

Pedestrians and Cyclists

Vehicle Parking

(2021) London's Green Belt

(2021) London's form, character and capacity for growth
(2021) Optimising site capacity through the design-led approach
(2021) Delivering good design

(2021) Inclusive design

(2021) Housing quality and standards

(2021) Education and childcare facilities

(2021) Accessible housing

(2021) Increasing housing supply

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 24



LPP H2 (2021) Small sites

LPP SI13 (2021) Sustainable drainage

LPPT5 (2021) Cycling

LPP T6 (2021) Car parking

LPP T6.1 (2021) Residential parking

NPPF13 NPPF 2021 - Protecting Green Belt Land

NPPF2  NPPF 2021 - Achieving sustainable development
NPPF4  NPPF 2021 - Decision-Making

NPPF5  NPPF 2021 - Delivering a sufficient supply of homes
NPPF9  NPPF 2021 - Promoting sustainable transport
NPPF11 NPPF 2021 - Making effective use of land

NPPF12 NPPF 2021 - Achieving well-designed places

5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1  Advertisement Expiry Date: 7th September 2023
5.2  Site Notice Expiry Date: Not applicable

6. Consultations

External Consultees
A site notice was placed at the development site on 17/08/23.

Additionally 39 neighbouring properties were directly notified of the proposal. Letters were sent on 08/08/23
and 24/10/23. Both times residents were given 21 days to provide responses to the proposed
development.

During the consultation periods, a total of 11 objections were received. The objections have been
summarised below.

1) The proposal would cause harm to the local highways network.

2) The proposal would cause harm to the character and appearance of the area, as well as harm to the
design of the existing building.

3) The proposal would cause harm to neighbouring amenities (privacy, light,outlook and mental health).

4) The development would have an adverse ecological impact (bats and contamination of marina water).
5) We will have to relocate due to noise and disturbance during and post construction - this would put us at
a financial deficit.

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 25



6) Not all residents have been consulted on the proposed development.

7) Construction works will cause noise and disturbance, harming neighbours amenities.

8) The development would have an adverse impact on the functioning of the marina.

9) The development would cause harm to the conservation area.

10) The proposal would provide an unsafe environment for future residents, as they would have to walk
along the access road to the site.

11) Possible use of the site for as air bandb

12) The development would lead to an increase in anti-social behaviour

13) Increase in light pollution

A comment was also received from the Lock and Quay Restaurant and Bar who operate from the site. The
comment is as follows 'l have met with my landlord and any concerns we had as a business at the location
have been discussed and | feel reassured. Please remove my objection from this application.'

A petition with 23 signatures has also been submitted against the application. The petition raises the
following concerns regarding the proposed development:

i) The development will impact on surrounding property prices.

i) Having unknown contractors frequently visiting the site would reduce the security of residents.

iii) Construction works would also cause disturbance to neighbouring residents, harming their amenities.
iv) The proposal would cause harm to neighbouring amenities (privacy, light and outlook).

v) A nature reserve abuts the marina, the development could have an adverse impact.

vi) All residents in the surrounding area were not consulted on the application.

PLANNING OFFICER COMMENTS
Issues relating to points 1,2,3,4, i, ii, iv, v are considered in the main body of this report.

With regards to points 5, 7 and iii, construction works are temporary and therefore so are the associated
impacts. The Environmental Protection Act (1990) and Pollution Act (1974) are in place to ensure that
construction works are carried out in an appropriate and environmentally friendly manner. Notwithstanding
the above, a condition requiring a construction logistics plan and construction management plan to be
agreed with the Council has been recommended, in order to minimise the impacts of construction on
neighbouring residents and the environment as far as practicable.

In relation to point 6 and vi, a site notice was placed at the site and 39 neighbouring properties were
consulted on the application. The statutory consultation obligations for the application have been carried
out. See section 6.1 of the report for further information.

In relation to point 8, there is no guarantee that the works would have an adverse impact on the sites ability
to operate. Furthermore operators at the site have been consulted on the application and raised no
objection to the proposed development. Additionally, if approved a condition requiring a construction
management plan is recommended. The condition would include the requirement for a site operation plan,
ensuring that any adverse impacts of construction do not have a permanent or significantly adverse impact
on the ability of the site to function.

In relation to point 9, the development site is not within a conservation area.
In relation to point 10, there is lighting along the access road to ensure adequate levels of visibility. Car

parking is included within the scheme to ensure that residents have the option of driving in and out of the
site; limiting the need to walk. It should also be noted that at present the site is in mixed use and when

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 26



necessary its users may walk to and from the site via the access road, as such the new residents and
users would be provided with the same level of safety.

In relation to point i, property prices are not a material planning consideration.

In relation to point ii, there is no guarantee that contractors would engage in anti social behaviour or
activities which would endanger residents.

In relation to point 11, the application seeks planning consent for the provision of new residential units.

In relation to point 12, the proposal would result in an area which is occupied outside of the existing hours
of operation, which would naturally increase the surveillance and safety of the area.

With regards to point 13, the proposal would result in an increase in internal light activity. The applicant has
submitted an ecology assessment which indicates that the development would not result in an
unacceptable level of harm to local ecology and in particular bats. A condition to restrict the implementation
of additional lighting would be attached to the decision notice to ensure any further lighting required to
serve the development, in particular external lighting, would require planning permission.

Internal Consultees
HIGHWAYS OFFICER:

A planning application has been received for a site at Willowtree Marina seeking permission to convert the
first floor and extend the roof of an existing building to create 4no. flats together with a ground floor
extension to relocate an existing Chandlery. The proposal would involve reallocating 6no. car parking
spaces from the existing 63no. space car park to the residential units, 2no. of the residential car parking
spaces would be provided with an active electric vehicle charge point. There is no cycle parking proposed.

Willowtree Marina hosts 90no. narrow boat berths, of which 12no. are residential, there is also a restaurant
and a chandlery. The site is served by 63no. car parking spaces of which 12no. are allocated to the
residential moorings. The application site is within an area with a PTAL ranking of 1a demonstrating that
the application has poor access to public transport compared to London as a whole suggesting that future
residents would be reliant on the private car for trip making.

As mentioned above the proposal would provide 6no. car parking spaces. The London Plan 2021 Table
10.3 - Maximum Residential Parking Standards would allow up to 1.5 parking spaces per dwelling or 7no.
in total, the 6no. proposed is in accordance with the London Plan and is accepted. The London Plan Policy
T6.1 requires that these spaces are leased and not sold and only requires disabled persons parking for
development providing 10no. or more units. The Chandlery would be reduced in size, accordingly the
maximum number of car parking spaces the London Plan would allow would fall from 6no. to 4no.

The proposal would not provide any cycle parking, this would be contrary to the London Plan (2021) Policy
T5 which would require 7no. cycle parking spaces. The Highway Authority believes that there is sufficient
scope for the applicant to satisfactorily address the cycle requirement and therefore could be conditioned.

As part of the proposal 6no. of the existing car parking spaces would be reallocated to the residential use,
however the number of car parking spaces the Chandlery would require would fall from 4no. to 2no. With
the proposal built out there would therefore be a net reduction in car parking supply to the existing uses of
4no. spaces, from 63no. to 60no. This figure is considered insignificant, sufficient car parking spaces would
be retained to cater for the others uses at the Marina. However, a Car Parking Management and Design

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 27



Plan is required to show how car parking spaces would be allocated amongst the commercial tenants,
residential moorings and the new dwellings. This Plan should also demonstrate how the residential car
parking spaces would be allocated to units and leased not sold under a 1990 Town and Country Planning
Act s.106 agreement legal agreement.

There are no highway objections to this proposal subject to the following planning conditions.

Conditions

Plans are submitted showing how the development would accommodate safe, secure and accessible
parking for 6no. cycles.

REASON to be in accordance with the published London Plan 2021 Policy T5 Cycling which requires that
developments should "provide cycle parking at least in accordance with the minimum standards”.

The Highway Authority requires that a Parking Design and Management Plan is submitted to the Council
for approval outlining how the 6no. car parking spaces would be allocated and leased.
REASON to be in accordance with the published London Plan 2021 Policy T6.1 Residential Parking.

The Highway Authority require that a Service and Delivery Plan is submitted for approval.
REASON To be in accordance with the published London Plan 2021 Policy T7 Deliveries, servicing, and
construction.

CASE OFFICER COMMENT:

The Highway Engineers request for a car parking management plan is noted, however details have been
submitted to demonstrate how the car park is currently used by those who use the moorings and visit the
marina and those using the commercial uses within the building. Based on this information it is clear that
the proposal would provide sufficient parking without compromising the other uses. Drawing ref
WTMWQD_PLN_002 Rev B indicates the location of the 6 spaces to serve the residential uses therefore a
condition pertaining to these spaces being allocated for use by the residential units for the lifetime of the
development is considered sufficient.

ACCESS OFFICER:

This proposal for conversion of the first floor and loft space to create 3 x 2-bed and 1 x 1- bed flats has
been reviewed against the requirements of the 2021 London Plan policy D7 which should not be applied to
this existing building. Conclusion: no objections raised from an accessibility perspective.

NOISE OFFICER:

Given the nature and context of the proposed development apparent from the information provided | do not
consider noise and vibration to be a material planning issue.

WASTE OFFICER:

Please provide details of waste and recycling provisions to accommodate additional waste and recycling
arising from the 4 proposed dwellings. With 7 additional bedrooms it is anticipated that a further 840L of
waste will be produced per week. Provisions should be assessed to ensure that they are able to support
120L of waste per bedroom, per week across the whole development. Additional containers should be
sourced if required, with a suitable space allocated within the current storage area for waste and recycling
containers. Consideration should be made for a 140L communal food waste unit to be installed to enable
residents to recycle food as well as dry mixed recycling.

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 28



PLANNING OFFICER COMMENT:

Comments from the Access Officer, Highways Officer and Waste Officer have been taken into
consideration in the assessment of this application. In order to make the development acceptable in
planning terms the recommended conditions and informatives would be attached to the permission, should
the application be approved. The applicant has confirmed that the main building within the site is being
used as a chandlery, restaurant and nursery. It also includes toilet and shower facilities, alongside a plant
room.

7.  MAIN PLANNING ISSUES

7.01 The principle of the development

The NPPF (2023) and Policy GG2 of the London Plan (2021) state a requirement to encourage the
effective use of land and encourage the use of previously developed, vacant and underutilised sites
to maximise development potential, in particular for new housing. Chapter 5 of the NPPF supports the
delivery of homes, confirming that local authorities should, through their Local Plans, demonstrate
how housing targets and objectives will be met. Particular emphasis is given to housing delivery over
the next five years, but authorities are also required to consider growth beyond this.

Policy GG4 of the London Plan seeks to ensure that London's housing needs are met. Policy H1 of
the London Plan (2021) promotes the optimisation of housing output within different types of location.
Consideration will also be given to the accessibility of the site to services and amenities. Policy H2 of
the London Plan advises that Borough's should proactively support well designed homes on small
sites in decision and plan making.

At local level Policy H1 of the Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012) gives general
support to housing provision to meet and exceed the Council's minimum strategic dwelling
requirement.

The site comprises the Willowtree Marina which is entirely located within the Green Belt. A detailed
assessment of the proposal's accordance with the Green Belt related development plan policies is set
out in section 7.5 of this report.

The application proposes an extension to the existing building on site and the introduction of
residential use to the upper floor comprising of 3 x 2 bed and 1 x 1 bed flats. Given the policy support
for the optimisation of brownfield sites to contribute towards delivering new homes, and the planning
history of the site which indicates that residential use was previously deemed to be acceptable,
subject to the proposed developments compliance with other relevant planning policies and material
planning considerations, the principle of extending the building to facilitate the provision of residential
use in addition to the existing non-residential uses, is considered to be acceptable.

HOUSING MIX
Policy H10 of the London Plan (2021) states that applicants and decision-makers should have regard

to the need for additional family housing. Family housing is defined within the glossary of the London
Plan (2021) and advises that it must generally be of a size that has three or more bedrooms.

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 29



Policy DMH 2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management Policies (2020)
states that the Council will require the provision of a mix of housing units of different sizes in schemes
of residential development to reflect the Council's latest information on housing need.

The supporting text to Policy DMH 2 states at paragraph 4.6 that 'The Council's current information
on housing need indicates a substantial borough-wide requirement for larger affordable and private
market units, particularly three-bedroom properties. Applicants proposing residential schemes will be
required to demonstrate that this need has been taken into account.’

3 x 2 bed and 1 x 1 bed flat are proposed. Due to the sites mixed use, constrained siting and low
accessibility it is less suitable for family sized housing. Taking into consideration these points the
proposed housing mix is considered to be acceptable. The scheme is therefore considered
acceptable in terms of Policy DMH 2 and London Plan Policy H10.

7.02 Density of the proposed development

Policy D3 of the London Plan (2021) states that all development must make the best use of land by
following a design-led approach that optimises the capacity of sites. Higher density developments
should generally be promoted in locations that are well connected to jobs, services, infrastructure and
amenities by public transport, walking and cycling. In other areas, incremental densification should be
actively encouraged by Boroughs to achieve a change in densities in the most appropriate way. This
should be interpreted in the context of Policy H2 of the London Plan (2021) which states that
Boroughs should proactively support well-designed new homes on small sites below 0.25 hectares in
size.

Numerical densities are considered to be more appropriate to larger sites and what is considered of
greater significance to the determination of this application is the local contextual factors. The key
consideration is therefore whether the development would acceptably integrate with the character and
appearance of the area, and would respect residential amenity considerations, rather than the
consideration of the numerical density of the proposal. These issues are discussed in detail at
sections 7.07 and 7.08 of this report.

7.03 Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character
The development would not have an impact on any heritage assets.

7.04 Airport safeguarding
The development would have no impact on airport safeguarding.

7.05 Impact on the green belt

The proposed development site is located entirely within the Green Belt therefore the applicant is
required to demonstrate that the proposal either constitutes appropriate development by meeting one
or more the exceptions set out within the NPPF or that very special circumstances exist.

Policy DMEI 4 of the Hillingdon Local Plan - Development Management Policies (2020) states that 'A)
inappropriate development in the Green Belt and Metropolitan Open Land will not be permitted unless
there are very special circumstances. B) Extensions and redevelopment on sites in the Green Belt
and Metropolitan Open Land will be permitted only where the proposal would not have a greater
impact on the openness of the Green Belt and Metropolitan Open Land, and the purposes of
including land within it, than the existing development, having regard to: i) the height and bulk of the
existing building on the site; ii) the proportion of the site that is already developed:; iii) the footprint,
distribution and character of the existing buildings on the site; iv) the relationship of the proposal with

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 30



any development on the site that is to be retained; and v) the visual amenity and character of the
Green Belt and Metropolitan Open Land'.

Policy G2 (A) of the London Plan (2021) states 'The Green Belt should be protected from
inappropriate development: 1) development proposals that would harm the Green Belt should be
refused except where very special circumstances exist'.

The NPPF was updated in 2023, as such it provides the most up to date planning guidance for how
development in the Green Belt should be assessed. It is therefore considered to be a significant
material consideration. Paragraph 154 of Chapter 13 provides a list of exceptions which, if met, the
development will be considered appropriate. The existing building is approximately 9.5m high, 21m
deep and 39m wide. Having reviewed the planning history, the building does not appear to benefit
from additions therefore it is considered that exception ¢) and g), both are set out in detail below:

c) the extension or alteration of a building provided that it does not result in disproportionate additions
over and above the size of the original building.

g) limited infilling or the partial or complete redevelopment of previously developed land, whether
redundant or in continuing use (excluding temporary buildings), which would:

- not have a greater impact on the openness of the Green Belt than the existing development; or

- not cause substantial harm to the openness of the Green Belt, where the development would re-use
previously developed land and contribute to meeting an identified affordable housing need within the
area of the local planning authority

The proposal involves the construction of a new loft dormer to the eastern elevation of the existing
building, an alteration to the roof form within the set in section of the front and rear elevation nearest
the gable which forms the western elevation and the construction of a ground floor extension. All of
these alterations combined will facilitate the provision of new residential units to the upper floor whilst
retaining the existing chandlery, nursery and restaurant.

In terms of footprint the existing building has a GEA (Gross External Area) of approximately 604m2.
The extended building would have a GEA of approximately 678sgm. The extended building would
therefore be 12% larger at ground floor level than the existing building. At first floor level the built form
would be increased from approximately 431 sqm to 531 sgm resulting an increase of approximately
100 sgm GEA (23.2%). Subsequently this amounts to an overall increase in built form of 174 sqm
(16.8%). Having reviewed the planning history of the site and the historical images the building does
not appear to have been extended significantly since it was originally built. Taking this into
consideration and the modest increase in built form the proposal would comply with exception c) of
the NPPF (2023) and therefore constitutes appropriate development within the Green Belt.

Whilst the proposal is not required to comply with more than one of the exceptions it should also be
noted that the development would also be considered limited infilling on previously developed land.
Apart from the modest circa 70 sgm extension at ground floor level, the additional floor space is to be
contained within the upper floor level through the provision of a dormer, roof alteration and cantilever
balconies/terraces. The scale of the extensions are modest, proportionate, largely hidden within the
existing roof forms and the main roof ridge height would not be increased. The proposed extensions
would therefore not result in a reduction in openness and given that the building is sited within an
established car park heavily dominated by hardstanding it is considered that proposal would
constitute the redevelopment of previously developed land. As such the proposal would also meet
exception g) of the NPPF 2023.

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 31



Taking the above points into consideration, the applicant has demonstrated that the proposal
constitutes appropriate development within the Green Belt, therefore no very special circumstances
are required. As such the proposal meets Policy DMEI 4 of the Hillingdon Local Plan - Development
Management Policies (2020), Policy G2 (A) of the London Plan (2021) and paragraph 154 of the
NPPF (2023).

7.06 Environmental Impact
Not applicable to this application.

7.07 Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Paragraph 135 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2023 states 'Planning policies and
decisions should ensure that developments:

a) will function well and add to the overall quality of the area, not just for the short term but over the
lifetime of the development;

b) are visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and appropriate and effective
landscaping;

c¢) are sympathetic to local character and history, including the surrounding built environment and
landscape setting, while not preventing or discouraging appropriate innovation or change (such as
increased densities);

d) establish or maintain a strong sense of place, using the arrangement of streets, spaces, building
types and materials to create attractive, welcoming and distinctive places to live, work and visit;

e) optimise the potential of the site to accommodate and sustain an appropriate amount and mix of
development (including green and other public space) and support local facilities and transport
networks; and

f) create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote health and well-being, with
a high standard of amenity for existing and future users; and where crime and disorder, and the fear
of crime, do not undermine the quality of life or community cohesion and resilience.'

Policies D1, D3 and D4 of the London Plan (2021) require development proposals to be of high
quality and to enhance the local context by delivering buildings and spaces that positively respond to
local distinctiveness.

Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1: Strategic Policies (2012) Policy BE1 states 'The Council will require all
new development to improve and maintain the quality of the built environment in order to create
successful and sustainable neighbourhoods, where people enjoy living and working and that serve
the long-term needs of all residents. All new developments should achieve a high quality of design in
all new buildings, alterations, extensions and the public realm which enhances the local
distinctiveness of the area, contributes to community cohesion and a sense of place.'

Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020)
states: 'All development, including extensions, alterations and new buildings will be required to be
designed to the highest standards and, incorporate principles of good design including: i) harmonising
with the local context by taking into account the surrounding scale of development, height, mass and
bulk of adjacent structures; building plot sizes and widths, plot coverage and established street
patterns; building lines and setbacks, rooflines, streetscape rhythm, for example, gaps between
structures and other streetscape elements, such as degree of enclosure; architectural composition
and quality of detailing; local topography, views both from and to the site; and impact on neighbouring
open spaces and their environment.'

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 32



Policy DMHB 12 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020) re-
emphasises the need for new development to be well integrated with the surrounding area and
provides design criteria as to how this would be achieved.

The site is located within a residential area with dwellings located along the West Quay Drive to the
south and west of the main marina building. The marina building is also visible from within the marina
and canal itself therefore it is considered to be a prominent building albeit largely screened by the
presence of mature trees from more distant views beyond the marina moorings and West Quay Drive.

The existing building is approximately 9.5m high, 21m deep and 39m wide. The building has been
finished in cladding and tiling and is for the most part grey and brown. The proposed extended
building would be approximately 9.5m high, 21m deep and 39m wide. The building would be finished
in materials to match the existing building. It would also incorporate glazed balconies and dormers.

During the process of the application concerns were raised regarding the size of the proposed side
dormer. The dormer has since been reduced in size and split into two to ensure that it better
integrates with the existing building and does not dominate its roof. The additional balconies would
add to the existing contemporary design of the building and break up the extent of the width of the
front and rear facades. The proposed alteration to the roof form which is located between the main
gable which forms the western elevation, and the central gable involves a form of half hip introduced
which creates additional, habitable space within the upper floor roof.

Turning to the ground floor extensions, this will facilitate the relocation of the chandlery to the ground
floor where at present it is only the stairwells to provide access to the existing upper floor space which
are located on the ground floor. The extension would measure circa 70 sqm and would not extend
beyond the existing established building lines in terms of height, width and depth. Furthermore, the
extension is to be constructed using materials to match the existing building resulting in an extension
which is subordinate and integrates with the existing building in terms of appearance and function.

Due to the modest scale and materiality of the extensions proposed, it is considered that the
development would integrate well within this residential and marina setting. The comments received
during the public consultation period included objections relating to the scale of the extensions. Given
that the site is located entirely within the Green Belt, the scale of the extensions is required to be
modest in order to comply with the NPPF exceptions and demonstrate appropriate development.
Most of the extensions are contained within the envelope of the existing building and overall present
an increase in built form of 174 sqm (16.8%). The extensions also do not extend beyond the existing
established buildings lines therefore the scale of the extensions are appropriate.

If minded to approve the application, conditions pertaining to the submission of a detailed landscaping
scheme and materials shall be attached to the decision notice. Taking into consideration all of the
above, the proposed development would have an acceptable impact on the visual amenities of the
area. As such the application complies with Policies D1, D3 and D4 of the London Plan (2021),
Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1: Strategic Policies (2012) Policy BE1, Policies DMHB 11 and DMHB 12
of the Hillingdon Local Plan : Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020) and Paragraph 135
of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2023.

7.08 Impact on neighbours

Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management Policies (2020)
states that development proposals should not adversely impact on the amenity, daylight and sunlight
of adjacent properties and open space.

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 33



It is noted that the public consultation drew objections which referred to the potential impact upon
neighbouring residential properties which are located within close proximity to the site in terms of loss
of outlook, privacy and loss of daylight/sunlight.

The nearest residential property is located approximately 16 metres to the west of the western
elevation of the existing building. The ground floor extension is an infill extension and would not
extend beyond the depth of the existing western elevation. The alteration to the roof form which
involves the change to a form of half hip, would be located within the middle of the western gable and
the central gable and would not extend beyond the existing ridge line and therefore would not be
visible to No.47. Furthermore, the dormer would be located towards the eastern section of the
building and would not feature windows directed towards neighbouring properties within 21 metres.

Due to their location towards the centre or eastern side of the building, the proposed balconies and
rooflights would approximately be 28m from 47 and 48 Marina Approach and 50m from 11 Marina
Approach. Due to the separation distance between the new openings and balconies, the proposal
would not cause harmful loss of privacy to the mentioned neighbouring properties.

The separation distance between the site and its neighbours, as well as the fact that the ridgeline of
the resulting building would be the same as the ridgeline of the existing building, would ensure the
extensions cause no harmful loss of outlook to neighbouring properties.

The site is in mixed use and would continue to be post development, the addition of 4 properties in
this isolated waterside location would not result in an over intensification of the sites use which would
cause undue noise and disturbance to neighbours. Overall and for the reasons mentioned above the
proposed development would have an acceptable impact on the amenities of neighbouring
properties.

7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers
INTERNAL AMENITY

Policy DMHB 16: 'Housing Standards' of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2: Development Management
Policies (2020) states:

All housing development should have an adequate provision of internal space in order to provide an
appropriate living environment. To achieve this, all residential development or conversions should
meet or exceed the most up to date internal space standards.

The London Plan (2021) advises that 2b 3p flats set over 1 storey should provide future residents with
61sqm, 2b 4p properties are required to provide 70sqm and 1bed 1 person properties 39sgm. The
residential accommodation to be provided at the site is as follows:

2bed 3 person flat - 84 sgqm
2bed 4 person flat - 78 sqm
1 bed 1 person flat - 54 sqm
2bed 4 person flat - 72 sgm

The residential accommodation provided would meet required floorspace standards. Residents would
have habitable rooms with access to light and outlook. They would also have easy access to the
services within the marina. The accommodation provided is considered to be acceptable.

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 34



EXTERNAL AMENITY

Policy DMHB 18 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2: Development Management Policies (2020)
requires all new residential developments to provide good quality and usable private outdoor amenity
space. 20sgm of amenity space should be provided for 1 bed flats and 25sqm for two bed flats. As
such the proposed new residents should be provided with a minimum of 95 sqm of private, usable
and well-located amenity space.

The proposal would provide the follow:

2bed 3 person flat - 10 sgm
2bed 4 person flat - 15 sgm
1 bed 1 person flat - 9 sgm
2bed 4 person flat - 22 sgm

The proposal would provide a total of 56 sqgm thus would result in a shortfall of 39 sqm and would
therefore provide insufficient external amenity space for new residents in terms of Local Plan
standards. Notwithstanding this point, private amenity spaces would still be provided for new
residents. The applicants Design and Access Statement refers to the site being located within 5
minutes' walk to public open space which could be used to offset the shortfall in on-site provision.
Officers have undertaken a review of local open spaces within the local area and whether they are
within adequate walking distance from the site. To the north of the site is Willow Tree Pond and
Nature Reserve with Willow Tree Open Space just beyond this. To the south is an established
woodland and to the west is Yeading Playground all of which are within 5-10 minutes walking
distance. Finally, to the east is Craneleigh Park albeit occupants would need to locate a canal
crossing to access this public open space. Overall, Officers would agree that there is sufficient open
space to offset the shortfall in on-site provision.

Given the level of publicly accessible open space in this area, a reason for refusal relating to the on-
site shortfall of amenity space would not be considered robust enough to defend at appeal should the
Council have been minded to recommend refusal. Furthermore, the benefits of the scheme are
considered to outweigh the potential harm in this regard therefore despite the policy departure, the
proposal is considered to be acceptable on-balance.

7.10 Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Policy DMT 2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2: Development Management Policies (2020) states:
'Development proposals must ensure that:

i) safe and efficient vehicular access to the highway network is provided to the Council's standards;
ii) they do not contribute to the deterioration of air quality, noise or local amenity or safety of all road
users and residents;

iii) safe, secure and convenient access and facilities for cyclists and pedestrians are satisfactorily
accommodated in the design of highway and traffic management schemes;

iv) impacts on local amenity and congestion are minimised by routing through traffic by the most
direct means to the strategic road network, avoiding local distributor and access roads; and

v) there are suitable mitigation measures to address any traffic impacts in terms of capacity and
functions of existing and committed roads, including along roads or through junctions which are at
capacity.'

Policy DMT 5 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2: Development Management Policies (2020) states:

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 35



'A) Development proposals will be required to ensure that safe, direct and inclusive access for
pedestrians and cyclists is provided on the site connecting it to the wider network, including:

i) the retention and, where appropriate, enhancement of any existing pedestrian and cycle routes;

ii) the provision of a high quality and safe public realm or interface with the public realm, which
facilitates convenient and direct access to the site for pedestrian and cyclists;

iii) the provision of well signposted, attractive pedestrian and cycle routes separated from vehicular
traffic where possible; and

iv) the provision of cycle parking and changing facilities in accordance with Appendix C, Table 1 or, in
agreement with Council.'

Policy DMT 6 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2: Development Management Policies (2020) states:
'‘Development proposals must comply with the parking standards outlined in Appendix C Table 1 in
order to facilitate sustainable development and address issues relating to congestion and amenity.
The Council may agree to vary these requirements when:

i) the variance would not lead to a deleterious impact on street parking provision, congestion or local
amenity; and/or

ii) a transport appraisal and travel plan has been approved and parking provision is in accordance
with its recommendations.

PARKING

63 parking spaces currently exist at the site. 18 spaces are allocated for the sites commercial users
and 12 for residential moorings. The remaining 33 spaces are unallocated.

The London Plan (2021) advises that 1-2 bed dwellings in Outer London with a PTAL rating of 0-1
should be provided with up to 1.5 parking spaces. 6 functional parking spaces are therefore
considered to be required for the proposed development. 6 of the 33 unallocated spaces are to be
allocated for users of the new dwellings. The proposed parking provisions are therefore considered to
be acceptable. Taking into consideration these points, the proposal would cause no loss of parking to
the sites existing users and would provide sufficient parking space for users of the new flats,
alongside overflow parking space.

Notwithstanding the above, as set out in the internal comments section of this report, the parking
spaces to be dedicated to the development are illustrated on drawing reference WTMWQD_PLN_002
Rev B. Adequate details to demonstrate these spaces could be secured for the residential units
without compromising the use of the park for the other uses on site have been provided therefore a
condition to secure the spaces for the use of the residential units for the lifetime of the development is
sufficient.

Overall, taking into consideration the extent of parking spaces that exist at the site, it is considered
that adequate parking would be provided for all.

ELECTRIC CHARGING POINTS

Part G) of Policy T6 and part C) of Policy T6.1 of the London Plan (2021) state that all residential car

parking spaces must provide infrastructure for electric or Ultra-Low Emission vehicles. 2 ev charging

points are required and shown on the submitted plans. A condition has been recommended to secure
the electric vehicle charging points for the proposed dwellings, in the event of approval.

BICYCLE PARKING

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 36



Appendix C, Table 1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020)
requires the provision of cycle parking facilities for new residential units. 6 cycle parking spaces are
required and are shown on the submitted plans. Full details of the cycle storage design will be
secured through condition in the event of an approval.

REFUSE/RECYCLING COLLECTION

Policy DMHB 11 part (d) of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies
(2020) states that development proposals should make sufficient provision for well-designed internal
and external storage space for general, recycling and organic waste, with suitable access for
collection. Full details of the sites waste storage facilities will be secured through condition in the
event of an approval.

ACCESS

The site's existing access would be retained and utilised for the proposed development. Concerns
were raised regarding new residents walking on the existing access road. There is lighting along the
access road to ensure adequate levels of visibility for road users and walkers. Car parking is included
within the scheme to ensure that residents have the option of driving in and out of the site; limiting the
need to walk. It should also be noted that at present the site is in mixed use and when necessary its
users may walk to and from the site via the access road, as such the new residents and users of the
site would be provided with the same level of safety. Issues regarding access to the site are therefore
not considered to be reasons for refusing the application.

A condition is also recommended requiring the submission of a delivery and servicing plan to ensure
the sites commercial uses can continue to be serviced without conflict with new residents.

CONCLUSION

The Borough's Highways Officer has raised no objection to the proposed development, subject to
conditions which have been recommended for inclusion if the application is approved.

Overall, subject to the aforementioned conditions, it is concluded that the proposal would not
discernibly exacerbate congestion or parking stress, and would not raise any measurable highway
safety concerns, in accordance with the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management
Policies (2020), Policies DMT 1, DMT 2 and DMT 6 and Policies T4, T5 and T6 of the London Plan
(2021).

7.11 Urban design, access and security
Discussed in other sections of this report where relevant.

7.12 Disabled access
London Plan Policy D7 states:

To provide suitable housing and genuine choice for London's diverse population, including disabled
people, older people and families with young children, residential development must ensure that:

1) at least 10 per cent of dwellings (which are created via works to which Part M volume 1 of the
Building Regulations applies) meet Building Regulation requirement M4(3) 'wheelchair user dwellings'

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 37



2) all other dwellings (which are created via works to which Part M volume 1 of the Building
Regulations applies) meet Building Regulation requirement M4(2) 'accessible and adaptable
dwellings'.

No objection has been raised by the Council's Access Officer. Policy D7 of the London Plan (2021) is
not to be applied to conversions and extensions.

7.13 Provision of affordable & special needs housing
The scale of development is below the threshold where affordable housing would be required.

7.14 Trees, landscaping and Ecology
TREES

Policy DMHB 14: 'Trees and Landscaping' of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2: Development
Management Policies (2020) requires:

A) All developments will be expected to retain or enhance existing landscaping, trees, biodiversity or
other natural features of merit.

B) Development proposals will be required to provide a landscape scheme that includes hard and soft
landscaping appropriate to the character of the area, which supports and enhances biodiversity and
amenity particularly in areas deficient in green infrastructure.

C) Where space for ground level planting is limited, such as high rise buildings, the inclusion of living
walls and roofs will be expected where feasible.

D) Planning applications for proposals that would affect existing trees will be required to provide an
accurate tree survey showing the location, height, spread and species of trees. Where the tree survey
identifies trees of merit, tree root protection areas and an arboricultural method statement will be
required to show how the trees will be protected. Where trees are to be removed, proposals for
replanting of new trees on-site must be provided or include contributions to offsite provision.

Due to the nature of the works (extensions) and their siting (predominantly at first floor), as well as
their distance from trees, the development is unlikely to cause any harm to significant trees in the
area. In the event of the application being approved a landscaping scheme would be secured via
condition to ensure that appropriate landscaping is provided at the site.

ECOLOGY

Policy DMEI 7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020) states
that if development is proposed on or near to a site considered to have features of ecological or
geological value, applicants must submit appropriate surveys and assessments to demonstrate that
the proposed development will not have unacceptable effects. The development must provide a
positive contribution to the protection and enhancement of the site or feature of ecological value.

The development site neighbours the Yeading Brook Minet Country Park (a Nature Conservation
Site).

Trees and greenery surrounding the site would be retained. The development proposes no works
within the nature reserve or conservation site. The works would take place within the confines of the

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 38



existing building or upon existing hard standing around the building. In these locations they would
have no ecological harm.

A condition requiring a construction logistics and management plan, would be added to the
application in the event of an approval to ensure that noise, vehicle movements associated with
construction are limited and appropriately controlled.

Additionally, the application has been supported by a preliminary bat roost assessment, which was
undertaken by Cherryfield Ecology (January 2023). The assessment concludes that there were no
bats or evidence of bats found on site, and that the building provides negligible potential for roosting
bats due to the lack of roosting features such as gaps under the roofing tiles or gaps leading to the
loft voids. Furthermore activity and noise generated within the existing mixed use building would
cause noise, creating an unsuitable environment for bats.

The residential development would introduce a level of activity at evening and night time which may
not exist at present within the building due to its existing hours of operation. However it should be
noted that marina accommodates a number of residential and temporary moorings which would result
in a similar level of activity during the evening and night time. Given that these moorings are located
on the water any noise or light pollution from them would be considered more harmful than the
proposed development. A condition restricting the use of external lighting would be attached to the
decision notice in order to minimise any potential light spillage into the canal corridor which could
have a detrimental impact upon marine life.

The development site is located approximately 95m from the Willow Tree Pond Nature Reserve and
the proposed works are therefore considered to have no notable adverse impact on the Reserve.

Taking into consideration these points the proposal is considered to have an acceptable ecological
impact.

In the event of an approval an informative would be secured advising that should protected species
be found at the site, the applicant(s) must fulfil their duties under the Wildlife and Countryside Act
1981 (as amended) and the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010.

7.15 Sustainable waste management

Policy Sl 7 (Reducing waste and supporting the circular economy) and Policy D6 (Housing quality
and standards) of the London Plan require developments to be designed with adequate, flexible, and
easily accessible storage space and collection systems that support, as a minimum, the separate
collection of dry recyclables (at least card, paper, mixed plastics, metals, glass) and food.

Policy EM11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Strategic Policies (Sustainable Waste Management) states
that the Council will aim to reduce the amount of waste produced in the borough. To achieve this, the
Council will require all new developments to address waste management at all stages of a
development's life from design and construction through to the end use and activity on site.

The proposed plans do not indicate where waste will be stored and collected from for both the
retained uses and the new residential properties. A condition is suggested to be added to the decision
notice pertaining to the submission of waste storage and collection details.

7.16 Renewable energy / Sustainability
Policy S| 2 of the London Plan (2021) states residential development should achieve at least a 10%

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 39



improvement beyond Building Regulations 2013.

Policy DMEI 2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020)
requires all developments to make the fullest contribution to minimising carbon dioxide emissions in
accordance with the 2016 London Plan targets.

The proposed development is of a minor scale therefore whilst the principle of SI 2 (carbon reduction)
is applicable, the London Plan Policy applies more specifically to major scale applications. The
applicant is not required to submit an energy statement with the application or demonstrate a policy
level of on site savings. Notwithstanding this point, the modern construction of the development would
be considered as providing sufficient energy savings itself and therefore the development would
comply with the principles of the carbon saving development plan policies.

A condition would be secured requiring the proposed development to achieve as a minimum, a water
efficiency standard of no more than 110 litres per person per day maximum water consumption (to
include a fixed factor of water for outdoor use of 5 litres per person per day in accordance with the
option requirement defined within Approved Document G of the Building Regulations).

Subject to the above conditions, the proposal would be compliant with Policy Sl 2 of the London Plan
(2021) and Policy DMEI 2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies
(2020).

7.17 Flooding or Drainage Issues

Policy SI12 of the London Plan (2021) states that development proposals should ensure that flood
risk is minimised and mitigated, and that residual risk is addressed. Policy Sl 13 of the London Plan
(2021) states that development proposals should aim to achieve greenfield run-off rates and ensure
that surface water run-off is managed as close to its source as possible.

Policy DMEI 9 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020) states
that proposals that fail to make appropriate provision for flood risk mitigation, or which would increase
the risk or consequences of flooding, will be refused. The Policy also states 'A) Development
proposals in Flood Zones 2 and 3a will be required to demonstrate that there are no suitable sites
available in areas of lower flood risk. Where no appropriate sites are available, development should
be located on the areas of lowest flood risk within the site. Flood defences should provide protection
for the lifetime of the development. Finished floor levels should reflect the Environment Agency's
latest guidance on climate change. B) Development proposals in these areas will be required to
submit an appropriate level Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) to demonstrate that the development is
resilient to all sources of flooding.'

Policy DMEI 10 states that development within areas identified at risk from surface water flooding
which fail to make adequate provision for the control and reduction of surface water runoff rates will
be refused.

The development site is located within Flood Zone 1 and is therefore at low risk of flooding. In this
location the proposed first floor extensions and chandlery extension would have no adverse flooding
impact.

In the event of approval, a condition would be secured requiring the submission of a sustainable
water management scheme. The condition would ensure the proposal complies with Policies DMEI 9
and DMEI 10 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020),

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 40



Policies SI 12 and SI 13 of the London Plan (2021) and NPPF (2023).

7.18 Noise or Air Quality Issues
NOISE

Policy D14 of the London Plan (2021) states that in order to reduce, manage and mitigate noise to
improve health and quality of life, residential and non-aviation development proposals should manage
noise by avoiding significant adverse noise impacts on health and quality of life.

The proposed development would have no adverse noise impacts. The necessity to comply with
Building Regulation standards would ensure that the development is appropriately noise insulated.

AIR QUALITY
Local Plan Policy DMEI 14 states:

A) Development proposals should demonstrate appropriate reductions in emissions to sustain
compliance with and contribute towards meeting EU limit values and national air quality objectives for
pollutants. B) Development proposals should, as a minimum: i) be at least "air quality neutral; ii)
include sufficient mitigation to ensure there is no unacceptable risk from air pollution to sensitive
receptors, both existing and new; and iii) actively contribute towards the improvement of air quality,
especially within the Air Quality Management Area.

The development site is located within an Air Quality Management Area. Greenery within and
surrounding the site would be retained. The increased car parking movements associated with the
development would be limited when compared with the sites existing use and vehicle movement
capacity accommodated by its large car park, thus the development is unlikely to have any significant
adverse air quality impact. Additionally the provision of infrastructure for electric vehicles would
contribute positively to meeting air quality objectives as would the provision of Cycle parking which
would support sustainable means of transport to and from the site, reducing the need for emission
generating transport methods. The proposed parking does not exceed the London Plan maximum
parking standard and overall for the reasons mentioned above this minor development is considered
to be Air Quality neutral.

7.19 Comments on Public Consultations
The issues raised during the consultation process have been addressed in the sections above.

7.20 Planning obligations

The Council adopted its own Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) on August 1st 2014 and the
Hillingdon CIL charge for residential developments is £95 per square metre of additional floorspace.
This is in addition to the Mayoral CIL charge of £60 per sq metre.

The proposal involves the creation of residential units and is CIL liable.

7.21 Expediency of enforcement action
Not applicable to this application.

7.22 Other Issues
PLANT

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 41



It is noted that the existing plans illustrate a plant room is located at first floor level. The proposed
plans do not illustrate the re-location of this plant room and no evidence has been submitted to
demonstrate that plant equipment is no longer required or the uses within the building can function
without it. Furthermore, if the plant equipment does need to be re-located then its location should be
assessed as it may lead to an unacceptable visual impact or increase in noise levels which could be
detrimental to both local ecology and neigbouring residents. As such a condition pertaining to the
submission of revised floor plans illustrating the re-location of the plant room or evidence to
demonstrate that plant equipment is not required, is to be attached to the decision notice.

CONTAMINATED LAND

Policy DMEI 12 of the Local Plan (2020) states

'A) Proposals for development on potentially contaminated sites will be expected to be accompanied
by at least an initial study of the likely contaminants. The Council will support planning permission for
any development of land which is affected by contamination where it can be demonstrated that
contamination issues have been adequately assessed and the site can be safely remediated so that
the development can be made suitable for the proposed use.

B) Conditions will be imposed where planning permission is given for development on land affected
by contamination to ensure all the necessary remedial works are implemented, prior to
commencement of development.

C) Where initial studies reveal potentially harmful levels of contamination, either to human health or
controlled waters and other environmental features, full intrusive ground investigations and
remediation proposals will be expected prior to any approvals.

D) In some instances, where remedial works relate to an agreed set of measures such as the
management of ongoing remedial systems, or remediation of adjoining or other affected land, a S106
planning obligation will be sought.’

It is noted that during the public consultation contamination was raised as a concern. The marina site
itself is not indicated to be land at risk of possible contamination therefore a contaminated land
assessment or conditions pertaining to the submission of one post decision, is not required.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so far as
material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including regional and national
policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in accordance with all relevant
primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use of land in
the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning applications
adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also the guidance
contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent should not be
refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal. Planning conditions should
only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing the conditions are necessary, relevant to

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 42



planning, relevant to the development to be permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all
other respects. Where conditions are imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for
imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an agreement or
undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 are necessary to
make the development acceptable in planning terms. The obligations must be directly related to the
development and fairly and reasonably related to the scale and kind to the development (Regulation
122 of Community Infrastructure Levy 2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning applications to
have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of opportunities and foster
good relations between people who have different protected characteristics. The protected
characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or
belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should consider
whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a proposal when
compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic. Where equalities issues arise,
members should weigh up the equalities impact of the proposals against the other material
considerations relating to the planning application. Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive,
but the objective of advancing equalities must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an
application. The weight to be given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to
determine in all of the circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in particular
the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the protection of property and
the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be proportionate and achieve a fair balance
between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable.

10. CONCLUSION

Planning Permission is sought for the extension and conversion of the first floor and loft space to
create 3 x 2-bed and 1 x 1- bed flats. In addition, a ground floor extension is proposed for the
relocation of existing Chandlery.

The site is entirely located within the Green Belt, where development will be restricted in order to
protect openness and the quality of the land in accordance with it's original purpose. The proposal
has been reviewed robustly against the Green Belt related policies and is considered to propose
appropriate development within the Green Belt therefore no special circumstances are required.

In terms of design, the extensions are modest and will appear subordinate additions to the existing
building. Conditions are to be imposed to ensure that the materials used to construct the development
are of the highest quality. Furthermore the proposed development has been designed to ensure that
surrounding residents are no unduly harmed in terms of loss of daylight/sunlight and
overlooking/privacy.

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 43



The proposal would provide adequate internal levels of living accommodation. However the scheme
does fall short of the Local Plan's minimum external amenity space standards. Notwithstanding this
point Officers agree that there is adequate open space within a 5-10 minute walk from the site which
would offset the on-site shortfall. Whilst this policy conflict weighs against the development, this is
considered to be outweighed by the benefits of the proposal which includes the provision of new
homes on previously developed land, such development is supported by the Local Plan and London
Plan.

Finally the application has been reviewed by the Council's Highway Officer who has raised no
objection and a condition is to be attached to the decision notice to safeguard the 6 spaces proposed
for use by the new residential units for the lifetime of the development.

The benefits of the proposed development are therefore considered to outweigh the minor policy
conflict and it is recommended that planning permission be granted for the proposal, subject to
conditions.

11. Reference Documents

The Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (2012)

The Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020)
The Local Plan: Part 2 - Site Allocations and Designations (2020)
The West London Waste Plan (2015)

The London Plan (2021)

NPPF (2023)

Contact Officer: Haydon Richardson Telephone No: 01895 250230

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 44



Notes:

I:l Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2020 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

Willowtree Marina

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON
Residents Services
Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 01895 250111

Planning Application Ref:
46463/APP/2023/2279

Scale:

1:1,250

Planning Committee:

Minor Page 45

Date:
April 2024

™ILLINGDON

LONDON




This page is intentionally left blank



Address:

Development:

LBH Ref Nos:

Drawing Nos:

Date Plans received:

Date Application valid

1. SUMMARY

Agenda Item 7

Report of the Head of Development Management and Building Control

34, 36, 38 GREEN LANE NORTHWOOD

Partial demolition of ground floor space to the rear of number 38, and
amalgamation of number 36/38 to form a larger and more coherent retail unit on
the ground floor. Partial demolition of ground floor space to the rear of number
34 to facilitate the erection of a single storey E-Use workshop building. New
external staircase to retained upper floor residential units. Shop front to retail to
remain as existing.

77897/APP/2023/2663

19150-126
19150-127
19150-129
19150-101
19150-120
19150-102
19150-103
19150-104
19150-105
19150-106
19150-107
19150-109
19150-108
19150-110
19150-125
19150-122
19150-123
19150-124
19150-128

11-09-2023 Date(s) of Amendments(s):

11-09-2023

The site comprises three terraced buildings in a parade of eight mixed-use terraced properties with
ground floor retail and first floor residential/retail on the southern side of Green Lane. It is at the
western end of the Northwood (Green Lane) Town Centre and Conservation Area. The proposal
involves the demolition of the rear ground floor wings of 34 and 38 Green Lane, the demolition of an

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 47



outbuilding to the rear of 36 Green Lane, the erection of a single storey, pitched roofed workshop
(Class E(g)(iii)), the amalgamation (at ground floor) of 36 and 38 Green Lane.

There are 6 objections, including from Northwood Residents' Association relating mostly to loss of
retail viability and resultant harm to the area (including the loss of existing retail tenants) and harm to
the conservation area. There is also a petition against the proposal with 66 signatures.

The Council recently refused a similar application on this site (application ref: 77897/APP/2023/602).
The Council's Urban Design and Conservation Officer had objected to the previous scheme, and the
Council refused the application, because of concerns with the alterations to the shopfront and the
inappropriate design and location of the workshop. The shop front features are no longer proposed to
be altered and the inappropriate previously refused flat-roof design has been amended to an
acceptable pitched roof. While the orientation of the workshop remains as previously proposed, this
alone is not deemed to warrant a recommendation of refusal for the scheme and the Council's Urban
Design and Conservation Officer has raised no objection to this application.

The Council's Planning Policy Officer does not raise any objections or concerns to the loss of retail
floorspace (Class E) and the Council's Highways Officer has not objected or raised concerns on
highways grounds.

The application is recommended for approval, subject to planning conditions.

2. RECOMMENDATION

APPROVAL subiject to the following:

1. COM3 Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the date
of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2. COM4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete accordance with the
details shown on the submitted plans, numbers 19150-120; 19150-121; 19150-122; 19150-123;
19150-124; 19150-125; 19150-126; 19150-127; 19150-128; 19150-129 and shall thereafter be
retained/maintained for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions Hillingdon Local Plan Parts 1 (November
2012) and 2 (January 2020) and the London Plan (2021).

3. COM7 Materials (Submission)

Prior to the commencement of development, details of all materials and external surfaces shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the development

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 48



shall be constructed in accordance with the approved details and be retained as such.
Details should include information relating to make, product/type, colour and photographs/images.

REASON
To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with Policy DMHB
11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

4. COM9 Landscaping (car parking & refuse/cycle storage)

No development shall take place until a landscape scheme has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include: -

1. Details of Soft Landscaping

1.a Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),

1.b Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,

1.c Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities where
appropriate including pollution absorbing species.

2. Details of Hard Landscaping

2.a Refuse Storage

2.b Cycle Storage

2.c Means of enclosure/boundary treatments

2.d Car Parking Layouts (including one active electric vehicle charging point and two passive electric
vehicle charging points)

2.e Hard Surfacing Materials

2.f External Lighting

2.g Other structures (such as play equipment and furniture)

3. Living Walls and Roofs
3.a Details of the inclusion of living walls and roofs
3.b Justification as to why no part of the development can include living walls and roofs

4. Details of Landscape Maintenance

4.a Landscape Maintenance Schedule for a minimum period of 5 years.

4.b Proposals for the replacement of any tree, shrub, or area of surfing/seeding within the
landscaping scheme which dies or in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority becomes seriously
damaged or diseased.

5. Schedule for Implementation

6. Other
6.a Existing and proposed functional services above and below ground
6.b Proposed finishing levels or contours

The approved details shall be completed before the first use of the approved development and
thereafter maintained in full accordance with the approved details.

REASON
To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities of the
locality and provide adequate facilities in compliance with policies DMHB 11, DMHB 14, DMEI 1 and

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 49



DMT 6 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020) and Policies 5.11 (living walls and roofs) and 5.17
(refuse storage) of the London Plan (2021).

5. OM19 Construction Management Plan

Prior to the commencement of development, the applicant shall submit a demolition and construction
management plan to the Local Planning Authority for its approval. The plan shall detail:

(i) The phasing of development works.

(ii) The hours during which development works will occur.

(iii) A programme to demonstrate that the most valuable or potentially contaminating materials and
fittings can be removed safely and intact for later re-use or processing.

(iv) Measures to prevent mud and dirt tracking onto footways and adjoining roads (including wheel
washing facilities).

(v) Traffic management and access arrangements (vehicular and pedestrian) and parking provisions
for contractors during the development process (including measures to reduce the number of
construction vehicles accessing the site during peak hours).

(vi) Measures to reduce the impact of the development on local air quality and dust through
minimising emissions throughout the demolition and construction process.

(vii) The storage of demolition/construction materials on site.

The approved details shall be implemented and maintained throughout the duration of the demolition
and construction process.

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of surrounding areas in accordance with Policy T7 of The London Plan and
Policies DMT 1 and 2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

6. COM30 Contaminated Land

(i) The development hereby permitted shall not commence until a scheme to deal with contamination
has been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority (LPA). The scheme shall
include all of the following measures unless the LPA dispenses with any such requirement
specifically and in writing:

(a) A desk-top study carried out by a competent person to characterise the site and provide
information on the history of the site/surrounding area and to identify and evaluate all potential
sources of contamination and impacts on land and water and all other identified receptors relevant to
the site;

(b) A site investigation, including where relevant soil, soil gas, surface and groundwater
sampling, together with the results of analysis and risk assessment shall be carried out by a suitably
qualified and accredited consultant/contractor. The report should also clearly identify all risks,
limitations and recommendations for remedial measures to make the site suitable for the proposed
use.

(c) A written method statement providing details of the remediation scheme and how the
completion of the remedial works will be verified shall be agreed in writing with the LPA prior to
commencement.

(i) If during development or works contamination not addressed in the submitted remediation
scheme is identified, an addendum to the remediation scheme must be agreed with the LPA prior to
implementation; and

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 50



(i) Al works which form part of the remediation scheme shall be completed and a verification report
submitted to the Council's Environmental Protection Unit before any part of the development is
occupied or brought into use unless the LPA dispenses with any such requirement specifically and in
writing.

REASON

To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and neighbouring land
are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and ecological systems and the
development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other
offsite receptors in accordance with policies DMEI 11 and DMEI 12 Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2
(2020).

7. NONSC Non Standard Condition

Prior to occupation of the development hereby approved, the applicant shall submit a Refuse
Management Plan to the Local Planning Authority for approval. The plan shall include details of
refuse and recycling storage enclosure/s (which shall be separate for commercial and residential
uses) and shall detail if and/or how the refuse and recycling bins shall be moved to a predefined
collection point, together with details of a management company responsible for it. The approved
measures shall be implemented and maintained for so long as the development remains in
existence.

REASON

To ensure appropriate refuse storage is provided on site, to safeguard highway safety and to
safeguard the free flow of traffic, in accordance with Policy EM11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1
(2012) and Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 (2020).

INFORMATIVES

3. CONSIDERATIONS
3.1 Site and Locality

The site forms three properties on the southern side of Green Lane, forming the eastern end of a row
of eight 2.5 storey terraced buildings in mixed use (ground floor retail with residential above) at the
western end of the Green Lane Town Centre and Conservation Area. The site area extends to
2,000m2 and includes side vehicular access to a rear parking area providing rear/back of house
access (including to first floor residential properties) with a separate single storey building at the rear
boundary.

Similar town centre development predominates to the north and east, with Northwood Underground
Station 130m to the east. A Council-owned car park is adjacent to the west with lower density
residential development beyond.

Site Constraints

- Green Lane Northwood Town Centre

- Green Lane Northwood Primary Shopping Area

- Northwood Town Centre, Green Lane Conservation Area

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 51



- Flood Zone 1
- Potentially Contaminated Land
- PTAL Rating 3

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The proposal involves the following works:

- Demolition/removal of the rear of the ground floor (and associated structures) of 34-38 Green Lane
- New single storey, pitched detached workshop building at the rear of the site with three adjacent car
spaces

- Two new accesses stairs/landing to the rear of the existing first floor flats

- Associated works including new close boarded fencing, bin storage, cycle storage and other site
works

- Amalgamation of 36 and 38 Green Lane into one shop

3.3 Relevant Planning History

77897/APP/2023/602 34, 36, 38 Green Lane Northwood

Demolition of existing outbuilding and partial demolition of the ground floor of nos. 34 and 38.
Erection of an outbuilding for use as a workshop. Installation of an external staircase to retained
upper floor residential units. Amalgamation of ground floors of nos. 38 and 36 to form a combined
retail unit including a new shopfront.

Decision: 14-06-2023 Refused

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Application reference 77897/APP/2023/602 was refused 14-06-23 for the following reason:

By virtue of its box form design, orientation, appearance and disruption to the pattern and rhythm of
the linear parade of shops posed by the proposed workshop building and the removal of traditional
characteristics to the shopfront of 38 Green Lane, the development would fail to preserve or enhance
the character and appearance of the Northwood Town Centre, Green Lane Conservation Area. It
would result in less than substantial and unacceptable harm to the setting and character of the
Northwood Town Centre, Green Lane Conservation Area, as well as the visual amenity of the street
scene. When weighing the public benefits, these would not outweigh the identified harm. The
proposal is therefore contrary to Policies HE1 and BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One
Strategic Policies (2012), Policies DMHB 1, DMHB 4, and DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
2 - Development Management Policies (2020), Policies D3 and HC1 of the London Plan (2021), and
Chapters 12 and 16 of the National Planning Policy Framework (2021).

It is considered that the removal of proposed works to the shopfronts and the introduction of a pitched
roof to the previously flat roof design of the workshop building has overcome the previous reasons for
refusal, as set out within this report.

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 52



4. Planning Policies and Standards

Planning law requires that applications for planning permission be determined in accordance with the
development plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

The Development Plan for the London Borough of Hillingdon currently consists of the following
documents:

- The Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (2012)

- The Local Plan Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020)
- The Local Plan Part 2 - Site Allocations and Designations (2020)

- The West London Waste Plan (2015)

- The London Plan (2021)

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2023) is also a material consideration in planning
decisions, as well as relevant supplementary planning documents and guidance.

The Northwood Town Centre, Green Lane Conservation Area Appraisal has also formed part of the
assessment.

Local Plan Designation and London Plan
The following Local Plan Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment
PT1.E1  (2012) Managing the Supply of Employment Land
PT1.E5 (2012) Town and Local Centres

PT1.EM1 (2012) Sustainable Waste Management
1

PT1.EM6 (2012) Flood Risk Management
PT1.EM7 (2012) Biodiversity and Geological Conservation
PT1.EM8 (2012) Land, Water, Air and Noise

PT1.HE1 (2012) Heritage

Part 2 Policies:

LPP D14 (2021) Noise

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 53



LPP D4 (2021) Delivering good design

LPP D5 (2021) Inclusive design

LPP D8 (2021) Public realm

LPP E4 (2021) Land for industry, logistics and services to support London's economic function
LPP E6 (2021) Locally Significant Industrial Sites

LPP G6 (2021) Biodiversity and access to nature

LPP GG2 (2021) Making the best use of land

LPP HC1 (2021) Heritage conservation and growth

LPP SD6 (2021) Town centres and high streets

LPP SD7 (2021) Town centres: development principles and Development Plan Documents
LPP SI12 (2021) Flood risk management

LPP SI13 (2021) Sustainable drainage

LPP SI7 (2021) Reducing waste and supporting the circular economy
LPP T5 (2021) Cycling

LPP T6 (2021) Car parking

LPP T6.3 (2021) Retail parking

LPP T6.5 (2021) Non-residential disabled persons parking

LPP T7 (2021) Deliveries, servicing and construction

DMEI 14  Air Quality

DMEI 7  Biodiversity Protection and Enhancement

DMEI9 Management of Flood Risk

DMHB 1 Heritage Assets

DMHB 13 Shopfronts

DMHB  Advertisements and Shop Signage
13A

DMHB 4 Conservation Areas
DMT 1 Managing Transport Impacts

DMT 2  Highways Impacts

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 54



DMT 5  Pedestrians and Cyclists

DMT 6  Vehicle Parking

DMTC 1 Town Centre Development

DMTC 2 Primary and Secondary Shopping Areas

DMTC 3 Maintaining the Viability of Local Centres and Local Parades
DMTC 4 Amenity and Town Centre Uses

NPPF11 NPPF 2021 - Making effective use of land

NPPF12 NPPF 2021 - Achieving well-designed places

NPPF14 NPPF 2021 - Meeting the challenge of climate change flooding
NPPF15 NPPF 2021 - Conserving and enhancing the natural environment
NPPF16 NPPF 2021 - Conserving & enhancing the historic environment
NPPF7  NPPF 2021 - Ensuring the vitality of town centres

NPPF9  NPPF 2021 - Promoting sustainable transport

5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1  Advertisement Expiry Date: 18th October 2023
5.2  Site Notice Expiry Date: 20th October 2023

6. Consultations

External Consultees
Neighbour consultation

A total of 73 residents and the Northwood Residents Association were consulted between 15.09.2023 -
06.10.2023 with a Conservation Area site notice installed from 27.09.2023 - 18.10.2023 and an
advertisement in the local press from 27.09.2023 - 18.10.2023.

A total of six submissions and one from Northwood Residents Association were received. Additionally, a
petition with 66 signatures was received requesting refusal of the application. The submissions raised the
following summarised issues:

- Works will affect the existing local businesses and employment

- Loss of existing business floorspace

- Loss of existing units and businesses

- Reduction in floorspace and amalgamation of 36 and 38 Green Lane will affect vitality of the area

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 55



- The loss of floorspace creates a retail unit that is not supportive of the town centre location
- Loss of retail unit, in conflict with policy
- Workshop is unrelated to the size and scale of the town centre

Planning Officer Comments: The net loss in retail floorspace is not explicitly contrary to policy and may be
considered partly offset by the increase in light industrial floor area. Both retail and the proposed workshop
for light industrial use are within Use Class E.

- Loss of floorspace and depth to the retail units will affect cumulative viability and therefore the survival of
the conservation area
- Will affect the heritage significance of the area

The petition cited the following topic and desired outcome:

"The block has particular historic value and so the original units should be retained. The existing
businesses do not need or want any change to the retail units they occupy. Reducing the size of the retail
units and taking out viable commercial space would affect the businesses that occupy these premises and
reduce the quality of services they provide for the community".

Planning Officer Comments: The Council's Urban Design and Conservation Officers are satisfied that the
proposed design would be acceptable in terms of heritage, conservation, design, appearance, and impact
on the character of the surrounding area.

Internal Consultees

Conservation and Urban Design Officer: The proposed development has addressed the reasons for
refusing the previous planning application (77897/APP/2023/602). This proposed scheme omits the
unacceptable alterations to the shopfront and introduces an appropriate pitched roof to the workshop
instead of the previously refused flat roof. As such, the proposed development is acceptable with regards
to conservation and design.

The Highways and Planning Policy Officers did not object to the previously refused proposal (ref:
77897/APP/2023/602). Shop front alterations are no longer proposed, and the proposed workshop would
have a pitched roof instead of a flat roof. Otherwise, the proposal remains the same as the previous
scheme. Therefore, the internal Highways' and Planning Policy Officer's 'no objection' comments remain
applicable to this application.

7.  MAIN PLANNING ISSUES

7.01 The principle of the development
- Loss of Retail

Policy SD6 of the London Plan is a strategic policy that notes that the vitality and viability of London's
varied town centres should be promoted and enhanced by encouraging strong, resilient, accessible
and inclusive hubs with a diverse range of uses that meet the needs of Londoners, and strengthen
the role of town centres as a main focus for Londoners' sense of place and local identity in the capital.
The adaptation and diversification of town centres should be supported in response to the challenges
and opportunities presented by multi-channel shopping and changes in technology and consumer

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 56



behaviour, including improved management of servicing and deliveries.

Policy SD7 of the London Plan aims to ensure that commercial floorspace relates to the size and the
role and function of a town centre and its catchment, is appropriately located and fit for purpose, with
at least basic fit-out and not compromised in terms of layout, street frontage, floor to ceiling heights
and servicing, with efficient delivery and servicing in a way that minimises negative impacts on the
environment, public realm, the safety of all road users, and the amenity of neighbouring residents. It
also aims to support the diversity of town centres by providing a range of commercial unit sizes,
particularly on larger-scale developments.

Policy E9 of the London Plan aims to support convenience retail in all town centres to secure
inclusive neighbourhoods as well as provide a policy framework to enhance local and neighbourhood
shopping facilities and prevent the loss of retail and related facilities that provide essential
convenience and specialist shopping.

Policy DMTC 1 of Hillingdon's Local Plan Part 2 also supports 'main town centre uses' where the
development proposal is consistent with the scale and function of the centre with adequate width and
depth of floorspace and appropriate servicing arrangements have been provided.

Policy DMTC 2 of Hillingdon's Local Plan Part 2 supports the provision of ground floor retail (and
other specified town centre uses) provided that a minimum of 70% of the frontage is retained in retail
use; the proposed use will not result in a separation of Class A1 uses of no more than 12m
interruption in frontage of A1 shops or a concentration of non retail uses which could be considered to
cause harm to the vitality and vibrancy of the town centre; and compliance with other relevant local
plan policies.

Whilst there is a clear intent to avoid the loss of retail within designated town centres and parades,
there is no actual policy against the loss of retail floorspace, net or otherwise, in a town centre. There
is also no policy direction against shop amalgamation.

The three existing retail units have internal floorspaces of 115m2, 138m2 and 73m2, with depths of
about 25m. The proposal involves the demolition of the rear parts of all three buildings and the
internal walls between 36 and 38 Green Lane to allow the amalgamation of these two units. It results
in two retail units of 66m2 and 131m2. This is a net loss of one retail space and 129m2 (in total
floorspace terms).

It appears that the amalgamation of 36 and 38 Green Lane is an offset against the net loss of retail
floorspace. At present, 38 Green Lane is 4.2m wide at its entrance but narrows to 2.6m. This is
somewhat prohibitive as a retail space. Widening the space through amalgamation with 36 Green
Lane offers a more flexible and attractive retail space with a double frontage. There would not be any
loss in retail frontage as a result of the proposal.

The depth of the retail units is reduced from 26m at 34 Green Lane, 31m at 36 Green Lane and 24m
at 38 Green Lane to 15m within both units. In terms of maintaining depth to ensure flexibility and
viability in use, there are no significant constraints and the resultant units would be similar in
depth/area to the ground floor premises operating at 24 and 26 Green Lane. Overall, the net loss is
noted, and is unfortunate, but there are clear benefits with the refurbishment of the existing spaces to
be retained and the additional width provided within 36-38 Green Lane.

Therefore, the loss of retail floor space and the amalgamation of 36 and 38 to form one retail unit is

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 57



acceptable in principle, subject to compliance with wider planning policies.
- Light Industrial Use

Policy E7 of the London Plan requires a proactive approach and encouragement for the intensification
of business uses through introduction of small units, amongst other factors. Policy DME1 of the Local
Plan will support light industrial within Locally Significant Employment Locations (LSELSs).

There is no explicit policy encouragement towards or against the provision of light industrial uses in
town centre locations and the provision of 44m2 of light industrial floorspace is not opposed in
principle. In principle, the proposed workshop could provide a service that is compatible and
complementary to the area, particularly given the back land location behind the street frontage. It is
also recognised in the planning use class order (amended 1st August 2021) that any light industrial
use that is capable of being carried out in a residential area (as proposed on the application form) is
Class E, the same as retail shops or any other service appropriate to this commercial locality. On this
basis, no objection is raised to the principle of the proposed workshop in this location, subject to
compliance with wider planning policies.

- Conclusion

Paragraph 90 of the NPPF supports the role that town centres play at the heart of local communities,
by taking a positive approach to their growth, management and adaptation. The proposal involves a
loss of retail floorspace and provision of workshop floorspace for a net loss overall. Whilst this is
generally unusual, it is not a policy departure and the associated refurbishment of the premises,
increased flexibility of the retail space and diversity of use weighs in favour. Therefore, the principle of
development is acceptable, subject to compliance with wider planning policies.

7.02 Density of the proposed development
Not applicable.

7.03 Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character
Refer to Section 7.07.

7.04 Airport safeguarding
Not applicable.

7.05 Impact on the green belt
Not applicable.

7.06 Environmental Impact
Not applicable.

7.07 Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1 - Strategic Policies (2012) seeks a quality of design
that enhances and contributes to the area in terms of form, scale and materials, is appropriate to the
identity and context of the townscape and would improve the quality of the public realm and respect
local character.

Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020) states that new development will be

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 58



required to be designed to the highest standards and incorporate principles of good design, including
harmony in consideration of the height of surrounding structures. Policy DMHB 12 of the same plan
requires integration with the surrounding area.

The site is within the Northwood Town Centre, Green Lane Conservation Area and the Council has a
duty to pay special attention to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or
appearance of the Conservation Area, including its setting (Section 72 of the Planning (Listed
Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990). Chapter 16 of the NPPF requires consideration of the
harm to the significance of the Conservation Area.

Policy DMHB 4 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020) seeks to ensure that development within a
Conservation Area preserves or enhances the character or appearance of the area, including though
high quality design and resisting the loss of buildings and features. Policy HC1 of the London Plan
(2021) seeks to conserve significance, by being sympathetic to the assets' significance and
appreciation within their surroundings.

The Conservation Area Appraisal notes that The Pavement on the south side was the first section of
shops to be completed (visible in 1914 ordinance maps) and the parades of shops are tightly packed.
It is less flamboyant than its later neighbours. The parade is two and half storeys with shops on the
ground floor with a red brick first floor with yellow brick decorative courses and dormer windows in the
attic under slate roofs.

There is also reference to an alley that runs behind, and an interesting surviving outbuilding which is
an early Victorian stable/workshop at the end of the alley. It is constructed of London stock brick with
slate roofs and has three pitched roof dormers breaking through the eaves. This building falls outside
of the application site. The appraisal notes that the buildings make a positive contribution to the
historic and architectural character and appearance of the conservation area.

- To the rear

Notwithstanding the above appraisal, the rear of the buildings at 24-48 Green Lane is a haphazard
collection of rear extensions of varying form and materials that have a clear servicing or back-of-
house appearance. These extensions offer little in terms of a positive setting for the conservation
area. Therefore, the demolition of these structures is not opposed.

The replacement with a modest, detached, pitched-roof, single-storey building is considered to be
acceptable. While a reorientation to match the other rear buildings/extension in the terrace would be
preferable this is not deemed sufficient to warrant a recommendation for refusal.

- To the street

The previously refused application (ref: 77897/APP/2023/602) involved new doors to 36 and a new
shopfront to 38 Green Lane involving the removal of the door and the provision of bi-fold doors much
the same as 36 Green Lane. The Council's Conservation Officer was opposed to these works with the
loss of pilasters and corbel brackets harmful to the character and form of the parade of retail
premises and the Conservation Area as a whole. Alterations to the shopfront are not proposed under
this scheme. As such, previous shopfront concerns have been addressed.

- Conclusion

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 59



This application has addressed the previous design-based reasons for refusals.

The Council's Urban Design and Conservation Officer has been consulted on the application and
considers the proposed design acceptable.

The proposed development would preserve the character and appearance of the Northwood Town
Centre, Green Lane Conservation Area, and the visual amenity of the street scene.

The proposal would comply with the aims of Policies HE1 and BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
One Strategic Policies (2012), Policies DMHB 1, DMHB 4, and DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020), Policies D3 and HC1 of the London Plan (2021),
and Chapters 12 and 16 of the National Planning Policy Framework (2023).

7.08 Impact on neighbours

Policy DMHB 11 and Policy EM8 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (part 2 and part 1 respectively) seek to
ensure a satisfactory relationship with adjacent dwellings and no unacceptable loss of outlook,
amenity, daylight and sunlight to neighbouring occupiers or impacts of noise, odour, emissions, safety
and security, refuse, parking or traffic congestion. Policy D14 of the London Plan (2021) aims to
reduce, manage and mitigate noise to improve health and quality of life by avoiding significant
adverse noise impacts on health and quality of life.

The proposal involves a net reduction in building footprint with the footprint of the new workshop
building well removed from the existing retail and residential units, such that there is no additional
dominance or loss of light.

The uses within the main building remain unchanged and the premise of the use class of the new
workshop building is that the use is compatible with a residential area. Further, the openings are to
the south, away from the existing retail and residential units. Whilst there are offices to the rear and
residential properties beyond, the separation distance is appropriate to protect amenity.

New access stairs to each of the units, including a new shared landing for 34 and 36 Green Lane
would, in theory, open up some sightlines to neighbours but when compared with the existing
situation, there is no significant change and no objection raised.

7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers
Not applicable.

7.10 Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety
Site Characteristics

The site forms part of a 1930's shopping parade located within Green Lane in Northwood and the
surroundings consist of a mix of commercial and residential uses.

It is proposed to reconfigure and amalgamate two established retail units at 36 and 38 Green Lane to
form a single larger commercial unit with the erection of a small-scale workshop unit located to the
rear of the site. Demolition of an existing outbuilding and partial demolition of the ground floor
elements of 34 and 38 would be necessary to facilitate the proposal.

An established access located to the side of no. 38 is to remain to serve the rear of the site envelope
affording access to 3 parking spaces and 6 formal cycle parking spaces.

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 60



The site exhibits a public transport accessibility level (PTAL) of 3 which is considered as moderate,
but the Council's Highways Officer has advised that in practice the 'real world' PTAL may be
somewhat higher than numerically depicted. This is due to the relative proximity of Northwood
London Underground Station and a plethora of local bus services operating within the locality. There
are extensive parking controls on the surrounding roadways exampled by double yellow lines and
8am to 6.30pm - Monday to Saturday Pay & Display facilities.

Vehicular Trip Generation

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 Policies DMT 1 and DMT 2 require the council to consider whether the
traffic generated by proposed developments is acceptable in terms of the local highway and junction
capacity, traffic flows and conditions of general highway or pedestrian safety.

The Council's Highways Officer has advised that as a consequence of the relatively small scale of
development and limited on-plot parking, any vehicular trip generation uplift is predicted to be
negligible and therefore does not give rise to any specific highway concerns.

Car Parking

Policy DMT 6 of the Local Plan requires compliance with the parking standards unless it is
demonstrated that a deviation would not result in a deleterious impact on the surrounding road
network.

It is apparent that the three existing retail units and the two residential units are not provided with any
formal car parking. There is a substandard potential parking space at the rear of 34 Green Lane,
which is not counted because of its inadequate length. It would then follow that any reduction in retail
floorspace would not present any additional parking issue.

The workshop space is required to provide three spaces, with the Local Plan specifying two spaces
plus one space per 50-100m2 of floorspace. The proposal includes three car spaces for the workshop
use which represents compliance with the parking standard.

This moderate level of provision is further supported by the aforementioned good 'real world' transport
links and local parking controls in the area which act as a parking constraint and therefore encourage
sustainable travel to and from the site. It is also noted that there is a public car park close to the site.

EV charging amounting to one active and two passive charging points would be secured by condition
in the event of an approval.

In light of the above, the proposed level of parking is considered acceptable.
Cycle Parking

Policy DMT 5 of the Hillingdon Local Plan - Part 2 (2020) requires compliance with the cycle parking
standards. The retail units are reduced in floorspace and the residential units are unchanged, such
that there are no additional cycle parking requirements. The workshop use generates the need for
one space, though the Highways Officer recommends three spaces be provided on the basis of the
mixed use of the site.

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 61



Three cycle racks, providing parking for six cycles, are provided at the rear of the residential units.
This would be an improvement on the existing situation and while there is only a requirement for one
space, the cycle parking could be shared by the workshop and existing residences (or even the retail
units). The cycle parking is accessible, located in a back of house location alongside the residential
entrances but would need to be made secure and sheltered. An allocation strategy, including one
space allocated to the workshop use, as well as details of secure and covered bike shelters could be
secured by condition in the event of an approval.

Access

Chapter 9 of the NPPF and Policy T4 of the London Plan (2021) states that development proposals
should not increase road danger and that development proposals should not be refused unless
highways impacts are severe.

The existing alleyway/driveway serving the rear of the site is single width and serves perhaps ten
formal parking spaces and a number of additional informal or ad hoc parking spaces. The proposal
for three additional parking spaces would add to the trip generation along this single lane access.
However, the Highways Officer has advised that with the low level of traffic (three proposed spaces),
the likelihood of conflict is very low. In itself, this is a limiting factor in terms of overall activity to and
from the site. Coupled with the stringent waiting restrictions around the area that would inherently
restrict general activity by deterring private car travel to and from the address without envisaged
measurable harm, no concerns are raised with access. In terms of manoeuvrability within the car
park, there is sufficient space and visibility for turning and forward movement from the site.

Servicing

There is a relatively ad hoc servicing arrangement at the rear of the site for the existing retail units
with the greater likelihood that most deliveries would occur at the street front.

The proposed workshop building would alter this rear servicing arrangement by appearing to reduce
accessibility to the retail units from the rear. However, the existing access to the rear of these
properties is already somewhat compromised, with either no direct access or restricted access down
narrow passage ways. The proposal would introduce a more formal and clearly marked out
arrangement with the car parking spaces. Any potential impact to servicing is viewed as either an
improvement, commensurate or so minimal as not to warrant concern.

Construction Management Plan

A Construction Management Plan would be a requirement given the constraints and sensitivities of
the immediate road network in order to avoid/minimise potential detriment to the public realm.
Continued and safe pedestrian and vehicular access would also need to be maintained to the rear of
the premises during the construction period. This would be conditioned in the event of an approval.

7.11 Urban design, access and security

Paragraph 96 of the NPPF and Policy DMHB 15 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020) require
healthy, inclusive and safe places so that crime and disorder, and the fear of crime, do not undermine
the quality of life or community cohesion. There are no objections on these grounds.

7.12 Disabled access
Policy D5 of the London Plan requires accessible and inclusive design that is convenient and

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 62



welcoming with no disabling barriers, providing independent access without additional undue effort,
separation or special treatment.

The amalgamation of the retail units at 36 and 38 Green Lane will improve accessibility as a small
step to the existing retail unit at 36 Green Lane exists. Access to 34 Green Lane will remain
unchanged and the new access points to the existing residential units will remain via staircases. The
workshop can be designed in a way that it is fully accessible such that no objection is raised.

7.13 Provision of affordable & special needs housing
Not applicable.

7.14 Trees, landscaping and Ecology
No impact.

7.15 Sustainable waste management

Policy EM11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1 (2012) refers to the minimisation of waste. As part of
the redevelopment at the rear of the site, a new bin store is positioned underneath the staircase at the
eastern end of the site. It is intended to serve the first floor residential properties at the site, along with
the three ground floor retail premises.

The dimensions appear inadequate for the likely waste generation from five properties. Also refuse
storage for residential units should be kept separate from commercial uses. However, given the
available space between the workshop and the rear of the retail buildings, there is adequate space for
suitably located and separate (between commercial and residential) bin storage areas that would
protect the character of the area and neighbour amenity. This could be conditioned.

In the event of an approval, a condition would be included requiring details of separate residential and
commercial refuse and recycling storage and collection arrangements.

7.16 Renewable energy / Sustainability

Policies BE1 and DMEI 2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (Part 1 and Part 2 respectively) seek to achieve
reductions in carbon dioxide emissions through energy efficient design and effective use of low and
zero carbon technologies, including the use of Sustainable Urban Drainage Strategies, water
efficiency and sustainable design and construction techniques to increase the re-use and recycling of
construction, demolition and excavation waste and reduce the amount disposed to landfill.

No such details have been submitted. However, given the relatively modest nature of the construction
works and the open plan form of the modest workshop building, there are limited opportunities for
sustainability measures beyond what is required of building regulations. On this basis, no objections
are raised.

7.17 Flooding or Drainage Issues
Flooding

Policy S112 of the London Plan (2021) states that development proposals should ensure that flood

risk is minimised and mitigated, and that residual risk is addressed. The site is in Flood Zone 1 with
no identified surface flooding. The proposed workshop use is acceptable on flooding grounds. The

proposal is therefore acceptable.

Drainage

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 63



Policy SI13 of the London Plan (2021) states that development proposals should aim to achieve
greenfield run-off rates and ensure that surface water run-off is managed as close to its source as
possible. Policy DMEI 10 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020) states that developments are
required to include a drainage assessment demonstrating that appropriate sustainable drainage
systems (SuDS) have been incorporated.

The site is not in a Critical Drainage Area, not shown to be at risk from surface flooding and there is a
net reduction in building footprint. Subject to details of hard or soft landscaping in the area between
the workshop and the rear of the retail buildings to ensure that there is adequate on site infiltration, as
part of broader drainage details, there is unlikely to be any adverse drainage issues. These details
could be secured by condition in the event of an approval.

7.18 Noise or Air Quality Issues

Policy DMEI 14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020) states that development should
demonstrate appropriate reductions in emissions to sustain compliance with and contribute towards
meeting EU limit values and national air quality objectives for pollutants. The site does not fall within
the Air Quality Management Area, and given the relatively minor scale of development and continued
uses, no concerns are raised.

7.19 Comments on Public Consultations
Refer to Section 6.

7.20 Planning obligations
Not applicable.

7.21 Expediency of enforcement action
None applicable.

7.22 Other Issues
Contaminated Land

The site is located on land identified as potentially contaminated. Given that the development would
involve demolition to accommodate new built development in a town centre location, it is unlikely that
there would be any concerns with contaminated land that could not be remediated. Therefore, in the
event of an approval the appropriate conditions for investigation and remediation would be included.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor
General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so far as
material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including regional and national
policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in accordance with all relevant
primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use of land in
the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the application concerned.

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 64



Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning applications
adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also the guidance
contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent should not be
refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal. Planning conditions should
only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing the conditions are necessary, relevant to
planning, relevant to the development to be permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all
other respects. Where conditions are imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for
imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an agreement or
undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 are necessary to
make the development acceptable in planning terms. The obligations must be directly related to the
development and fairly and reasonably related to the scale and kind to the development (Regulation
122 of Community Infrastructure Levy 2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning applications to
have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of opportunities and foster
good relations between people who have different protected characteristics. The protected
characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or
belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should consider
whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a proposal when
compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic. Where equalities issues arise,
members should weigh up the equalities impact of the proposals against the other material
considerations relating to the planning application. Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive,
but the objective of advancing equalities must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an
application. The weight to be given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to
determine in all of the circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in particular
the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the protection of property and
the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be proportionate and achieve a fair balance
between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable.

10. CONCLUSION

The proposed scheme has been amended from that previously refused and is now deemed to comply
with national, regional, and local planning policies and guidance. It is, therefore, recommended that
the application be approved subject to planning conditions.

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 65



11. Reference Documents
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management Policies (January 2020)
The London Plan (2021)
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2023)
National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)
Technical Housing Standards - Nationally Described Space Standard (2015) (as amended)

Contact Officer: Daniel Ambrose Telephone No: 01895 250230

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 66



Vo

VA - -~

WIOYLN

w3

Car Park

Notes:

I:l Site boundary

@@
! 20 to 28
II \\\
N -=T IR
e - AN
P LN

Pinncale
Apartments

Police Station
(dis)

Site Address:

' '.
\Noﬂhwood\@ v
Methodist Chur

Northwood
and Pinner
Liberal
Synagogue

\

@
N ) War
/Memurial e
. e
. P
4 ’

,

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the

34, 36, 38 Green Lane

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services

Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 01895 250111

Copyright, Designs and Patents Planning Application Ref: Scale:

Act 1988 (the Act). 77897/APP/2023/2663 1:1,250

Unless the Act provides a relevant

exception to copyright. Planning Committee: Date:
© Crown copyright and database
rights 2020 Ordnance Survey i April 2024
o003 Minor Page 67 p e




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 8

Report of the Head of Development Management and Building Control

Address: 90 LONG LANE ICKENHAM

Development: Demolition of the existing detached, single dwelling and the erection of a
building consisting of 9 no. two-bedroom flats, with associated parking and
amenities.

LBH Ref Nos: 8905/APP/2023/2419

Drawing Nos: 10523/Eles (Existing elevations)

3321-05 (Proposed upper floor plans and roof plan)
Arboricultural Impact Assessment Ref TH3988
3321-01

3321-02

3321-03 Rev A

3321-04 Rev A

150523/Topo

3321-06

3321-07 Rev A

150523/Topo

150523/Grd

3321-SK1

Design and access statement dated July 2023

Date Plans received: 11-08-2023 Date(s) of Amendments(s):

Date Application valid  11-08-2023

1. SUMMARY

The application seeks full planning consent for the demolition of the existing detached, single,
dwelling and the erection of a building consisting of 9 no. two-bedroom flats, with associated parking
and amenities. Given the recent limited introduction of flatted developments on Long Lane, most
notably at No.88 Long Lane, the demolition of the existing property is on balance, acceptable, in
principle.

In the absence of any family sized flats (i.e. three-bedrooms or more), the proposal has failed to
demonstrate that the development would provide a suitable housing mix. Given the depth, scale and
massing of the proposal, the neighbouring occupiers would experience a sense of enclosure and
overbearing impact. In the absence of a BRE daylight/sunlight study, the proposal fails to
demonstrate that it would not result in an unacceptable loss of light or cause overshadowing issues
for the existing occupiers. In addition, given the siting, size, width, scale, massing and design, the
proposed development would be detrimental to the character, appearance and visual amenities of the

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 69



street scene and the setting of the Ickenham Village Conservation Area. Overall, the public benefits
would fall short of outweighing the 'less than substantial harm' to the Ickenham Village Conservation
Area.

It is considered that the quantity and quality of internal and external amenity space being provided
would be sufficient to serve the sizes and number of proposed dwellings at the site. However,
Highways have raised objections given the proposal would fail to provide acceptable pedestrian,
cycle and vehicular access to the application site. Moreover, the proposal fails to demonstrate how it
would achieve high standards of fire safety and emergency evacuation arrangements.

The removal of category A and B trees to the front of the site has not been fully justified. Their
removal is needed to implement development and given that most of these trees are in good/normal
physical and structural condition it has not been fully justified. These trees provide a level of value to
the local character and contribute to biodiversity and habitat.

In the absence of a detailed fire statement or comprehensive plan demonstrating highest standards of
fire safety, it has not been possible to assess whether the scheme would meet the criteria set out in
Policy D12 of the London Plan

It is therefore recommended that the application be refused for the reasons set out in the following
sections of this Committee Report.

2. RECOMMENDATION

REFUSAL for the following reasons:

1.  NON2 Housing mix

The proposed development fails to provide any three or more bedroom (family sized) units. Robust
justification has not been provided to demonstrate that the provision of family sized units would be
unsuitable or unviable. The proposal would therefore not provide a suitable mix of housing to support
sustainable, inclusive and mixed communities contrary to Policy DMH 2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020), Policy H10 of the London Plan (2021) and the
National Planning Policy Framework (2023).

2. NON2 Character and appearance

The proposed development, by reason of its siting, size, width, scale, massing and overall design
would result in an incongruous visually prominent form of development that would fail to harmonise
with the character and architectural composition of the surrounding properties, resulting in a visually
dominant building which would be detrimental to the character, appearance and visual amenity of the
street scene and the setting of Ickenham Village Conservation Area. The proposal therefore conflicts
with Policies BE1 and HE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (2012), Policies
DMHB 1, DMHB 4, DMHB 11 and DMHB 12 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development
Management Policies (2020), Policies HC1, D1, D3 and D4 of the London Plan (2021) and the NPPF
(2023).

3. NON2 Neighbouring amenity impacts

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 70



Due to its depth, scale, bulk, siting and overall design, the proposed development would have an
overbearing impact on the adjoining residents leading to a harmful sense of enclosure and loss of
outlook to the residents of Nos 88 and 92 Long Lane. Furthermore, in the absence of a BRE daylight
and sunlight assessment the application has failed to demonstrate that the proposed development
would not lead to a loss of light or significant overshadowing to both adjoining neighbouring
properties. The proposal would therefore be contrary to Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
One - Strategic Policies (2012), Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development
Management Policies (2020) and the National Planning Policy Framework (2023).

4. NON2 Highways

The proposal would fail to provide acceptable pedestrian, cycle and vehicular access to the
application site which due to the increased number of vehicular movements onto a classified road
would result in danger and inconvenience which fails to concur with the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2
- Development Management Policies (2020), Policies DMT 1, DMT 2 and DMT 6 and Policies T2, T4
and T5 of the London Plan (2021) and NPPF (2023). The application also fails to concur with the
Mayor's Transport Strategy which aims to encourage cycling, walking and the use of public transport.

5. NON2 Trees

The application has failed to justify the need for the layout of development which includes the
removal of category A and B value trees. Accordingly, the development would result in adverse and
irreversible impacts to landscaping, trees, biodiversity or other natural features of merit, detrimental
to the visual amenities of the area and Ickenham Village Conservation Area, contrary to paragraph
136 of the National Planning Policy Framework (2023), Policy G7 of the London Plan (2021), and
Policies DMHB 4, DMHB 11, DMHB 12 and DMHB 14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 (2020).

6. NON2 Fire safety

The proposal fails to demonstrate through a comprehensive fire statement how the development
would achieve the highest standards of fire safety in regard to its design in incorporating appropriate
features which reduce the risk to life in the event of a fire, its construction methods, means of
escape, strategy of evacuation and providing suitable access and equipment for firefighting
appropriate for the size and residential nature of the development. The proposal would therefore be
contrary to Policies D5 and D12 of the London Plan (2021) and the National Planning Policy
Framework (2023).

INFORMATIVES

1. 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant planning
legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The Human Rights Act
(1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention
rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family
life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2. 174 Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) (Refusing Consent)

This is a reminder that Under the terms of the Planning Act 2008 (as amended) and Community

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 71



Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended), should an application for appeal be allowed, the
proposed development would be deemed as 'chargeable development' and therefore liable to pay the
London Borough of Hillingdon Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) and the Mayor of London's
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL). This would be calculated in accordance with the London
Borough of Hillingdon CIL Charging Schedule 2014 and the Mayor of London's CIL Charging
Schedule 2012.

For more information on CIL matters please visit the planning portal page at:
www.planningportal.gov.uk/planning/applications/howtoapply/whattosubmit/cil

153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies and
proposals in the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1 (2012) and Part 2 (2020) set out below, including
Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations, including The London
Plan (2021) and national guidance.

DMCI 7 Planning Obligations and Community Infrastructure Levy
DMEI 10 Water Management, Efficiency and Quality

DMEI 2 Reducing Carbon Emissions

DMEI 7 Biodiversity Protection and Enhancement

DMEI 9 Management of Flood Risk

DMH 1 Safeguarding Existing Housing

DMH 2 Housing Mix

DMHB 1 Heritage Assets

DMHB 11 Design of New Development

DMHB 12 Streets and Public Realm

DMHB 14 Trees and Landscaping

DMHB 16 Housing Standards

DMHB 17 Residential Density

DMHB 18 Private Outdoor Amenity Space

DMHB 4 Conservation Areas

DMT 1 Managing Transport Impacts

DMT 2 Highways Impacts

DMT 5 Pedestrians and Cyclists

DMT 6 Vehicle Parking

LPP D12 (2021) Fire safety

LPP D3 (2021) Optimising site capacity through the design-led approach
LPP D4 (2021) Delivering good design

LPP D5 (2021) Inclusive design

LPP D6 (2021) Housing quality and standards

LPP D7 (2021) Accessible housing

LPP DF1 (2021) Delivery of the Plan and Planning Obligations

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 72



LPP G7 (2021) Trees and woodlands

LPP GG2 (2021) Making the best use of land

LPP GG4 (2021) Delivering the homes Londoners needs
LPP H1 (2021) Increasing housing supply

LPP H10 (2021) Housing size mix

LPP HC1 (2021) Heritage conservation and growth
LPP SI12 (2021) Flood risk management

LPP SI13 (2021) Sustainable drainage

LPP SI2 (2021) Minimising greenhouse gas emissions
LPP T5 (2021) Cycling

LPP T6 (2021) Car parking

LPP T6.1 (2021) Residential parking

NPPF11 -23 NPPF11 23 - Making effective use of land

NPPF12 -23 NPPF12 23 - Achieving well-designed and beautiful places

NPPF14 -23 NPPF14 23 - Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change
NPPF16 -23 NPPF16 23 - Conserving and enhancing the historic environment

NPPF2 -23 NPPF2 2023 - Achieving sustainable development

NPPF4 -23 NPPF4 23 - Decision making

NPPF5 -23 NPPF5 23 - Delivering a sufficient supply of homes

NPPF9 -23 NPPF9 23 - Promoting sustainable transport

3. CONSIDERATIONS
3.1 Site and Locality

The application site is located on the north-western side of Long Lane, some 80m to the north-east of
its junction with Swakeleys Drive. It comprises an attractive detached house, set back from the road
on a large plot with a deep rear garden.

The subject dwelling along with the maijority of the adjoining detached houses to the south-west (Nos.
90 to 98 Long Lane) are of individual architectural design and have a spacious character with large
gardens to the rear. The dwellings are set well back from the road, in an informal setting with a
staggered relationship to the road frontage. To the north east, is a flatted development at No.88 Long
Lane and beyond that is the Cardinal Hume Campus of the Douay Martyrs School (which contains a
locally listed building). To the south west is 92 Long Lane, another large two storey dwelling of
individual architectural merit set back from the highway with gable features including a front projection
and two dormer windows. Dormy House and the rear garden of No. 2 adjoins the rear boundary of the
application property.

The character of the area has gained recognition through its inclusion within the Ickenham Village
Conservation Area. The application site and the neighbouring property to the rear (known as Dormy
House) are also covered by Tree Preservation Orders (TPOs 438 and 482a refer). The site lies in
Flood Zone 1 and has a PTAL rating of 2 (Poor).

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 73



3.2 Proposed Scheme

The application proposes the demolition of the existing detached, single dwelling and the erection of a
building consisting of 9 no. two-bedroom flats, with associated parking and amenities.

It is noted that the description has been revised to omit the reference to one bedroom flats as the
proposal does not propose any one bedroom units.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

8905/E/78/0680 90 Long Lane Ickenham
Householder development - residential extension(P)
Decision: 28-06-1978 Approved

8905/G/80/0936 90 Long Lane Ickenham
Householder development - residential extension(P)
Decision: 02-07-1980 Approved

8905/H/86/1028 90 Long Lane Ickenham
Alterations to elevation (P)
Decision: 09-07-1986 Approved

8905/K/86/1756 90 Long Lane Ickenham
Householder dev. (small extension,garage etc) (P)
Decision: 08-12-1986 Approved
8905/M/90/0457 90 Long Lane Ickenham
Extension to existing vehicular crossover
Decision: 25-04-1990 Approved

Comment on Relevant Planning History

The relevant planning history is referenced above.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

Development Plan:

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 74



Planning law requires that applications for planning permission be determined in accordance with the
development plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

The Development Plan for the London Borough of Hillingdon currently consists of the following
documents:

The Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (2012)

The Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020)
The Local Plan: Part 2 - Site Allocations and Designations (2020)
The West London Waste Plan (2015)

The London Plan (2021)

Material Considerations:

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2023) is also a material consideration in planning
decisions, as well as relevant supplementary planning documents and guidance.

Local Plan Designation and London Plan
The following Local Plan Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

PT1.HE1 (2012) Heritage

Part 2 Policies:

DMCI 7  Planning Obligations and Community Infrastructure Levy
DMEI 10 Water Management, Efficiency and Quality

DMEI2 Reducing Carbon Emissions

DMEI 7 Biodiversity Protection and Enhancement

DMEI9 Management of Flood Risk

DMH 1 Safeguarding Existing Housing

DMH 2  Housing Mix

DMHB 1 Heritage Assets

DMHB 4 Conservation Areas

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 75



DMHB 11 Design of New Development
DMHB 12 Streets and Public Realm
DMHB 14 Trees and Landscaping

DMHB 16 Housing Standards

DMHB 17 Residential Density

DMHB 18 Private Outdoor Amenity Space
DMT 1 Managing Transport Impacts
DMT 2  Highways Impacts

DMT 5  Pedestrians and Cyclists

DMT 6  Vehicle Parking

NPPF11 - NPPF11 23 - Making effective use of land
23

NPPF12 - NPPF12 23 - Achieving well-designed and beautiful places
23

NPPF16 - NPPF16 23 - Conserving and enhancing the historic environment
23

NPPF14 - NPPF14 23 - Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change
23

NPPF2 - NPPF2 2023 - Achieving sustainable development
23

NPPF4 - NPPF4 23 - Decision making
23

NPPF5 - NPPF5 23 - Delivering a sufficient supply of homes
23

NPPF9 - NPPF9 23 - Promoting sustainable transport
23

LPP D3 (2021) Optimising site capacity through the design-led approach
LPP D4 (2021) Delivering good design

LPP D5 (2021) Inclusive design

LPP D6 (2021) Housing quality and standards

LPP D7 (2021) Accessible housing

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 76



LPP GG2 (2021) Making the best use of land

LPP GG4 (2021) Delivering the homes Londoners needs
LPP DF1 (2021) Delivery of the Plan and Planning Obligations
LPP D12 (2021) Fire safety

LPP G7 (2021) Trees and woodlands

LPP H1 (2021) Increasing housing supply

LPP H10 (2021) Housing size mix

LPP HC1 (2021) Heritage conservation and growth

LPP SI12 (2021) Flood risk management

LPP SI13 (2021) Sustainable drainage

LPP SI2 (2021) Minimising greenhouse gas emissions
LPP T5 (2021) Cycling

LPPT6 (2021) Car parking

LPP T6.1 (2021) Residential parking

5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1  Advertisement Expiry Date: 20th September 2023
5.2  Site Notice Expiry Date: 19th September 2023

6. Consultations

External Consultees

45 neighbouring properties were consulted by letter on 21st of August 2023. The consultation period
expired on 12th of September 2023. 8 objections were received. Their comments are summarised as
follows:

1) Density concerns

2) Character and appearance - Not in keeping with the area; the overall scale of the building and design
greater than anything within the area.

3) Impact on Ickenham Village Conservation Area

4) Set a precedence for similar developments (flats inappropriate development on this site) Different site
context to no.88

5) Loss of family dwelling

6) Loss of light / overshadowing; Loss of privacy

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 77



7) Traffic / Parking concerns (during and after construction)

8) Pollution / Sustainability concerns

9) Environmental and ecological concerns

10) No energy or carbon savings demonstrated

11) Concerns regarding damage / loss of trees on site and on adjoining land
12) Concerns regarding flooding

13) Noise concerns, including from waste collections and the location of cycle storage; construction
disruption

14) Devalue neighbouring properties

15) Concerns regarding anti-social behaviour / criminal activity

16) Concerns regarding foundations of neighbouring dwellings

PLANNING OFFICE RESPONSE: In regards points 1-13, these are addressed in the main section of the
report under the relevant headings. The proposal's impact on the character and appearance of the area
and Conservation Area, neighbouring residential amenities, parking, trees, flooding and refuse storage are
covered in the main body of this Committee Report.

In regards points 7 and 13, if the application were to be approved, a condition can be secured requiring the
submission of a Construction Management Plan to minimise noise, disruption and pollution. The Highway's
Officer has assessed carparking and access concerns within the Highway/Car parking section of the
report.

In terms of point 14 regarding the valuation of property, this is not a material consideration in the planning
assessment.

In regards points 15, it has been noted from the comments received that the site had some previous
criminal activity however this current application does not propose any illegal activities. In terms of security
by design, Officers are satisfied that the scheme would create new units thereby improving the security of
the site due to the level of presence and surveillance from windows. This is likely therefore to reduce any
potential anti-social behaviour if the site is occupied.

Point 16 raises concerns of the structural implications of the new and existing buildings. Were planning
permission to be granted for the removal and rebuild of the building, a construction management plan
would be secured via condition. The development would also need to comply with regulations outside the
realms of the planning assessment including the Building Act and Environmental Regs. The Building Act
would deal specifically with the structural side of any new development. If this application had been
recommended for approval, an informative would have been included regarding Control of Environmental
Nuisance from Construction Work.

PETITION:

A petition in objection to the application has been received (21 signatures). The petition states the
signatories are against the application and the application should not be granted.

ICKENHAM RESIDENTS ASSOCIATION:
We would like to draw your attention to the fact that the application references erection of a building
consisting of 9no. one and two bedroom flats. The plans show all the flats to be 2 bedroomed.

We are aware that the Inspectorate had removed the 10% rule allowed for flats in residential roads, but it is
worrying to think of the extra traffic and parking involved, should this development go ahead especially

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 78



given the flat development at no. 88. There would be a minimum of 9 cars adding to the traffic congestion,
which is already extremely high in Long Lane.

The Association strongly objects to this application.

PLANNING OFFICER RESPONSE: The points raised by Ickenham Residents' Association have been
noted. Material planning considerations are discussed in the following sections of this report.

Internal Consultees
ACCESS OFFICER:

This proposal involving the demolition of a single dwelling house and its replacement with a three-storey
building comprising 9 flats has been assessed against the requirements of London Plan Policy D7 and H2
with no accessibility concerns raised. The size of the plot is approximately 0.22 hectares and therefore falls
within the criteria of a small site as prescribed by London Plan Policy H2. As lift access is not a
requirement in such circumstances, Policy D7 requires the ground floor units to meet the Technical
Requirements set out in Approved Document M to the Building Regulations 2010 (2015 edition). The plans
are satisfactory and there are no accessibility concerns at this stage of development control. However, the
following conditions should be attached to any approval:

Prior to any works on site above damp proof course level, details of step free access via all points of entry
and exit shall be submitted to, and approved in writing, by the Local Planning Authority. Such provision
shall remain in place for the life of the building.

REASON To ensure housing of an inclusive design is achieved and maintained in accordance with Policies
D5 and D7 of the London Plan (2021).

The development hereby approved shall ensure that all ground floor units accord with the requirements of
Policy D7 of the London Plan, and shall not be occupied until certification of compliance with the technical
specifications for an M4(2) dwelling, as set out in Approved Document M to the Building Regulations
(2010) 2015, has been submitted to, and approved in writing, by the Local Planning Authority. All such
provisions must remain in place for the life of the building. REASON: To not only allow the Building Control
body to require the development to comply with the optional Building Regulations standards, but to also
ensure the appropriate quantity and standard of accessible and adaptable housing is constructed and
maintained in accordance with Policy D7 of the London Plan.

HIGHWAYS OFFICER:

The application site is located on B466 Long Lane, a classified road with a 30mph speed limit which is
subject to single yellow line parking restrictions Monday - Saturday between 8am and 6.30pm An advisory
cycle lane runs along Long Lane across the site frontage.

The application site is located in an area with a PTAL ranking of 2 indicating that the proposal would be
located in an area with poor access to public transport which fails to concur with National Planning Policy
Framework (NPPF) 9: Promoting Sustainable Transport and The Mayor's Transport Strategy which aims to
encourage people to walk, cycle and travel by public transport.

Access

Vehicular and pedestrian access to the site will be gained over the existing gated access which is located
2m back from the adopted highway which will not be acceptable as vehicles entering or leaving the site will
be required to wait on B466 Long Lane whilst gates are opened or closed, causing obstruction and

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 79



affecting the free flow of traffic on Long Lane to the detriment of highway safety. Gates should be located a
minimum of 5m back from the highway boundary to allow a vehicle to wait off the highway.

The proposed access also fails to concur with The Mayors Transport Strategy (2022) which aims to make
walking and cycling more appealing to all Londoners and The London Plan (2021) - Chapter 10 Transport
as the proposal will put pedestrians and cyclists in conflict with cars. An additional access gate will
therefore be required for pedestrians/cyclists which should be wide enough to allow a cyclist pushing a
cycle to pass and to comply with the London Cycling Design Standards (LCDS) 8.5.3 Residential Cycle
Parking which requires cycle parking to be well located, close to the entrance of the property and avoiding
obstacles such as narrow doorways (less than 1.2 metres wide) and tight corners. Revised drawings will be
required.

Parking

The London Plan (2021) Table 10.3 - Maximum Residential Parking Standards requires all dwellings in
Outer London PTAL 2 to have a maximum 0.75n0. spaces. Drawing 3321-04 Rev A Proposed Site and
Ground Floor Layout shows 9no. parking spaces which will be acceptable, however, the parking spaces
will be required to be allocated and leased to the dwellings which should be secured under a s.106
agreement. A Parking Management Plan will be required.

Electric Vehicle Charging Points (EVCPs)

The London Plan (2021) requires that an EVCP is provided for the proposed parking spaces. The
Application form states that 9no. passive ECVPs will be provided which will not be acceptable. 20% of the
ECVPS should be active and therefore the application form should be amended and the ECVPs shown on
a revised drawing.

Cycle Parking

The published London Plan (2021) Table 10.2 - Minimum Cycle Parking Standards requires two- bedroom
dwellings to have a minimum of 2no. cycle parking spaces and that developments of 5-40 dwellings
provide 2 visitor cycle parking space which should be provided with acceptable access between the
dwelling, the cycle storage and the adopted highway. Drawing 3321-04 Rev A Proposed Site and Ground
Floor Layout shows 18no. cycle spaces which is an acceptable level of cycle parking for the dwellings,
however, 2 visitor cycle parking spaces will be required which should be located close to the main access
to the flats. 1no. 'Sheffield' type cycle stand would be acceptable.

Following further discussions, Highways recommended that the following recommendation should apply:

Recommendation

There are highway objections to this proposal and therefore the Highway Authority would recommend a
refusal on the failure to provide acceptable pedestrian, cycle and vehicular access to the application site
which fails to concur with

- The London Plan (2021) Policy T2: Healthy Streets, Policy T4 Assessing and Mitigating Transport
Impacts and Policy T5 Cycling

- NPPF 9: Promoting Sustainable Transport Paragraphs 115 and 116

- London Borough of Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 - Development Management Policies Policy DMT 1:
Managing Transport Impacts, Policy DMT 2: Highways Impacts and Policy DMT 5: Pedestrians and
Cyclists

- The application also fails to concur with the Mayor's Transport Strategy which aims to encourage cycling,
walking and the use of public transport.

The applicant has also failed to provide details of 1no. active 7Kw EVCP or a Parking Management Plan
which fails to concur with the published London Plan (2021) Policy T6 Car Parking although which could be

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 80



conditioned.

Drawing 3321-03 Rev A shows the location of the waste and recycling storage which would be acceptable,
however, the location is likely to require relocation subject to the relocation of the access and gates.

Due to the location of the application site on a classified road with unacceptable, restricted access a
Construction Logistics Plan (CLP) would be required, which could be conditioned, that clearly
demonstrates how all risks to personal safety would be managed. It should also detail how interaction
between construction traffic and vehicles already on the network would be planned which should concur
with Construction Logistics and Community Safety (CLOCS) Construction Logistics Planning (CLP)
Guidance Version: v1.2 (April 2021).

As a minimum the CLP should include but not be restricted to the following:-

- Site working hours.

- Number of vehicle movements generated by the construction phase of the development and type/size of
vehicles.

- Drawings and documentation showing location and quantity of contractor parking and off-street parking
facilities for all vehicles linked to the site.

- Drawings and documentation showing contractor compound including office, welfare facilities, materials
and waste storage.

- HGV routes to and from the site.

- The contractor will ensure that the area around the site including the public highway is regularly and
adequately swept to prevent any accumulation of dust and dirt. All vehicles must pass through a wheel
wash facility. Details will be required.

- There will be no daytime or overnight parking of lorries within the vicinity of the construction site.

- All vehicles shall have their engines switched off while not in use to avoid idling and any vehicles carrying
waste and dusty materials will be adequately sheeted or covered.

- The CLP must ensure construction deliveries are between the hours of 10:00 and 15:00 to avoid
congestion during school drop off and collection times.

- Contact details of site person in charge when the site is open and out of hours must be provided to the
Borough.

TREE OFFICER:

The site is within a conservation area and TPO 482A at the rear. The TPO trees are not near the property
and are shown as protected from the development. The development requires the removal of an A
category tree T38 which is currently highly visible from the public highway. This is considered as
unacceptable.

CONSERVATON AND URBAN DESIGN OFFICER:

The Conservation Officer raised concerns regarding the size, scale, design and siting of the proposal
including concerns regarding the removal of tree(s) to the front boundary and siting of refuse storage.

It's important that the new addition respects the massing and scale of the existing buildings in the
conservation area. The proposed barn to the rear should be carefully considered to ensure it remains
subordinate to the main structure, respecting the character of the conservation area. Its appearance would
benefit from a simplification of forms and detailing to more closely reflect the utilitarian nature of traditional
barn architecture. Materials are crucial in conservation areas, and as such, the use of traditional timber
framing, handcrafted tiles, and reclaimed bricks would be more appropriate for the extension's integration
into the setting. Substituting the modern resin cladding and UPVC windows with materials such as treated

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 81



wood for cladding and leaded glass for windows would enhance the historical value and visual coherence
of the extension with the existing buildings.

7.  MAIN PLANNING ISSUES

7.01 The principle of the development

Paragraph 123 of the NPPF (2023) states that planning policies and decisions should promote an
effective use of land in meeting the need for homes and other uses, while safeguarding and
improving the environment and ensuring safe and healthy living conditions. Policy GG4 of the London
Plan (2021) seeks to ensure that more homes are delivered. This is reinforced by Policy H1 of the
Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (2012) which gives general support to housing provision to
meet and exceed the Council's minimum strategic dwelling requirement, where this can be achieved
in accordance with other Local Plan policies.

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One Strategic Policies (2012) states that the Council will
support development proposals that would not result in the inappropriate development of gardens and
green spaces that erode the character and biodiversity of suburban areas and increase the risk of
flooding through the loss of permeable areas.

Policy DMH 1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020) states
that the net loss of existing self-contained housing will be resisted unless the housing is replaced with
at least equivalent residential floorspace. Policy DMH 4 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 -
Development Management Policies (2020) states that residential conversions and the redevelopment
of dwellings into new blocks of flats will only be permitted where:

i) It is on a residential street where the proposal will not result in more than 10% of properties being
redeveloped into flats;

ii) On residential streets longer than 1km the proposed redevelopment site should be taken as the
midpoint of a 1km length of road for assessment purposes;

iii) The internal floor area of the original building to be converted is at least 120 sqm; and

iv) Units are limited to one unit per floor for residential conversions.

Paragraph 4.11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020)
states that the redevelopment of dwellings into new blocks of flats can enable more effective use of
sites to be achieved. However, this type of development must seek to enhance the local character of
the area. In recent years, large concentrations of flats have resulted in a range of problems, including
increased on-street parking and resultant congestion on roads, the loss of front gardens, reductions in
privacy, significant changes to the street scene, and loss of family accommodation.

Regarding criterion (i) of Policy DMH 4, the proposed development would not result in more than 10%
of properties within the area redeveloped into flats. It is noted that there is a existing conversion at the
neighbouring property at No 88 Long Lane which received planning permission in 2016 for the
existing dwelling to be demolished and replace with flats (29164/APP/201/4622). In the immediate
area, this appears to be the sole property that has been converted to flats in recent years. Along a
stretch of 1km from the application site, the majority of properties are dwelling houses and as such
there would not lead to an overconcentration of flat developments within the area. The existing
property is greater than 120 sq.m in floorspace and although this is being replaced, it would meet that
criteria set out for redevelopment of dwellings. Although there would be more than one flat per floor,
these are considered suitable quality and it is designed to provide a high-quality of internal

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 82



accommodation in accordance with Policy D6 of the London Plan (2021). It is, therefore, considered
that the proposal passes the relevant tests set out in Policy DMH 4 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
2 - Development Management Policies (2020).

There is no objection, in principle, to the creation of additional residential units in this location in land
use terms. However, this would be subject to the proposal being in accordance with all relevant
planning policies and guidance in the Development Plan.

HOUSING MIX:

Policy H10 of the London Plan (2021) states that schemes should generally consist of a range of unit
sizes and sets out a number of factors which should be considered when determining the appropriate
housing mix on a particular scheme. This includes local evidence of need.

Family housing is defined within the glossary of the London Plan (2021) and outlines it must generally
be of a size that has three or more bedrooms. It is also worth noting that the Secretary of State
directed changes to Policy H10, in order to address the need for new family housing, to prevent
families from being forced to move outside of London. These changes were incorporated into the final
version of the London Plan (2021). It should be noted that the adoption of the Local Plan: Part 2
(2020) and London Plan (2021) policies on housing size mix are a significant shift from previous
iterations of the development plan.

Policy DMH 2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020) states
that the Council will require the provision of a mix of housing units of different sizes in schemes of
residential development to reflect the Council's latest information on housing need. The Council's
current information on housing need indicates a substantial borough-wide requirement for larger
affordable and private market units, particularly 3 bedroom properties, as identified in the Strategic
Housing Market Assessment 2016.

In accordance with Policy DMH 2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management
Policies (2020), developments should demonstrate how the provision of family housing has been
optimised, to address local needs.

The proposed development would provide 9 x two-bedroom units. The existing dwelling on site is a
family sized dwelling house and as such, there would be a loss of a larger unit which is in significant
demand within the borough. Furthermore, the overall size of the replacement building that is
proposed would have been sufficiently large enough to accommodate at least the same provision of
family sized units (as what is existing on site) if not even more 3 bed units which would have provided
a more balanced mix. The scheme is skewed towards the provision of 2-bedroom units and a more
appropriate housing mix should be explored.

Paragraph 60 of the NPPF 2023 states that "the overall aim should be to meet as much of an area's
identified housing need as possible, including with an appropriate mix of housing types for the local
community." The over-concentration of two bedroom units would therefore not be supported in this
instance given the loss of the existing larger unit which is in the demand. No robust justification has
been provided as to why the proposal fails to provide any three-bedroom units. The proposal would
therefore fail to provide an appropriate housing mix which would undermine the Council's housing
strategy, and conflict with Policy DMH 2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development
Management Policies (2020) and Policy H10 of the London Plan (2021).

7.02 Density of the proposed development

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 83



Policy D3 of the London Plan (2021) states that all development must make the best use of land by
following a design-led approach that optimises the capacity of sites. Higher density developments
should generally be promoted in locations that are well connected to jobs, services, infrastructure and
amenities by public transport, walking and cycling. In other areas, incremental densification should be
actively encouraged by Boroughs to achieve a change in densities in the most appropriate way. This
should be interpreted in the context of Policy H2 of the London Plan (2021) which states that
Boroughs should proactively support well-designed new homes on small sites below 0.25 hectares in
size.

Numerical densities are considered to be more appropriate to larger sites and what is considered of
greater significance to the determination of this application is the local contextual factors. The key
consideration is therefore whether the development would acceptably integrate with the character and
appearance of the area, and would respect residential amenity considerations, rather than the
consideration of the numerical density of the proposal. These issues are discussed in detail at
sections 7.07 and 7.08 of this report.

7.03 Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character
Refer to the section of the report titled 'Impact on the character & appearance of the area'.

7.04 Airport safeguarding

Policy DMAYV 1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020)
states that the Council will ensure that uses such as housing, education and hospitals are not located
in areas significantly affected by aircraft noise without acceptable mitigation measures.

The proposed development would be within the Northolt RAF 3km Perimeter Buffer Zone. However,
as it would be part of other residential properties within this zone, it is considered that visibility and
audibility of aircraft operations associated with the aerodrome would not be of significant harm to the
living conditions of the future occupants. It is therefore considered that it would be unreasonable to
refuse the application on the ground of harm to the residential amenity of future occupiers, in respect
to aircraft noise associated with Northolt RAF.

7.05 Impact on the green belt
Not applicable.

7.07 Impact on the character & appearance of the area

The Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 sets out the tests for dealing with
heritage assets in planning decisions. S72 of this Act relates to Conservation Areas and requires
Local Planning Authorities to pay special attention to 'the desirability of preserving or enhancing the
character or appearance of that area'.

Paragraph 135 of the NPPF (2023) states 'Planning policies and decisions should ensure that
developments:

a) will function well and add to the overall quality of the area, not just for the short term but over the
lifetime of the development;

b) are visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and appropriate and effective
landscaping;

c¢) are sympathetic to local character and history, including the surrounding built environment and
landscape setting, while not preventing or discouraging appropriate innovation or change (such as
increased densities);

d) establish or maintain a strong sense of place, using the arrangement of streets, spaces, building

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 84



types and materials to create attractive, welcoming and distinctive places to live, work and visit;

e) optimise the potential of the site to accommodate and sustain an appropriate amount and mix of
development (including green and other public space) and support local facilities and transport
networks; and

f) create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote health and well-being, with
a high standard of amenity for existing and future users; and where crime and disorder, and the fear
of crime, do not undermine the quality of life or community cohesion and resilience.'

Policies D1, D3 and D4 of the London Plan (2021) require development proposals to be of high
quality and to enhance the local context by delivering buildings and spaces that positively respond to
local distinctiveness.

Policy HC1 of the London Plan (2021) states that development proposals affecting heritage assets,
and their settings, should conserve their significance, by being sympathetic to the assets' significance
and appreciation within their surroundings.

Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1: Strategic Policies (2012) Policy BE1 states "The Council will require all
new development to improve and maintain the quality of the built environment in order to create
successful and sustainable neighbourhoods, where people enjoy living and working and that serve
the long-term needs of all residents. All new developments should achieve a high quality of design in
all new buildings, alterations, extensions and the public realm which enhances the local
distinctiveness of the area, contributes to community cohesion and a sense of place.'

Policy DMHB 4 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020)
states that new development, including alterations and extensions to existing buildings, within a
Conservation Area or on its fringes, will be expected to preserve or enhance the character or
appearance of the area.

Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020)
states: 'All development, including extensions, alterations and new buildings will be required to be
designed to the highest standards and, incorporate principles of good design including: i) harmonising
with the local context by taking into account the surrounding scale of development, height, mass and
bulk of adjacent structures; building plot sizes and widths, plot coverage and established street
patterns; building lines and setbacks, rooflines, streetscape rhythm, for example, gaps between
structures and other streetscape elements, such as degree of enclosure; architectural composition
and quality of detailing; local topography, views both from and to the site; and impact on neighbouring
open spaces and their environment.'

Policy DMHB 12 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020) re-
emphasises the need for new development to be well integrated with the surrounding area and
provides design criteria as to how this would be achieved.

The application site is located within Ickenham Village Conservation Area in a predominantly
residential area. The existing building is an attractive detached dwelling, one and a half storeys in
height and contributes positively to the overall character and appearance of the Conservation Area
and street scene of Long Lane. Douay Martyrs School Cardinal Hume Campus is located to the north
east, which includes a Locally Listed building. The Ickenham area is characterised by spacious and
maturely landscaped residential developments. The frontage to Long Lane comprises of individually
designed dwellings, which positively contribute to the appearance of the street scene. Whilst buildings
vary in architectural style and design, Ickenham in general, particularly the area surrounding the site,

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 85



comprises of detached and semi-detached dwellings appropriately positioned on large plots with long
rear gardens. Buildings along Long Lane, are mostly set back from the road behind green verges and
mature front gardens, creating a spacious character and appearance to the area. The existing site
comprises of a large front and rear garden, which is well characterised with mature trees and shrubs.
Vegetation along the frontage provides natural, soft screening from the street scene. The property is
proportionately sized and appropriately situated within the plot.

Notably, a flatted development at the neighbouring site, Number 88 Long Lane, has been recently
built out following planning approval (ref: 29164/APP/2016/4622). While some inspiration for the
current scheme has been taken from the neighbouring dwelling, the proposed is significantly wider
and appears significantly more bulkier than this neighbouring site. The proposed development would
be significant in massing due to the additional height, width, built form and bulk proposed.

The proposed building would measure approximately 20m wide along the front elevation with a height
of approximately 10m and a depth of 23.5m over three floors. Although the building would be set in
2.7m from the side with No 88 and 6.1m from the side with 92 Long Lane, it would continue to appear
quite imposing due to its size, massing and scale which appears significantly greater than any of the
existing buildings within the immediate area. As a result, the proposed development would appear
disruptive and incongruous within the street scene.

Consequently, the proposed development would result in a cramped form of development as
compared to the looser urban grain and pattern of development found on Long Lane. Although the
building line proposed would reflect the prevailing character with its staggered footprint, this would not
be sufficient to reduce the buildings overall massing when viewed from both public and private
viewpoints. It would not overcome the concerns with the scale of built-development proposed given
its overall width, height and depth. It is considered that this proposal would result in a cramped form
of overdevelopment and a significant reduction in the overall size and scale of the building would be
required.

The transition in scale between the proposed building and the modest dwelling at No. 92 Long Lane
would be unduly harsh, and represent a visually obtrusive and awkward juxtaposition. The
development would therefore fail to integrate appropriately to its immediate surroundings, due to its
bulk, prominence and poor relationship to the neighbouring dwelling to the south west of the site. The
footprint of the proposed building would project beyond the rear of the existing building and
subsequently both neighbouring dwellings. The development would be seen from both direct and long
views on Long Lane, noting in particular the somewhat staggered building line. It is therefore
considered that the proposal would cause harm to the setting of Ickenham Village Conservation Area.

In terms of design, whilst it is noted that the applicant has attempted to draw reference to the
neighbouring building, mimicking the mock Tudor design, this has not been entirely successful. The
mock Tudor detailing to the front is basic and is not considered to represent high quality design. The
lack of detail to the rear exacerbates the excessive fenestration which proposes a variety of window
sizes, appearing unduly prominent and failing to align with the more restrained and utilitarian
appearance of historical barns. As a result, the proposed development would have a negative impact
upon the character and appearance of the area as well as failing to preserve or enhance the setting
of the wider Conservation Area.

Having regard to the above, it is considered that the siting, size, width, scale, massing and design of
the proposed development would have a harmful impact on the character, appearance and visual
amenities of the local area, and would neither preserve nor enhance the setting of Ickenham Village

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 86



Conservation Area. The proposal therefore conflicts with Policies BE1 and HE1 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (2012), Policies DMHB 1, DMHB 4, DMHB 11 and DMHB 12
of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management Policies (2020), Policies HC1, D3
and D4 of the London Plan (2021) and the NPPF (2023).

The harm arising from the proposed development to the Ickenham Village Conservation Area is
considered to be less than substantial. In line with paragraph 208 of the NPPF (2023), the public
benefit of the proposal must be weighed against the harm. (Please refer to section 7.22 of this report
for the 'planning balance' assessment).

7.08 Impact on neighbours

Paragraph 135 of the NPPF (2023) states 'Planning policies and decisions should ensure that
developments:

f) create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote health and well-being, with
a high standard of amenity for existing and future users; and where crime and disorder, and the fear
of crime, do not undermine the quality of life or community cohesion and resilience.'

Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management Policies (2020)
states that development proposals should not adversely impact on the amenity, daylight and sunlight
of adjacent properties and open space.

Paragraph 5.38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020)
states that: "The Council will aim to ensure that there is sufficient privacy for residents and it will resist
proposals where there is an unreasonable level of overlooking between habitable rooms of adjacent
residential properties, schools or onto private open spaces. A minimum of 21 metres separation
distance between windows of habitable rooms will be required to maintain levels of privacy and to
prevent the possibility of overlooking. In some locations where there is a significant difference in
ground levels between dwellings, a greater separation distance may be necessary."

Paragraph 5.40 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020)
states that: "For the purposes of this policy, outlook is defined as the visual amenity enjoyed by
occupants when looking out of their windows or from their garden. The Council will expect new
development proposals to carefully consider layout and massing in order to ensure development does
not result in an increased sense of enclosure and loss of outlook."

Paragraph 5.41 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 (2020) states: "The Council will aim to minimise
the impact of the loss of daylight and sunlight and unacceptable overshadowing caused by new
development on habitable rooms, amenity space and public open space. The Council will also seek to
ensure that the design of new development optimises the levels of daylight and sunlight. The Council
will expect the impact of the development to be assessed following the methodology set out in the
most recent version of the Building Research Establishments (BRE) "Site layout planning for daylight
and sunlight: A guide to good practice".

PRIVACY:
The front elevation windows of the proposed dwellings would front the main road which would retain
an approx. 50m distance between properties and therefore are considered to cause no adverse

impact to the privacy of the occupiers adjacent.

There are no concerns raised regarding loss of privacy due to the ground floor side windows, given

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 87



the 2m high boundary fencing which limit views below 1.8m. If this application had been
recommended for approval, a condition would have been secured requiring the proposed side
windows of the first and second floor to be obscure glazed and non-opening up to 1.8 metres of the
finished floor level. A condition of this nature would not have unduly impacted the quality of internal
accommodation for future occupiers given that the side windows serve as secondary windows. Given
the balcony would be inset, there would be no concerns regarding overlooking. The outlook from the
proposed rear windows / balconies would not be dissimilar to the existing views from this elevation.

LIGHT AND OUTLOOK:

The proposed dwellings would not dissect a line drawn at 45 degrees from the front or rear habitable
room windows of neighbouring properties (or each other). However, the proposed building would
project significantly beyond the main rear wall of both neighbouring residential dwellings at Nos. 88
and 92 Long Lane. There are a number of windows on both neighbouring properties where the
outlook would be compromised by the extended depth beyond established rear building line. Officers
would note that the existing building reduces in height and scale towards the rear of the property
which ensures that the residents on both sides outlook and light is protected.

In terms of the replacement building, its overall height is consistent from the front to the rear with little
visual relief to the neighbours along the rear building lines. Whilst the rear roof projects a barn profile
to the rear, it retains a height of approximately 10m at its highest point. This further exasperates the
overall scale of the building when viewed from the neighbours gardens and living spaces. It is also
noted that the neighbouring property at No 92 contains a dining room and conservatory facing onto
this development. Whilst it is acknowledged the building is set in from this neighbours boundary,
given the overall height and scale, it would lead to a sense of enclosure and potentially impact on this
residents daylight. Similarly in regard to the flat development at No 88 Long Lanes, there are several
windows at ground floor facing onto the boundary as well as lounge which would have its outlook
compromised. As a result, the existing occupiers would experience a sense of enclosure and
overbearing impact, given the bulk of the proposal. Given the overall height of the building, Officers
would have concerns that the depth beyond the rear building line of Nos 88 and 92 would impact the
daylight sunlight to both adjoining residents. In the absence of a BRE daylight/sunlight study, the
proposal fails to demonstrate that it would not result in an unacceptable loss of light or cause
overshadowing issues for the existing occupiers.

ACTIVITY AND DISTURBANCE:

The development site is located within a dense residential area with smaller and larger homes. The
additional homes and parking would not lead to any increase in people movements that would be out
of character or harmful to residents enough to warrant refusal of the application. If the application is
approved, a condition has been recommended to ensure that the construction process is managed in
a manner which limits the developments impact on neighbours. Whilst the comments raised by the
objections regarding waste and cycle storage are noted, the impact in terms of noise and disturbance
from the use of these facilities would not cause significant noise over and above what would be
expected from a residential building.

CONCLUSION:
In light of the above, it is considered that the proposed development would cause unacceptable harm

to the living conditions of the existing occupiers at No.92 Long Lane and flatted development at No.88
Long Lane. The proposed development would therefore be contrary to Policy DMHB 11 of the

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 88



Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management Policies (2020) and paragraph 135 of
the NPPF (2023).

7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers
INTERNAL AMENITY SPACE PROVISION:

Policy D6 of the London Plan (2021) sets out the requirements for the gross internal floor area of new
dwellings at a defined level of occupancy. Table 3.1 of the London Plan (2021) set outs the same
gross internal area space standards set out in the Technical housing standards - nationally described
space standard (2015). Policy DMHB 15 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development
Management Policies (2020) states that the Council will require all new development to ensure safe
and attractive public and private spaces by referring to the Council's latest guidance on Secured by
Design principles.

Policy DMHB 16 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 (2020) states that all housing development
should have an adequate provision of internal space to provide an appropriate living environment. To
achieve this all-residential development or conversions should:

i) meet or exceed the most up to date internal space standards, as set out in Table 5.1; and

ii) in the case of major developments, provide at least 10% of new housing to be accessible or easily
adaptable for wheelchair users.

Within Table 3.1 of London Plan (2021) Policy D6 requires the following:
- One storey 2-bed 4 person unit should provide a minimum of 70 square metres GIA;

The above is also supported by Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 (2020).

Based on the plans submitted, all nine of the proposed flats would meet the minimum 70 square
metre requirement set by Table 3.1 of the London Plan (2021). The proposed double bedrooms
would have a width of at least 2.75 metres and would have a floor area in excess of 11.5 square
metres, in compliance with parts 2) and 4) of Policy D6 of the London Plan (2021). The overall layout
and floor to ceiling height would ensure a suitable standard of accommodation for future occupants.
Each new residential flat would have their aspect to the front or rear of the building with uninterrupted
outlook. Secondary windows along the flanks would provide a level of dual aspect which would
contribute to improve ventilation and additional light. The floor to ceiling heights serving flats would
meet both London Plan and National Space Standards criteria. Whilst the two loft apartments would
have some areas of restricted head room given their location, the overall size of both these residential
units is significantly greater than 70sgm. Both units would be over 100 sgm in size. Although the
floorspace would have restricted headroom towards the sides of the barn style roof, the floor to ceiling
height within the living spaces are substantially higher than the minimum requirement. From
surveying the floorplans, officers are satisfied that the vast majority of the top floor flats would meet
the minimum floor to ceiling heights set out in the Housing Technical Standards (2.3m). On balance,
given the additional size, both these units would be suitable head to ceiling heights for future
occupants.

DAYLIGHT AND SUNLIGHT ADEQUATE:

The open plan kitchen/living rooms would be served by glazed doors leading onto a balcony or large
unobscured windows. The ground floor bedrooms would benefit from unobscured side facing
windows. The first and second floor bedrooms would benefit from outlook despite the secondary side
windows being obscured glazed. It is therefore considered that future occupants would receive an

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 89



adequate level of outlook and natural light. Given the above, the proposed development complies
with Policy DMHB 16 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 (2020) and Policy D6 of the London Plan
(2021).

PRIVATE AMENITY SPACE:

Policy DMHB 18 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 (2020) states:

A) All new residential development and conversions will be required to provide good quality and
useable private outdoor amenity space. Amenity space should be provided in accordance with the
standards set out in Table 5.2.

B) Balconies should have a depth of not less than 1.5 metres and a width of not less than 2 metres.
C) Any ground floor and/or basement floor unit that is non-street facing should have a defensible
space of not less than 3 metres in depth in front of any window to a bedroom or habitable room.
However, for new developments in Conservation Areas, Areas of Special Local Character or for
developments, which include Listed Buildings, the provision of private open space will be required to
enhance the streetscene and the character of the buildings on the site.

D) The design, materials and height of any front boundary must be in keeping with the character of
the area to ensure harmonisation with the existing street scene.

Table 5.2 states that 2-bedroom flats should provide a minimum of 25 square metres of amenity
space.

Three of the proposed flats would have balconies measuring approximately 6 to 7 square metres,
which is below the minimum private amenity space standards set out in Table 5.3 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020). Four of the flats would not benefit
from private amenity space. There is however a large communal garden space provided to the rear
which would be suitably landscaped. A condition can be attached to ensure that these details are
provided if the application is approved. The flats would also include sufficient defensible space to the
outside of the patio and winter garden arrangements. This would ensure that the spaces are usable.

Based on a proposal for 9 X 2 bed units, the proposal should provide a minimum of 225 square
metres of private usable and well designed amenity space.

Flat 1 - no patio

Flat 2 - no patio

Flat 3 - private patio measuring approx. 16sgm
Flat 4 - private patio measuring approx. 16sgm
Flat 5 - no balcony

Flat 6 - no balcony

Flat 7 - two balconies measuring total 14.6sgm
Flat 8 - private balcony measuring 6.8sqm

Flat 9 - private balcony measuring 6.8sqm

Total - 60.2sgm
Based on the submitted plans, the proposed development would provide over 600sgm of communal
amenity space. A soft and hard landscaping scheme would be conditioned, in the event of an

approval, to ensure the standard and quality of the communal space is good.

Given the communal space is large and usable, the short fall of private amenity space would be, on

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 90



balance, acceptable.

On balance, it is considered that the quantity and quality of external amenity space being provided
would be sufficient to serve the sizes and number of proposed dwellings at the site. The proposal
therefore complies with Policy DMHB 18 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development
Management Policies (2020), Policy D6 of the London Plan (2021) and paragraph 130(f) of the NPPF
(2023).

7.10 Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Policy DMT 2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2: Development Management Policies (2020) states:
'Development proposals must ensure that:

i) safe and efficient vehicular access to the highway network is provided to the Council's standards;
ii) they do not contribute to the deterioration of air quality, noise or local amenity or safety of all road
users and residents;

iii) safe, secure and convenient access and facilities for cyclists and pedestrians are satisfactorily
accommodated in the design of highway and traffic management schemes;

iv) impacts on local amenity and congestion are minimised by routing through traffic by the most
direct means to the strategic road network, avoiding local distributor and access roads; and

v) there are suitable mitigation measures to address any traffic impacts in terms of capacity and
functions of existing and committed roads, including along roads or through junctions which are at
capacity.'

Policy DMT 5 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2: Development Management Policies (2020) states:
'A) Development proposals will be required to ensure that safe, direct and inclusive access for
pedestrians and cyclists is provided on the site connecting it to the wider network, including:

i) the retention and, where appropriate, enhancement of any existing pedestrian and cycle routes;

ii) the provision of a high quality and safe public realm or interface with the public realm, which
facilitates convenient and direct access to the site for pedestrian and cyclists;

iii) the provision of well signposted, attractive pedestrian and cycle routes separated from vehicular
traffic where possible; and

iv) the provision of cycle parking and changing facilities in accordance with Appendix C, Table 1 or, in
agreement with Council.'

Policy DMT 6 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2: Development Management Policies (2020) states:
'‘Development proposals must comply with the parking standards outlined in Appendix C Table 1 in
order to facilitate sustainable development and address issues relating to congestion and amenity.
The Council may agree to vary these requirements when:

i) the variance would not lead to a deleterious impact on street parking provision, congestion or local
amenity; and/or

ii) a transport appraisal and travel plan has been approved and parking provision is in accordance
with its recommendations.

PARKING:

The London Plan (2021) Table 10.3 - Maximum Residential Parking Standards requires all dwellings
in Outer London PTAL 2 to have a maximum 0.75n0. spaces. Drawing 3321-04 Rev A Proposed Site
and Ground Floor Layout shows 9no. parking spaces which would be acceptable, however, the
parking spaces would be required to be allocated. Therefore, a Parking Management Plan would be
required, which could be secured via condition in the event of an approval. It is acknowledged,
concerns have been raised from the public representations regarding parking and congestion. The

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 91



scheme however does meet the minimum standards required for this level of units. The use of the
Parking Management Plan condition would ensure that the final parking arrangements is overseen by
the Planning and Highways team prior to occupation of the development.

ELECTRIC CHARGING POINTS:

Part G) of Policy T6 and part C) of Policy T6.1 of the London Plan (2021) state that all residential car
parking spaces must provide infrastructure for electric or Ultra-Low Emission vehicles. The London
Plan (2021) requires that an EVCP is provided for the proposed parking spaces. It is noted that 20%
of the ECVPS should be active, in the event of an approval. The Highway's Officer is satisfied that
this could be secured via condition were the scheme otherwise acceptable.

BICYCLE PARKING:

Appendix C, Table 1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020)
requires the provision of cycle parking facilities for new residential units. The London Plan (2021)
Table 10.2 - Minimum Cycle Parking Standards requires two- bedroom dwellings to have a minimum
of 2no. cycle parking spaces and that developments of 5-40 dwellings provide 2 visitor cycle parking
space which should be provided with acceptable access between the dwelling, the cycle storage and
the adopted highway.

It is noted that 3321-04 Rev A (Proposed Site and Ground Floor Layout) shows 18no. cycle spaces
which is an acceptable level of cycle parking for the number of residential units proposed. Further
cycle parking ( 2 visitor cycle spaces) would be required for visitors. This cycle parking could be
positioned to the front of the site and a Sheffield type cycle stand would be acceptable in this
instance. Were the scheme recommended for approval, a condition would be attached securing this
additional visitor cycle parking.

ACCESS:

The Highway Officer has raised an objection to the access arrangements for both vehicle and
pedestrians. Vehicular and pedestrian access to the site will be gained over the existing gated access
which is located 2m back from the adopted highway. This level of clearance would not meet the
required standards necessary to ensure safe access. In its current arrangement, it could vehicles
entering or leaving the site having to wait on the busy B466 Long Lane whilst gates are opened or
closed. Such arrangement would cause adverse impact on the highway network affecting the free
flow of traffic on Long Lane to the detriment of highway safety. To alleviate this highway safety risk,
the gates should be located a minimum of 5m back from the highway boundary to allow a vehicle to
wait off the highway. As the scheme was considered unacceptable in its current form, amendments
were not sought and any such amendment potentially impacted on the level of parking provision
available were the scheme to comply.

The proposed access also fails to concur with The Mayors Transport Strategy (2022) which aims to
make walking and cycling more appealing to all Londoners and The London Plan (2021) - Chapter 10
Transport as the proposal will put pedestrians and cyclists in conflict with cars. An additional access
gate would therefore be required for pedestrians/cyclists which should be wide enough to allow a
cyclist pushing a cycle to pass and to comply with the London Cycling Design Standards (LCDS)
8.5.3 Residential Cycle Parking which requires cycle parking to be well located, close to the entrance
of the property and avoiding obstacles such as narrow doorways (less than 1.2 metres wide) and tight
corners. Similarly such amendment had the potential to impact on the overall design of the front

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 92



boundary treatment whilst also potentially impacting parking provision. As such, given the scheme
was already unacceptable on several grounds, these amendments were not sought.

The Highway's Officer also confirmed that both access concerns could not be secured by condition
and given the safety concerns, it would be contrary to policy.

CONSTRUCTION LOGISTICS:

It was recommended a Construction Logistic Plan (CLP) be secured by condition were the scheme
considered acceptable. This is due to the site's location on a classified road. The CLP would need to
clearly demonstrate how all risks to personal safety would be managed. It should also detail how
interaction between construction traffic and vehicles already on the network would be planned which
should concur with Construction Logistics and Community Safety (CLOCS) Construction Logistics
Planning (CLP) Guidance Version: v1.2 (April 2021).

CONCLUSION:

Overall, it is concluded that the proposal would fail to provide acceptable pedestrian, cycle and
vehicular access to the application site which fails to concur with the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 -
Development Management Policies (2020), Policies DMT 1, DMT 2 and DMT 6 and Policies T2, T4
and T5 of the London Plan (2021) and NPPF (2023). The application also fails to concur with the
Mayor's Transport Strategy which aims to encourage cycling, walking and the use of public transport.-

7.11 Urban design, access and security
FIRE SAFETY:

Policy D12 of the London Plan (2021) states that in the interests of fire safety and to ensure the
safety of all building users, all development proposals must achieve the highest standards of fire
safety. Policy D5 part B of the London Plan (2021) states development should be designed to
incorporate safe and dignified emergency evacuation for all building uses.

The accompanying supporting text states (Para 3.12.1) states that fire safety of the developments
should be considered from the outset. How the building will function in terms of fire, emergency
evacuation and the safety of all users. Whilst Officers acknowledge that this is largely covered within
building regulation applications, given the overall number of units proposed and the fact it would
spread over several floors, it would be necessary to have some details of how each floor would be
evacuated in the case of a fire. The London Plan is clear that the applicants should demonstrate on a
site plan that space have been identified for appropriate appliances. Site Layouts should be planned
around issues of fire safety and a robust strategy for evacuation from the outset. No information about
fire safety has been provided as part of the application submission. Given the number of units and the
layouts,

Officers do not consider that this could be addressed through a suitable worded condition without
seeing the fire evacuation strategy upfront. It would be necessary to examine this information from
the outset given the number of occupants and flats involved and the fact there is a reliance on one
stairs. The proposal has therefore failed to demonstrate appropriately how the proposed development
would achieve high standards of fire safety and emergency evacuation arrangements. The proposal
would therefore conflict with Policies D5 and D12 of the London Plan (2021).

7.12 Disabled access

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 93



Policy D5 of the London Plan (2021) states that development proposals should achieve the highest
standards of accessible and inclusive design. They should:

1) be designed taking into account London's diverse population;

2) provide high quality people focused spaces that are designed to facilitate social interaction and
inclusion;

3) be convenient and welcoming with no disabling barriers, providing independent access without
additional undue effort, separation or special treatment;

4) be able to be entered, used and exited safely, easily and with dignity for all; and

5) be designed to incorporate safe and dignified emergency evacuation for all building users. In all
developments where lifts are installed, as a minimum at least one lift per core (or more subject to
capacity assessments) should be a suitably sized fire evacuation lift suitable to be used to evacuate
people who require level access from the building.

Paragraph 3.7.6 of the London Plan (2021) states that in exceptional circumstances the provision of a
lift to dwellings may not be achievable. In the following circumstances - and only in blocks of four
storeys or less - it may be necessary to apply some flexibility in the application of this policy:

- Specific small-scale infill developments (see Policy H2 Small sites).

- Flats above existing shops or garages.

- Stacked maisonettes where the potential for decked access to lifts is restricted.

Paragraph 3.7.7 of the London Plan (2021) states that if it is agreed at the planning stage (for one of
the reasons listed above) that a specific development warrants flexibility in the application of the
accessible housing standards M4(2) and M4(3), affected dwellings above or below ground floor would
be required to satisfy the mandatory building regulations requirements of M4(1) via the Building
Control process. M4(2) and M4(3) dwellings should still be required for ground floor units.

It is acknowledged that the proposed development would not contain a lift, which means that the
upper floor flats would only be able to meet Building Regulation M4(1).

Policy D7 of the London Plan (2021) states:

A) To provide suitable housing and genuine choice for London's diverse population, including
disabled people, older people and families with young children, residential development must ensure
that:

1) at least 10 per cent of dwellings (which are created via works to which Part M volume 1 of the
Building Regulations applies) meet Building Regulation requirement M4(3) 'wheelchair user dwellings'
2) all other dwellings (which are created via works to which Part M volume 1 of the Building
Regulations applies) meet Building Regulation requirement M4(2) 'accessible and adaptable
dwellings'.

In accordance with Policy D7 the ground floor units are required to meet the Technical Requirements
set out in Approved Document M to the Building Regulations 2010 (2015 edition). The proposed floor
plans demonstrate compliance. The application has been reviewed by the Council's Accessibility
Officer who has raised no objection subject to conditions pertaining to the submission of details to
demonstrate step free access would be provided and that the ground floor units would meet the part
M4(2) accessible standards. The proposal, subject to the imposition of these conditions would comply
with broad aims of Policies D5 and D7 of the London Plan (2021).

7.13 Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Policy H2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (2012) states that housing provision
is expected to include a range of housing to meet the needs of all types of households, and the

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 94



Council will seek to maximise the delivery of affordable housing from all sites over the period of the
Local Plan. For sites with a capacity of 10 or more units, the Council will seek to ensure that the
affordable housing mix reflects housing needs in the borough, particularly the need for larger family
units. This is supported by Policy DMH 7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development
Management Policies (2020).

The proposal is for less than 10 residential units and does not meet the threshold in order to require
affordable housing provision. As such, the proposal is not contrary to Policy H2 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (2012) and Policy DMH 7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 -
Development Management Policies (2020) in this respect.

7.14 Trees, landscaping and Ecology
TREES AND LANDSCAPING:

Policy G1 of the London Plan (2021) states that development proposals should incorporate
appropriate elements of green infrastructure that are integrated into London's wider green
infrastructure network.

Policies DMHB 11 and DMHB 14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 (2020) also require that new
development is high quality, sustainable, adaptable, and harmonises with the local context.
Landscaping and tree planting should enhance amenity, biodiversity and green infrastructure.
Development proposals will be required to provide a landscape scheme that includes hard and soft
landscaping appropriate to the character of the area, which supports and enhances biodiversity and
amenity particularly in areas deficient in green infrastructure.

Currently there are a number of mature trees along the frontage with Long Lane which contribute
significantly to the visual amenities of the area and Ickenham Village Conservation Area. To the
boundary and rear there are also a number of mature trees and a Tree Preservation Order to the rear
(TPO 482a).

An Arboricultural Report has been submitted as part of this planning application. There were 33
individual trees and 5 tree groups surveyed on-site or immediately adjacent to the site boundary.
There are currently some trees of modest to high value on site, most of which are A, B and C
category trees. A total of 3 no. trees are protected by the TPO at the rear of the site and the
remainder are protected by the Ickenham Village Conservation Area designation.

The proposal involves the removal of 2 'category U' trees and the removal of 3 'category B' trees and
works to one and the removal of 1 'category A' tree. The trees are protected by their Conservation
Area designation and visually contribute to the character and appearance of the area.

No significant justification has been provided by the applicant for the removal of the trees. A total of
six trees would be removed which are largely located to the front along the boundary and where the
potential car parking would be situated. The trees are a mixture of Cypress type trees including
Chamaecyparia lawsoniana "Ellwoodii"; Cupressocyparis leylandii and a Larix decidua Larch tree.
The tree survey report that accompanies the application indicates that the 2 category U trees are
dead and as such the removal of both these trees would be acceptable in principle. The remaining 4
trees however, are both Category A and B2 trees which are either high or moderate quality.

The Category A tree (T38 Chamaecyparis lawsoniana) is situated within the area set aside for
parking and is of normal physical and structural health. The reasoning for its removal within the report

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 95



is to facilitate the development. The Category B trees (T1, T8 & T9 Chamaecyparis lawsoniana &
‘Ellwoodii' Cupressocyparis leylandii (LeylandCypress) are all considered normal in terms of their
physical and structural condition. The reasoning for their removal would be to facilitate the
development. Further crowning works are also proposed to T10, T11 which are both category B trees.
The reasoning for these work is to reduce branches and provide clearance to the side of the building.

Officers have concerns that little justification has been given to removal of these high and moderate
quality trees. Their location to the front also contributes to the leafy character of the area. The
Councils Trees and Landscaping Officer has also raised concerns with the removal of trees and
impact the proposed development. More specifically, concerns are raised with regards to the removal
of tree(s) to the front elevation which contribute significantly to the visual amenities of the
Conservation Area. Whilst replanting of replacement trees can occasionally overcome the concerns
regarding the loss of trees, in this instance, Officers would consider that the current value of the trees
being removed (which are both structurally and physically normal health) as well as their positioning
to the front within a conservation area adds further value for their retention. The reasoning provided
for their removal has not been fully justified.

The application has failed to justify the need for the layout of development which includes the removal
of category A and B value trees. Accordingly, the development would result in adverse and
irreversible impacts to landscaping, trees, biodiversity or other natural features of merit, detrimental to
the visual amenities of the area and Ickenham Village Conservation Area, contrary to paragraph 136
of the National Planning Policy Framework (2023), Policy G7 of the London Plan (2021), and Policies
DMHB 4, DMHB 11, DMHB 12 and DMHB 14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 (2020).

IMPACT ON PROTECTED SPECIES:

Policy G6 of the London Plan (2021) states that development proposals should manage impacts on
biodiversity and aim to secure net biodiversity gain. This should be informed by the best available
ecological information and addressed from the start of the development process.

Policy DMEI 7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020) states
that if development is proposed on or near to a site considered to have features of ecological or
geological value, applicants must submit appropriate surveys and assessments to demonstrate that
the proposed development will not have unacceptable effects. The development must provide a
positive contribution to the protection and enhancement of the site or feature of ecological value.

The site does not contain any ponds, open woodland or dense scrub and shrubbery. Both Ickenham
Marsh and Park Wood (both of which are designated Nature Conservation Sites) are sufficient
distance away from the site to impact on their protected species. Whilst it is noted that there are trees
to both the front and rear of the site, these are largely retained and there is no evidence to take that
protected species used these landscaped areas as their habitat. Therefore, it is considered unlikely
that protected species are present, making an ecology assessment unnecessary. This approach
aligns with 'Circular 06/05:Biodiversity and Geological Conservation- Statutory Obligations and their
Impact within the Planning System' which states that, "...bearing in mind the delay and cost that may
be involved, developers should not be required to undertake surveys for protected species unless
there is a reasonable likelihood of the species being present and affected by the development.”

If approved, an informative would be secured advising if protected species are found at the site, the
applicant(s) must comply with the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and the
Conservation of Habitations and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended).

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 96



7.15 Sustainable waste management
REFUSE/RECYCLING COLLECTION:

Policy DMHB 11 part (d) of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies
(2020) states that development proposals should make sufficient provision for well-designed internal
and external storage space for general, recycling and organic waste, with suitable access for
collection.

It is noted that waste storage is proposed to be located to the front of site. However, there are no
details provided and it is noted that the location is likely to require relocation due to concerns
regarding access and gates. It is important given the site is located within Ickenham Village
Conservation Area that the waste storage is not visible to the street scene. The details of the waste
storage would be secured by condition in the event of an approval to ensure the distance would be in
line with the Council's waste collection points whilst also ensuring the structure does not impact the
character of the conservation area.

Thus, the proposed development is expected to offer a convenient location for refuse and recycling
facilities, in accordance with Policy DMHB11 part (d) of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 -
Development Management Policies (2020).

7.16 Renewable energy / Sustainability

Policy Sl 2 of the London Plan (2021) states residential development should achieve at least a 10%
improvement beyond Building Regulations 2013.

Policy DMEI 2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020)
requires all developments to make the fullest contribution to minimising carbon dioxide emissions in
accordance with the 2016 London Plan targets.

No details of the sustainability credentials of the proposed development or the type of renewable
technologies that would be utilised have been provided. However, it is considered that this matter
could be resolved by the imposition of a planning condition, if planning permission were to be
granted. Also, a condition would be secured requiring the proposed dwellings to achieve as a
minimum, a water efficiency standard of no more than 105 litres per person per day, maximum water
consumption.

Subject to the above conditions, the proposal would be compliant with Policy Sl 2 of the London Plan
(2021) and Policy DMEI 2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies
(2020).

7.17 Flooding or Drainage Issues

Policy Sl 12 of the London Plan (2021) states that development proposals should ensure that flood

risk is minimised and mitigated, and that residual risk is addressed. Policy Sl 13 of the London Plan
(2021) states that development proposals should aim to achieve greenfield run-off rates and ensure
that surface water run-off is managed as close to its source as possible.

Policy DMEI 9 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020) states
that proposals that fail to make appropriate provision for flood risk mitigation, or which would increase
the risk or consequences of flooding, will be refused.

Policy DMEI 10 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020)

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 97



states that development within areas identified at risk from surface water flooding which fail to make
adequate provision for the control and reduction of surface water runoff rates will be refused.

The site lies within Flood Zone 1 of the Environment Agency's Flood Risk Map. This means the site is
classified as being at low risk and defined as having a less than 1 in 1,000 probability of fluvial and
tidal flooding. As such, there are no restrictions on development, including more vulnerable uses such
as residential units, in this location, in terms of fluvial and tidal flood risk.

The rear garden is partially identified as being in an area of surface water flood risk. If planning
permission was to be granted, a condition could be secured requiring the submission of a sustainable
water management scheme, that incorporates sustainable urban drainage systems (SuDs), to be
submitted to the Council for consideration. Also, the landscaping condition would have been worded
in such a manner to ensure that permeable hard surfacing is used for the front forecourt and parking
area.

With these conditions, the proposed development is not expected to increase flood risk on-site or
elsewhere, in accordance with Policies DMEI 9 and DMEI 10 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 -
Development Management Policies (2020) and Policies SI 12 and Sl 13 of the London Plan (2021).

7.18 Noise or Air Quality Issues
NOISE:

Policy D14 of the London Plan (2021) states that in order to reduce, manage and mitigate noise to
improve health and quality of life, residential and non-aviation development proposals should manage
noise by avoiding significant adverse noise impacts on health and quality of life.

Whilst there would be some potential for increased levels of on-site activity to generate noise and
disturbance, the site would nevertheless continue to be used in an exclusively residential capacity.
The proposed provision of the flats at the site is not considered to lead to such a significant change in
the local noise environment.

It is noted that the kitchen/living/dining rooms of the proposed flats on the first floor level would be
stacked above the bedrooms of the ground floor. However, the requirement of Approved Document E
of the Building Regulation are deemed adequate for sound insulation transmission loss between
floors and walls of adjoining residential dwellings. Had the application otherwise been considered
acceptable, no planning conditions related to the above matter would be considered necessary as
they are part of Building Regulations.

It is therefore considered that the proposal would not cause harm to the residential amenities of
neighbouring occupiers, in terms of noise and disturbance.

Notwithstanding the above, a condition could have been secured requiring the submission of a
Construction Management Plan, in the event of an approval. This condition is necessary to ensure
that noise and pollution are minimised as far as practicable during the construction phase.

AIR QUALITY:

Policy Sl 1 of the London Plan (2021)

Policy DMEI 14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020)

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 98



states that proposals should demonstrate appropriate reductions in emissions. It adds that,
development proposals should, as a minimum:

i) be at least "air quality neutral”;

ii) include sufficient mitigation to ensure there is no unacceptable risk from air pollution to sensitive
receptors, both existing and new; and

iii) actively contribute towards the improvement of air quality, especially within the Air Quality
Management Area.

The site is designated within an Air Quality Management Area. If planning permission was to be
granted, a condition could be secured requiring the submission of an Air Quality Management
Assessment detailing how the proposed development would achieve air quality neutral. Also, a
condition could be secured requiring the submission of a Construction Management Plan (as noted
above) to minimise air and other emissions caused during the construction phase. In light of these
conditions, and noting the minor scale of the proposal, it is considered that it would not be necessary,
fair or reasonable to require an air quality contribution to be secured through a legal agreement.

7.19 Comments on Public Consultations
Covered in other sections of this Committee Report.

7.20 Planning obligations
COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY:

Policy DMCI 7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020) states
that to ensure development is sustainable, planning permission will only be granted for development
that clearly demonstrates there will be sufficient infrastructure of all types to support it. Infrastructure
requirements will be predominantly addressed through the Council's Community Infrastructure Levy
(CIL).

The Council adopted its own Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) on 1st August 2014. The Hillingdon
CIL charge for residential developments is £95 per square metre of additional floor space. This is in
addition to the Mayoral CIL charge of £60 per square metre. CIL rates are index linked. The proposal
involves the erection of new dwellings and is therefore CIL liable if planning permission were to be
granted.

7.21 Expediency of enforcement action
Not applicable.

7.22 Other Issues
PLANNING BALANCE:

Paragraph 208 of the NPPF (2023) states that "Where a development proposal will lead to less than
substantial harm to the significance of a designated heritage asset, this harm should be weighed
against the public benefits of the proposal including, where appropriate, securing its optimum viable
use."

The proposal would contribute to the Council's delivery of housing and provide some economic
benefits during the construction stages. However, the scheme is only for 9- two bedroom private
market flats, which would would cause harm to the residential amenities of neighbouring occupiers
and is unacceptable in design terms, even if there were no adverse impacts on an adjacent
conservation area. The overall mix of housing is also not in line with the borough need and the loss of

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 99



one family sized dwelling reduces some of the benefit from creation of more residential units.

Whilst noting that some weight should be given to the delivery of housing, the Council is currently
able to demonstrate a five-year supply of deliverable housing sites. The weight to be attached to
housing delivery is substantially diminished by the adverse impacts of the scheme as set out above.
Limited weight should be given to the proposals social and economic contribution. The NPPF requires
that great weight be attached to any harm to a designated heritage asset. Overall, the public benefits
would fall short of outweighing the 'less than substantial harm' to the Ickenham Village Conservation
Area.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so far as
material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including regional and national
policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in accordance with all relevant
primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use of land in
the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning applications
adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also the guidance
contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent should not be
refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal. Planning conditions should
only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing the conditions are necessary, relevant to
planning, relevant to the development to be permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all
other respects. Where conditions are imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for
imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an agreement or
undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 are necessary to
make the development acceptable in planning terms. The obligations must be directly related to the
development and fairly and reasonably related to the scale and kind to the development (Regulation
122 of Community Infrastructure Levy 2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning applications to
have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of opportunities and foster
good relations between people who have different protected characteristics. The protected
characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or
belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should consider
whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a proposal when
compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic. Where equalities issues arise,

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 100



members should weigh up the equalities impact of the proposals against the other material
considerations relating to the planning application. Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive,
but the objective of advancing equalities must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an
application. The weight to be given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to
determine in all of the circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in particular
the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the protection of property and
the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be proportionate and achieve a fair balance
between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable.

10. CONCLUSION

For the reasons set out in this report, it is considered that the proposed development would conflict
with national, regional and local planning policies and guidance. It is therefore recommended that the
application be refused on the grounds set out in section 2 of this Committee Report.

11. Reference Documents

National Planning Policy Framework (2023)

The London Plan (March 2021)

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management Policies (January 2020)

Hillingdon Local Plan Accessible Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document (September 2017)
Technical Housing Standards - Nationally Described Space Standard (March 2015)

Circular 06/05: Biodiversity and Geological Conservation - Statutory Obligations and Their Impact
Within The Planning System

Contact Officer: Emilie Bateman Telephone No: 01895 250230

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 101



The Douay Martyrs School
Cardinal Hume Campus

I:l Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2020 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

90 Long Lane

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON
Residents Services
Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 01895 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale:
8905/APP/2023/2419 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:
Minor Page 102 April 2024

LONDON




Agenda Item 9

Report of the Head of Development Management and Building Control

Address: MEADOW HIGH SCHOOL ROYAL LANE HILLINGDON

Development: Temporary redevelopment of the site to provide a single storey temporary
modular classroom (Use Class F1)

LBH Ref Nos: 3348/APP/2024/74

Drawing Nos: TVC0024-NOV-V4-XX-IM-A-PL31 Rev. P01
TVC0024-NOV-V4-XX-IM-A-PL32 Rev. P01
Planning Statement Rev. P02 (Dated 22nd January 2024)
Site Inspection Request & Preconstruction Information
HD/13642/01

TH 4452 Arboricultural Impact Assessment Method Statement & Tree Protection
Plan (to BS:5837 2012) (Dated 25th January 2024)

TVC0024-NOV-V4-XX-DR-A-PL27 Rev. P01
TVC0024-NOV-V4-01-DR-A-PL25 Rev. P01
TVC0024-NOV-V4-00-DR-A-PL24 Rev. P01
TVC0024-NOV-V4-XX-DR-A-PL28 Rev. P01
TVC0024-NOV-V4-XX-DR-A-PL26 Rev. P01
TVC0024-NOV-V4-00-DR-A-PL34 Rev. P01

TVCO0025-NOV-V4-XX-RP-A-PL33 Rev. P01 Design & Access Statement (Dated
20th December 2023)

TVC0024-NOV-V4-XX-IM-A-PL29 Rev. P01
TVC0024-NOV-V4-XX-IM-A-PL30 Rev. P01

Construction Logistics Version 1 (Dated 15th March 2024)
Construction Logistics Plan Rev. 4 (Dated 14th March 2024)
TVC0024-NOV-V4-00-DR-A-PL20 Rev. P01
TVC0024-NOV-V4-00-DR-A-PL21 Rev. P01
TVC0024-NOV-V4-00-DR-A-PL22 Rev. P01
TVC0024-NOV-V4-00-DR-A-PL23 Rev. P01

Cover Letter (Dated 10th January 2024)

Date Plans received: 11-01-2024 Date(s) of Amendments(s):  11-01-2024
o _ 22-01-2024

Date Application valid  22-01-2024 24-01-2024
27-02-2024

1. SUMMARY

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 103



This application seeks planning permission for the installation of a single-storey temporary classroom
(Use Class F1) for a period of 24 months. The classrooms are required until the new facility at the
Harefield Academy site is completed (approved under application ref. 17709/APP/2023/2673, dated
8th February 2024), which is anticipated to be in 2025. A temporary period of 24 months allows
sufficient time for the buildings to be installed on site and then removed once the pupils and staff
have moved into the new building at Harefield Academy.

The application is needed to support uninterrupted provision of SEND school places within the
borough. On the basis that temporary permission is granted and subject to conditions, this application
is recommended for approval.

2. RECOMMENDATION

APPROVAL subiject to the following:

1. COM3 Temporary Building - Removal and Reinstatement

The development hereby permitted shall be removed within 24 months of the date of this planning
permission and the area where the development sat shall be restored to a space of at least
equivalent quality as the pre-existing space, including the tree planting provisions detailed on
approved drawing reference "TVC0024-NOV-V4-00-DR-A-PL34 Rev. P01 Removal Reinstatement
Plan".

REASON

The buildings, by reason of their temporary design, are not considered suitable for permanent
retention in compliance with Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 (2020). Also, the
site should be restored to a condition fit for purpose and in accordance with the tree planting
provisions secured under previous planning applications permitted.

2. COM4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete accordance with the
details shown on the submitted plans, numbers:

Location Plan
TVC0024-NOV-V4-00-DR-A-PL20 Rev. P01;

Proposed Plans
TVC0024-NOV-V4-00-DR-A-PL22 Rev. P01;
TVC0024-NOV-V4-00-DR-A-PL24 Rev. P01;
TVC0024-NOV-V4-XX-DR-A-PL26 Rev. P01;
TVC0024-NOV-V4-XX-DR-A-PL28 Rev. P01; and
TVC0024-NOV-V4-00-DR-A-PL34 Rev. PO1.

Thereafter, the development shall be retained/maintained for as long as the development remains in
existence.

REASON

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 104



To ensure the development complies with the provisions Hillingdon Local Plan: Parts 1 (November
2012) and 2 (January 2020) and the London Plan (2021).

3. COM5 General compliance with supporting documentation

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out and operated except in accordance with
the specified supporting documents:

TVC0025-NOV-V4-XX-RP-A-PL33 Rev. P01 Design & Access Statement (Dated 20th December
2023);

Planning Statement Rev. P02 (Dated 22nd January 2024);

Construction Logistics Plan Rev. 4 (Dated 14th March 2024);

Construction Logistics Version 1 (Dated 15th March 2024); and

TH 4452 Arboricultural Impact Assessment Method Statement & Tree Protection Plan (to BS:5837
2012) (Dated 25th January 2024).

Thereafter the development shall be retained/maintained in accordance with these details for as long
as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions Hillingdon Local Plan: Parts 1 (November
2012) and 2 (January 2020) and the London Plan (2021).

4. NONSC Non-Road Mobile Machinery

All Non-Road Mobile Machinery (NRMM) of net power of 37kW and up to and including 560kW used
during the course of the demolition, site preparation and construction phases shall comply with the
emission standards set out in chapter 7 of the GLA's supplementary planning guidance "Control of
Dust and Emissions During Construction and Demolition" dated July 2014 (SPG), or subsequent
guidance. Unless it complies with the standards set out in the SPG, no NRMM shall be on site, at any
time, whether in use or not, without the prior written consent of the local planning authority. The
developer shall keep an up to date list of all NRMM used during the demolition, site preparation and
construction phases of the development on the online register at https://nrmm.london/."

REASON

To comply with the London's Low Emission Zone for non-road mobile machinery as per requirements
of the London Environment Strategy, in accordance with Policy EM8 of the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part 1 (2012), Policy DMEI 14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 (2020), Policy Sl 1 of the London
Plan (2021).

5. NONSC Fire Safety

Prior to first operation of the development, fire safety details shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. These details shall ensure that they:

i) identify suitably positioned unobstructed outside space:
a) for fire appliances to be positioned on;
b) appropriate for use as an evacuation assembly point;

ii) are designed to incorporate appropriate features which reduce the risk to life and the risk of

serious injury in the event of a fire; including appropriate fire alarm systems and passive and active

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 105



fire safety measures;
iii) are constructed in an appropriate way to minimise the risk of fire spread;

iv) provide suitable and convenient means of escape, and associated evacuation strategy for all
building users;

v) develop a robust strategy for evacuation which can be periodically updated and published, and
which all building users can have confidence in; and

vi) provide suitable access and equipment for firefighting which is appropriate for the size and use of
the development.

Thereafter the development shall be retained/maintained and operated in accordance with these
details for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To achieve the highest standards of fire safety and ensure the safety of all building users, in
accordance with Policy D12, part A), of the London Plan (2021).

INFORMATIVES

1. 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant planning
legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The Human Rights Act
(1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention
rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family
life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2. 170 LBH worked applicant in a positive & proactive (Granting)

In dealing with the application the Council has implemented the requirement in the National Planning
Policy Framework to work with the applicant in a positive and proactive way. We have made available
detailed advice in the form of our statutory policies from Local Plan Part 1, Local Plan Part 2,
Supplementary Planning Documents, Planning Briefs and other informal written guidance, as well as
offering a full pre-application advice service, in order to ensure that the applicant has been given
every opportunity to submit an application which is likely to be considered favourably.

3. 115 Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control of Pollution
Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you should ensure that the
following are complied with:-

A. Demolition and construction works which are audible at the site boundary shall only be carried out
between the hours of 08.00 and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between the hours of 08.00 hours
and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 106



B. All noise generated during such works shall be controlled in compliance with British Standard
Code of Practice BS 5228:20009.

C. Dust emissions shall be controlled in compliance with the Mayor of London's Best Practice
Guidance' The Control of dust and emissions from construction and demolition.

D. No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit (www.hillingdon.gov.uk/noise
Tel. 01895 250155) or to seek prior approval under Section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you
anticipate any difficulty in carrying out construction other than within the normal working hours set out
in (A) above, and by means that would minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

4,

The Equality Act 2010 seeks to protect people accessing goods, facilities and services from
discrimination on the basis of a 'protected characteristic', which includes those with a disability. As
part of the Act, service providers are obliged to improve access to and within the structure of their
building, particularly in situations where reasonable adjustment can be incorporated with relative
ease. The Act states that service providers should think ahead to take steps to address barriers that
impede disabled people.

5. 147 Damage to Verge - For Council Roads:

The Council will recover from the applicant the cost of highway and footway repairs, including
damage to grass verges.

Care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to ensure no damage occurs to the
verge or footpaths during construction. Vehicles delivering materials to this development shall not
override or cause damage to the public footway. Any damage will require to be made good to the
satisfaction of the Council and at the applicant's expense.

For further information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations, Central Depot -
Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon, Middlesex, UB3 3EU (Tel: 01895
277524).

For Private Roads: Care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to ensure no
damage occurs to the verge of footpaths on private roads during construction. Vehicles delivering
materials to this development shall not override or cause damage to a private road and where
possible alternative routes should be taken to avoid private roads. The applicant may be required to
make good any damage caused.

153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies and
proposals in the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1 (2012) and Part 2 (2020) set out below, including
Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations, including The London
Plan (2021) and national guidance.

DMCI 1 Retention of Existing Community Sport and Education Facilities

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 107



DMCI 1A Development of New Education Floorspace

DMCI 7 Planning Obligations and Community Infrastructure Levy
DMEI 1 Living Walls and Roofs and Onsite Vegetation
DMEI 10 Water Management, Efficiency and Quality

DMEI 14 Air Quality

DMEI 7 Biodiversity Protection and Enhancement

DMEI 9 Management of Flood Risk

DMHB 11 Design of New Development

DMHB 12 Streets and Public Realm

DMHB 14 Trees and Landscaping

DMHB 15 Planning for Safer Places

DMT 1 Managing Transport Impacts

DMT 2 Highways Impacts

DMT 6 Vehicle Parking

LPP D11 (2021) Safety, security and resilience to emergency
LPP D12 (2021) Fire safety

LPP D14 (2021) Noise

LPP D3 (2021) Optimising site capacity through the design-led approach
LPP D4 (2021) Delivering good design

LPP D5 (2021) Inclusive design

LPP D8 (2021) Public realm

LPP G1 (2021) Green infrastructure

LPP G5 (2021) Urban greening

LPP G6 (2021) Biodiversity and access to nature

LPP G7 (2021) Trees and woodlands

LPP S3 (2021) Education and childcare facilities

LPP S5 (2021) Sports and recreation facilities

LPP SI1 (2021) Improving air quality

LPP SI12 (2021) Flood risk management

LPP SI13 (2021) Sustainable drainage

LPP SI2 (2021) Minimising greenhouse gas emissions
LPP T1 (2021) Strategic approach to transport

LPP T2 (2021) Healthy Streets

LPP T4 (2021) Assessing and mitigating transport impacts
LPP T5 (2021) Cycling

LPP T6 (2021) Car parking

LPP T7 (2021) Deliveries, servicing and construction

NPPF11 -23 NPPF11 23 - Making effective use of land
NPPF12 -23 NPPF12 23 - Achieving well-designed and beautiful places
NPPF14 -23 NPPF14 23 - Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 108



NPPF15 -23 NPPF15 23 - Conserving and enhancing the natural environment
NPPF2 -23 NPPF2 2023 - Achieving sustainable development

NPPF4 -23 NPPF4 23 - Decision making

NPPF8 -23 NPPF8 23 - Promoting healthy and safe communities

NPPF9 -23 NPPF9 23 - Promoting sustainable transport

3. CONSIDERATIONS
3.1 Site and Locality

Meadow High School is a Special Education Needs and Disabilities (SEND) School located on the
west side of Royal Lane. The site measures approximately 2.1 hectares in area and currently
comprises of a cluster of low-rise buildings, hard surface play areas and a sports field. The site is
bounded by residential properties to the north, east and south, with properties located on Benson
Close, Royal Lane and Clarkes Drive. The school has a substantial area of hard surfacing to the front
of the site which currently facilitates car parking. Designated Green Belt land is located to the west of
the sports field and the site has a low Public Transport Accessibility Level (PTAL) of 2.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

This application seeks planning permission for the installation of a single-storey temporary classroom
(Use Class F1) with a total floor area of 93sq.m (GlA)/97sqg.m (GEA). The installation would comprise
two classrooms each of 46sq.m and will accommodate up to 10 students in each (20 students in
total), both supported by 2 members of staff each (4 staff in total).

It is proposed that the temporary classrooms will be installed in the summer 2024 ready for
occupation in September 2024. The classrooms will be required until the new facility at the Harefield
Academy site is complete anticipated to be in 2025. Planning permission is being sought for a
temporary period of 24 months which allows for sufficient time for the buildings to be installed on site
and then removed once the pupils and staff have moved into the new building at Harefield Academy.

The classrooms will be sited within the northern section of the site, within the courtyard area of the
two storey sixth form block, adjoining Benson Close and Peel Way. The development would be
located on a concrete pad requiring minimal intrusive work with lightweight surfacing used around the
buildings to provide access.

The installation of the temporary classrooms is proposed to take a period of 6 weeks and would be
done during school holidays to avoid disruption to teaching. The temporary classrooms would be
brought to the site using the front car park area where a crane would be sited to lift the classrooms
into place.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

17709/APP/2022/1387 Harefield Academy Northwood Way Harefield

Change of use of former residential school (Use Class C2) to education facility (Use Class F.1), two
storey extension to provide additional teaching space, construction of a Multi-Use Games Area,

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 109



revised vehicular access, landscaping, car and cycle parking, and associated works.
Decision: 26-07-2022 Approved

17709/APP/2023/2673 Lord Adonis House Harefield Academy Northwood Way Harefield

Demolition of former residential school and erection of academic building (Use Class F1) and
ancillary structures including heat pump and substation enclosures, construction of a multi-use
games area, revised vehicular access, landscaping, car and cycle parking and associated works.

Decision: 08-02-2024 Approved

3348/APP/2012/2433 Meadow High School Royal Lane Hillingdon

Removal of existing modular units and the construction of a new two storey sixth form block with
associated hard & soft landscaping

Decision: 04-12-2012 Approved

3348/APP/2020/1589 Meadow High School Royal Lane Hillingdon

Demolition of existing buildings and replacement with a new two storey building, sports hall, multi
use games court, hard play areas, substation and revised vehicular access, pupil drop off and
parking

Decision: 19-08-2020 Approved

3348/APP/2023/138 Meadow High School Royal Lane Hillingdon

Erection of a two-storey academic building (Use Class F1), demolition of existing temporary
modular structures and partial demolition of existing main teaching building to facilitate connections
to the main school, redevelopment of external hard and soft landscaped areas and associated
works

Decision: 29-03-2023 Approved

3348/APP/2023/2809 Meadow High School Royal Lane Hillingdon

Non-Material Amendment to planning permission ref. 3348/APP/2023/138, dated 02-06-2023,
(Erection of a two-storey academic building (Use Class F1), demolition of existing temporary
modular structures and partial demolition of existing main teaching building to facilitate connections
to the main school, redevelopment of external hard and soft landscaped areas and associated
works) to amend Condition 2 (Accordance with Approved Plans) in order to make alterations to the
design and to amend the trigger point of Condition 14 (Energy).

Decision: 19-10-2023 Approved

3348/APP/2023/419 Meadow High School Royal Lane Hillingdon

Temporary redevelopment of site including removal of existing external spaces to provide a
temporary two-storey academic building (Use Class F1).

Decision: 29-03-2023 Approved

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 110



Comment on Relevant Planning History

Temporary Permissions:

Application reference 3348/APP/2006/549 granted temporary 2-year planning permission for the
retention of a single storey detached temporary building, located immediately to the north of the
school's western wing. This permission expired 17th May 2008 and the building is being removed as
part of the development permitted under application reference 3348/APP/2023/138.

Application reference 3348/APP/2008/1544 granted temporary 5-year planning permission for the
erection of two portacabins as temporary classrooms within the northern section of the school site,
adjoining the access off Benson Close/Peel Way. This permission expired 1st July 2013 and the
building is being removed as part of the development permitted under application reference
3348/APP/2023/138.

Application reference 3348/APP/2020/899 granted permission for the construction of two temporary
single storey modular classroom units. This permission expired on 1st August 2022. Based on a site
visit carried out in February 2023, these temporary units are no longer in situ.

Application reference 3348/APP/2023/419 granted permission for the redevelopment of site to
provide a temporary two-storey academic building. This permission expires on 31st March 2025.

Permanent Planning Permissions:

Application reference 3348/APP/2010/1210 granted temporary 3-year planning permission for the
erection of building for use as classrooms within the northern section of the school site.

Application reference 3348/APP/2012/2433 granted permission for the removal of existing modular
units and the construction of a new two storey sixth form block within the northern section of the
school site. This permitted the permanent retention of the modular unit granted as part of application
reference 3348/APP/2010/1210.

Application reference 3348/APP/2020/1589 granted permission for the demolition of existing buildings
and replacement with a new two storey building, sports hall, multi use games court, hard play areas,
substation and revised vehicular access, pupil drop off and parking. This permission has been
implemented and is currently in operation.

Application reference 3348/APP/2023/138 granted permission for the erection of a two-storey
academic building (Use Class F1), demolition of existing temporary modular structures and partial
demolition of existing main teaching building to facilitate connections to the main school,
redevelopment of external hard and soft landscaped areas and associated works. This permission is
being implemented at the time of the current submission.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

Development Plan

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 111



Planning law requires that applications for planning permission be determined in accordance with the
development plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

The Development Plan for the London Borough of Hillingdon currently consists of the following
documents:

The Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (2012)

The Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020)
The Local Plan: Part 2 - Site Allocations and Designations (2020)
The West London Waste Plan (2015)

The London Plan (2021)

Material Considerations

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2023) is also a material consideration in planning
decisions, as well as relevant supplementary planning documents and guidance.

Local Plan Designation and London Plan
The following Local Plan Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment
PT1.CI1  (2012) Community Infrastructure Provision
PT1.CI2 (2012) Leisure and Recreation

PT1.EM1 (2012) Sustainable Waste Management
1

PT1.EM5 (2012) Sport and Leisure
PT1.EM6 (2012) Flood Risk Management

PT1.EM8 (2012) Land, Water, Air and Noise

Part 2 Policies:

DMEI 10 Water Management, Efficiency and Quality
DMEI 1  Living Walls and Roofs and Onsite Vegetation
DMHB 12 Streets and Public Realm

LPP D12 (2021) Fire safety

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 112



LPP D3 (2021) Optimising site capacity through the design-led approach
LPP D4 (2021) Delivering good design

LPP D8 (2021) Public realm

DMEI 14  Air Quality

DMCI 1 Retention of Existing Community Sport and Education Facilities
DMCI 1A Development of New Education Floorspace

DMCI 7  Planning Obligations and Community Infrastructure Levy
DMEI 7 Biodiversity Protection and Enhancement

LPP G1 (2021) Green infrastructure

LPP G5 (2021) Urban greening

LPP G6 (2021) Biodiversity and access to nature

LPP G7 (2021) Trees and woodlands

LPPT1  (2021) Strategic approach to transport

LPP T2 (2021) Healthy Streets

LPPT5 (2021) Cycling

LPPT6 (2021) Car parking

DMEI9 Management of Flood Risk

DMHB 11 Design of New Development

DMHB 14 Trees and Landscaping

DMHB 15 Planning for Safer Places

DMT 1 Managing Transport Impacts

DMT 2  Highways Impacts

DMT 6  Vehicle Parking

LPP D11 (2021) Safety, security and resilience to emergency

LPP D14 (2021) Noise

LPP D5 (2021) Inclusive design

LPP S3 (2021) Education and childcare facilities

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 113



LPP S5 (2021) Sports and recreation facilities

LPP SI1  (2021) Improving air quality

LPP SI12 (2021) Flood risk management

LPP SI13 (2021) Sustainable drainage

LPP SI2 (2021) Minimising greenhouse gas emissions
LPP T4 (2021) Assessing and mitigating transport impacts
LPP T7 (2021) Deliveries, servicing and construction

NPPF11 - NPPF11 23 - Making effective use of land
23

NPPF12 - NPPF12 23 - Achieving well-designed and beautiful places
23

NPPF14 - NPPF14 23 - Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change
23

NPPF15 - NPPF15 23 - Conserving and enhancing the natural environment
23

NPPF2 - NPPF2 2023 - Achieving sustainable development

23

NPPF4 - NPPF4 23 - Decision making

23

NPPF8 - NPPF8 23 - Promoting healthy and safe communities
23

NPPF9 - NPPF9 23 - Promoting sustainable transport

23

5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date: Not Applicable
6.2  Site Notice Expiry Date: Not applicable

6. Consultations

External Consultees
A total of 250 no. letters have been sent to neighbouring residents as part of the public consultation

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 114



exercise. A site notice displayed on site and an advert was posted in the local newspaper. All forms of
consultation expire on 8th March 2024.

One comment from a neighbouring resident has been received and is summarised below:

- No consideration has been taken in planning and designing the building.
- Neighbours have had to deal with constant building works for years.

- Trees have been replaced with an ugly fence with netting attached.

- The unit should be located somewhere else.

PLANNING OFFICER COMMENT:
All material planning considerations are addressed within the main body of the report.

Specifically, the proposed temporary classrooms unit is proposed to be sited in the northern section of the
site adjacent to the sixth form block as it is the only feasible location within the site. The remaining sections
of the site are subject to construction works, are occupied by school buildings or tree planting, or are used
to provide space for play and sport. There are no other locations within the site which could feasibly deliver
the proposal without adversely impacting on the education of the students.

It is also noted that the fencing comprises weld mesh fencing which is generally considered to be
acceptable design on school sites. The netting attached to the fence is to be replaced with wooden
screening which is considered to be a betterment in the interim.

LONDON FIRE BRIGADE:

No comments received.

Internal Consultees
ACCESS OFFICER:

This proposal is for permission to site a single storey temporary modular classroom. The proposed
classroom appears to be fundamentally accessible to disabled children using a wheelchair, however there
is no toilet accommodation close by. No accessibility objection is raised on the understanding that the
classroom is required to support the construction phase and would be removed once the new school
building is completed and occupied. CONCLUSION: acceptable.

HIGHWAYS OFFICER (Initial Comments):
Site Description

The application site is located on Royal Lane, a mainly residential road with a 30mph speed limit, and lies
to the north of Baitul Aman Mosque. School Keep Clear zig zag markings which prevent stopping Mon-Fri
7-11am and 1.30-5.30pm are located on Royal Lane outside the school. The application site is located
within Parking Management Scheme HH which restricts parking to permit holders only Mon-Fri 9am-5pm
with some pavement parking provision allowed in marked bays. Royal Lane is also subject to single and
double yellow line waiting restrictions.

Transport for London use a system called PTAL (Public Transport Accessibility Level) to measure access

to the public transport network. PTAL assesses walk times to the nearest public transport location taking

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 115



into account service frequency. The location is then scored between 0 and 6b where 0 is the worst and 6b
the best. According to the Transport for London WebCAT service the application site has a PTAL ranking
of 2 indicating access to public transport is poor compared to London as a whole, suggesting that most
trips to and from the application site would be made by the private motor car which fails to concur with the
published London Plan (2021) and the Mayors Transport Strategy (2022)

Access

The application proposes to provide a temporary building with an area of 93m2 providing 2no classrooms
of 46m2 each accommodating up to 10no. pupils and 2no. teaching staff per classroom which, as students
would arrive by minibus, would be unlikely to impact on highway safety or capacity.

Car Parking

The additional 4no. teaching staff that would be employed at the proposed temporary building would not be
provided with additional car parking spaces, however, the school has an acceptable Travel Plan which
would allow for staff to use alternative forms of transport which would therefore be unlikely to increase
parking stress and would likely be acceptable.

Proposed Works

The applicant has submitted a Construction Logistics Plan (CLP) Rev 1 dated 16th January 2024 which
states that works are expected to take six weeks and would be carried out during the summer school
holidays when the car park at the front of the school would be available which would be acceptable,
however, the period of work should be conditioned to minimise impact on the local highway network should
works overrun.

The CLP 2.2 Vehicle Delivery Routes states 'A 3 day parking suspension will be required to Violet avenue
for the duration of the delivery period week commencing 12th August 2024' which would be likely to be
acceptable as similar proposals were allowed under highway comments to application ref.
3348/APP/2023/138. The cost of making any necessary changes to the Traffic Order must be borne in full
by the applicant and secured through a 1990 Town and Country Planning Act s.106 legal agreement,
however, the applicant should be aware that the application may be refused if the traffic order cannot be
amended for any reason e.g., objection.

The CLP 3 Construction Programme and Methodology provides Site Working Hours and Delivery Times
which would be acceptable but should be amended to 'Holidays Only'. Works during term times would be
likely to have increased impact on the local highway network which may not be acceptable.

The CLP 3.1 Construction Programme Phases provides details of plant and machinery that would be used
on site which would be acceptable. A mobile crane would be required to lift and position the temporary
cabins.

The Design and Access Statement ref TVC0025-NOV-V4-XX-R -A-PL33 Rev P01 5.1 Use provides a site
layout drawing indicating locations of the proposed temporary building and crane and entrance and exit
routes, however, it is noted that construction vehicles would be likely to use the existing 'exit' as an access
which would be acceptable during holiday times when the school is not operational, however, all vehicles
should enter and leave the site in a forward gear which should be conditioned.

Recommendation

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 116



The Highway Authority are satisfied that the proposal would not discernibly exacerbate congestion or
parking stress and would not raise any measurable highway safety concerns and would therefore offer no
objection to the application but would require the following conditions to be applied to any approval:

Conditions
1) No works shall commence on site until a Temporary Traffic Regulation Order secured through a 1990
Town and Country Planning Act s.106 legal agreement to suspend parking on Violet Avenue for 3 days

commencing 12 August 2024 has been secured

REASON: To be in accordance with the published London Plan (2021) Policy T4 Assessing and Mitigating
Transport Impacts and Policy T7 Deliveries, Servicing and Construction

2) No works shall commence on site until a Construction Logistics Plan to concur with Construction
Logistics Planning (CLP) Guidance Version: v1.2 (April 2021) has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Highway Authority.

REASON: To be in accordance with the published London Plan (2021) Policy T4 Assessing and Mitigating
Transport Impacts

3) No works to the temporary redevelopment of the site or loss of car parking required to install the single
storey temporary modular classroom are to be undertaken during term time

REASON: To be in accordance with the published London Plan (2021) Policy T4 Assessing and Mitigating
Transport Impacts and Policy T7 Deliveries, Servicing and Construction

4) All vehicles must enter and leave the site in a forward gear

REASON: To be in accordance with the published London Plan (2021) Policy T4 Assessing and Mitigating
Transport Impacts and Policy T7 Deliveries, Servicing and Construction

PLANNING OFFICER COMMENT:

Parking suspensions are secured via a Temporary Traffic Regulation Order (TTRO) which is separate to
the planning process. It is not necessary to secure this through a S106 legal agreement.

All matters relating to construction, including the recommended conditions 1 to 4 above have been
addressed by the amended Construction Logistics Plan submitted.

The Council's Highways Officer has reviewed the amended Construction Logistics Plan and does not raise
any objections to the proposal.

AIR QUALITY OFFICER:

| have no air quality concerns in regards to this temporary application.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 117



PROPOSED EDUCATION FACILITY AND SPORT/RECREATION IMPACT

Meadow High School is at capacity with 257 pupils and there is a need to provide improved and
additional school SEND places. Currently, there are only three schools in Hillingdon that support
children with SEND requirements and each school is full, with demand increasing. The need is urgent
as the pupils are already in primary schools and this needs to be reflected in an increase of
secondary school provision.

Paragraph 99 of the NPPF (2023) states that it is important that a sufficient choice of school places is
available to meet the needs of existing and new communities. Local planning authorities should take
a proactive, positive and collaborative approach to meeting this requirement, and to development that
will widen choice in education

Policy S3 of the London Plan (2021) seeks to ensure there is a sufficient supply of good quality
education facilities to meet demand and offer educational choice.

Policy S5 of the London Plan (2021) requires that existing sports and recreation facilities should be
retained unless the loss resulting from the proposed development would be replaced by equivalent or
better provision in terms of quantity and quality in a suitable location.

At the local level, Policy CI 1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 (2012) supports the retention and
enhancement of existing community facilities.

Policy DMCI 1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 (2020) establishes the principle that development
should not result in the loss of an existing community facility. Policy DMCI 1A of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part 2 (2020) also states that proposals for new schools and school expansions will be
assessed against the following criteria:

A) The size of the site, its location and suitability to accommodate a new school or school expansion
taking account of compatibility with surrounding uses, and existing planning policy designations (e.g.
conservation areas, MOL, Green Belt).

B) The impact on green open space, games pitches, outdoor play and amenity space, taking account
of the character of the area, whether the site is within an area of open space deficiency and whether
the school has sufficient outdoor space for play and games.

C) The location and accessibility of the site in relation to:

i) the intended catchment area of the school;

ii) public transport; and

i) the local highway network and its ability to accommodate new or additional school trips without
adverse impact on highway safety and convenient walking and cycling routes to schools.

D) The extent to which the building design contributes towards the government target that schools
and colleges should be zero carbon from 2016.

This application seeks planning permission for the installation of a single-storey temporary classroom
unit (Use Class F1) for a period of 24 months. The classrooms are required until the new facility at the
Harefield Academy site is completed (approved under application ref. 17709/APP/2023/2673, dated
8th February 2024). The application is needed to support uninterrupted provision of SEND school
places within the borough. Evidently, the proposal would not result in the loss of a community facility,
and forms part of a development programme which would suitably provide a new school facility on
previously developed land.

The development would take place within the courtyard area of the sixth form block. It would not be

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 118



permanent development, however, and a planning condition would be secured, if approved, requiring
that the area where the development sat shall be restored to a space of at least equivalent quality as
the pre-existing space, including the tree planting provisions detailed on approved drawing reference
"TVC0024-NOV-V4-00-DR-A-PL34 Rev. P01 Removal Reinstatement Plan".

Subiject to the above planning condition, the development is considered to be acceptable in principle.

7.02 Density of the proposed development
Not applicable to the consideration of the application.

7.03 Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character
Not applicable to the consideration of the application.

7.04 Airport safeguarding

Policy DMAV 1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 (2020) states:

A) The Council will support the continued safe operation of Heathrow Airport and RAF Northolt and
will consult with the airport operator on proposals in the safeguarded areas. Proposals that may be a
hazard to aircraft safety will not be permitted.

B) In consultation with the Airport Operator, the Council will ensure that:

i) areas included in Airport Public Safety zones are protected from development which may lead to an
increase in people residing, working or congregating in these zones; and

ii) sensitive uses such as housing, education and hospitals are not located in areas significantly
affected by aircraft noise without acceptable mitigation measures.

The application site is not located within an air safeguarding zone. As such, the proposed
development is not considered likely to pose any safeguarding impacts and would accord with Policy
DMAV 1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 (2020).

7.05 Impact on the green belt
Not applicable to the consideration of the application.

7.07 Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 (2012) requires all new development to improve and
maintain the quality of the built environment to create successful and sustainable neighbourhoods.

Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 (2020) states that:

A) All development, including extensions, alterations and new buildings will be required to be
designed to the highest standards and, incorporate principles of good design including:

i) harmonising with the local context by taking into account the surrounding:

- scale of development, considering the height, mass and bulk of adjacent structures;

- building plot sizes and widths, plot coverage and established street patterns;

- building lines and setbacks, rooflines, streetscape rhythm, for example, gaps between structures
and other streetscape elements, such as degree of enclosure;

- architectural composition and quality of detailing;

- local topography, views both from and to the site; and

- impact on neighbouring open spaces and their environment.

ii) ensuring the use of high quality building materials and finishes;

iii) ensuring that the internal design and layout of development maximises sustainability and is
adaptable to different activities;

iv) protecting features of positive value within and adjacent to the site, including the safeguarding of

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 119



heritage assets, designated and un-designated, and their settings; and
v) landscaping and tree planting to protect and enhance amenity, biodiversity and green
infrastructure.

The proposed single-storey temporary classroom would be sited in the northern portion of the school
site, in the courtyard area serving the sixth form block, adjoining Benson Close and Peel Way. The
structure would measure 13.42m by 7.15m and 3m in height. The structure would utilise steel panels
in goosewing grey as the main facing material, alongside blue grey windows and a slate grey door.
The development would be located on a concrete pad requiring minimal intrusive work with
lightweight surfacing used around the buildings to provide access.

Whilst the temporary unit would be visible from Benson Close, it would not be considered as imposing
as the adjoining sixth form block. It would be subordinate to this building and due to the proposed
temporary willow screening which is to be attached to the existing boundary fencing, the unit would
not be fully visible from the street scene. It is noted that such screening would give privacy to both
students and neighbouring residents.

The temporary nature of the development means that only a temporary planning permission is
considered appropriate. Based on the grant of a temporary planning permission, requiring the
removal of the development at a later date, the proposed development is not considered contrary to
the requirements of Policy BE 1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 (2012) and Policy DMHB 11 of
the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 (2020).

7.08 Impact on neighbours

With regard to the impact on neighbouring residents, relevant planning policies and the associated
supporting text is copied below for reference.

Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 (2020) states that:
B) Development proposals should not adversely impact on the amenity, daylight and sunlight of
adjacent properties and open space.

Paragraph 5.38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 (2020) states: "The Council will aim to ensure that
there is sufficient privacy for residents and it will resist proposals where there is an unreasonable
level of overlooking between habitable rooms of adjacent residential properties, schools or onto
private open spaces. A minimum of 21 metres separation distance between windows of habitable
rooms will be required to maintain levels of privacy and to prevent the possibility of overlooking. In
some locations where there is a significant difference in ground levels between dwellings, a greater
separation distance may be necessary."

Paragraph 5.40 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 (2020) states: "For the purposes of this policy,
outlook is defined as the visual amenity enjoyed by occupants when looking out of their windows or
from their garden. The Council will expect new development proposals to carefully consider layout
and massing in order to ensure development does not result in an increased sense of enclosure and
loss of outlook."

Paragraph 5.41 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 (2020) states: "The Council will aim to minimise
the impact of the loss of daylight and sunlight and unacceptable overshadowing caused by new
development on habitable rooms, amenity space and public open space. The Council will also seek to
ensure that the design of new development optimises the levels of daylight and sunlight. The Council
will expect the impact of the development to be assessed following the methodology set out in the

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 120



most recent version of the Building Research Establishments (BRE) "Site layout planning for daylight
and sunlight: A guide to good practice".

The classrooms would be sited within the northern section of the site, within the courtyard area of the
two storey sixth form block, adjoining Benson Close and Peel Way. The development would be
located circa 22m away from the closest properties on Benson Close, including numbers 1 to 11
Benson Close, and circa 25m from number 47 Peel Way. Screening is also to be fixed to the existing
1.8m high fence and would prevent any intervisibility between the classrooms and neighbouring
properties. In light of this, the development is considered unlikely to pose a detrimental impact in
terms of amenity, outlook or daylight and sunlight, in accordance with Policy DMHB 11, part B), of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 (2020).

7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers
Not applicable to the consideration of the application.

7.10 Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

The site is located on Northwood Way. Based on TfL's WebCAT planning tool, the site has a PTAL
rating of 2 (low). This indicates that access to public transport is moderate and that there is a
dependency on the private car for trip making to and from the site.

Policy DMT 1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 (2020) states:
A) Development proposals will be required to meet the transport needs of the development and
address its transport impacts in a sustainable manner.

Policy DMT 2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 (2020) states that proposals must ensure that safe
and efficient vehicular access to the highway network is provided, schemes do not contribute to the
deterioration of air quality, noise or local amenity or safety of all road users and residents. Also that
impacts on local amenity and congestion are minimised and there are suitable mitigation measures to
address any traffic impacts in terms of capacity and functions of existing and committed roads.

Policy DMT 6 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 (2020) requires that proposals comply with the
Council's parking standards in order to facilitate sustainable development and address issues relating
to congestion and amenity. This should be viewed in conjunction with Policy T6 of the London Plan
(2021).

Paragraph 115 of the NPPF (2023) states that development should only be prevented or refused on
highways grounds if there would be an unacceptable impact on highway safety, or the residual
cumulative impacts on the road network would be severe. This is supported by Policy T4 of the
London Plan (2021).

The application proposes to provide a temporary building with an area of 93m2 providing 2no
classrooms of 46m2, accommodating up to 20no. pupils and 4no. teaching staff. As students would
arrive by minibus it is considered unlikely that this increase would result in a detrimental highway
safety impact. The additional 4no. teaching staff would not be provided with additional car parking
spaces, however, the school Travel Plan would encourage staff to use alternative forms of transport
and it would therefore be unlikely to result in an unacceptable increase to parking stress.

The applicant has submitted a Construction Logistics Plan which states that works are expected to
take six weeks and will be carried out during the summer school holidays when the car park at the
front of the school will be available. A 3 day parking suspension will also be required to Violet avenue

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 121



for the duration of the delivery period week commencing 12th August 2024. Following the receipt of a
revised Construction Logistics Plan, the Highway Authority have confirmed no objection.

Accordingly, the proposed temporary development would not be considered contrary to Policies DMT
1, DMT 2 and DMT 6 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 (2020) and Policies T4 and T6 of the
London Plan (2021).

7.11 Urban design, access and security
URBAN DESIGN

Please see Section 07.07 of the report.
ACCESS

Please see Section 07.12 of the report.
SECURITY

Policy DMHB 15 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 (2020) states that the Council will require all new
development to ensure safe and attractive public and private spaces by referring to the Council's
latest guidance on Secured by Design principles. Where relevant, these should be included in the
Design and Access Statement. Development will be required to comprise good design and create
inclusive environments whilst improving safety and security by incorporating the following specific
measures:

i) providing entrances in visible, safe and accessible locations;

ii) maximising natural surveillance;

iii) ensuring adequate defensible space is provided;

iv) providing clear delineations between public and private spaces; and

v) providing appropriate lighting and CCTV.

This is supported by Policy D11 of the London Plan (2021).

The development would not compromise the security of the school site and would be located within a
contained area of the site, with boundary fencing separating the development and Benson Close. The
development is considered to accord with Policy DMHB 15 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 (2020)
and Policy D11 of the London Plan (2021).

7.12 Disabled access

Policy D5 of the London Plan (2021) states that development should achieve the highest standards of
accessible and inclusive design. Specifically, it should be convenient and welcoming with no disabling
barriers, providing independent access without additional undue effort, separation or special
treatment.

An accessibility ramp is proposed and would provide level access to the classroom units. The Access
Officer notes that the development does not provide an accessible toilet accommodation but is
accepted on the basis that the development is temporary. On balance, the proposal is considered to
accord with reasonable requirements of Policy D5 of the London Plan (2021).

7.13 Provision of affordable & special needs housing
Not applicable to the consideration of the application.

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 122



7.14 Trees, landscaping and Ecology

Policies DMHB 11 and DMHB 14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 (2020) require that new
development is high quality, sustainable, adaptable, and harmonises with the local context.
Landscaping and tree planting should enhance amenity, biodiversity and green infrastructure.
Development proposals will be required to provide a landscape scheme that includes hard and soft
landscaping appropriate to the character of the area, which supports and enhances biodiversity and
amenity particularly in areas deficient in green infrastructure.

Whilst not protected by a TPO or Conservation Area designation, there is a line of trees a short
distance to the north of the proposed development. The classrooms are not located within the root
protection area (RPA) of the trees on Benson Close and only require small pad foundations with
minimal intrusive work required. The access ramp and platform is nearer to the RPA but again not
considered to be within it and requires an even less intrusive foundation to provide support.

Planning permission reference 3348/APP/2012/2433 secured the provision of tree planting in the area
of the site which is proposed to accommodate the temporary unit. It is understood that this tree
planting was never provided. A post development restoration plan has therefore been submitted and
confirms the provision of three trees once the development has been removed. This includes one
Magnolia Grandiflora and two Conifers. This is accepted and supported.

Subject to compliance with the detail submitted, the proposal would accord with Policy DMHB 11 and
DMHB 14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 (2020).

7.15 Sustainable waste management

The proposed development would not impact on sustainable waste management operating at the
school site and is considered acceptable.

7.16 Renewable energy / Sustainability
Not applicable to the consideration of the application.

7.17 Flooding or Drainage Issues

Policy SI 12 of the London Plan (2021) requires that development proposals ensure that flood risk is
minimised and mitigated. Policy S| 13 of the London Plan (2021) also requires that development
proposals utilise sustainable urban drainage systems (SuDS) unless there are practical reasons for
not doing so, and should aim to achieve greenfield run-off rates and ensure that surface water run-off
is managed as close to its source as possible. This is supported by Policy EM6 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part 1 (2012) and Policies DMEI 9 and DMEI 10 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 (2020).

The sustainable water management measures for the area of the site affected by the proposal have
already been implemented and the proposed development would not have a material impact on this
consideration. As such, the proposal is not considered contrary to Policies SI 12 and Sl 13 of the
London Plan (2021), Policy EM6 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 (2012) and Policies DMEI 9 and
DMEI 10 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 (2020).

7.18 Noise or Air Quality Issues
NOISE

Policy D14 of the London Plan (2021) states:
A) In order to reduce, manage and mitigate noise to improve health and quality of life, residential and

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 123



other non-aviation development proposals should manage noise by:

1) avoiding significant adverse noise impacts on health and quality of life

2) reflecting the Agent of Change principle as set out in Policy D13 Agent of Change

3) mitigating and minimising the existing and potential adverse impacts of noise on, from, within, as a
result of, or in the vicinity of new development without placing unreasonable restrictions on existing
noise-generating uses

4) improving and enhancing the acoustic environment and promoting appropriate soundscapes
(including Quiet Areas and spaces of relative tranquillity)

5) separating new noise-sensitive development from major noise sources (such as road, rail, air
transport and some types of industrial use) through the use of distance, screening, layout, orientation,
uses and materials - in preference to sole reliance on sound insulation

6) where it is not possible to achieve separation of noise-sensitive development and noise sources
without undue impact on other sustainable development objectives, then any potential adverse effects
should be controlled and mitigated through applying good acoustic design principles

7) promoting new technologies and improved practices to reduce noise at source, and on the
transmission path from source to receiver.

Policy EM8 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 (2012) states that the Council will seek to ensure that
noise sensitive development and noise generating development are only permitted if noise impacts
can be adequately controlled and mitigated.

As existing, the application site facilitates a breaktime space for sixth form students. The proposed
development would therefore displace this use to another area of the school site, further away from
neighbouring residents located along Peel Way and Benson Close. Unlike the current situation, the
outdoor area would only be used by staff and students accessing the classrooms, therefore resulting
in less disturbance.

The temporary development would be located over 22 metres from the nearest residential properties
located on Benson Close and Peel Way. In light of this, the proposed units and their associated use
would not pose a detrimental impact in terms of noise, particularly as the activities associated with the
classrooms would be internal as opposed to the existing external use of the play space.

It is noted that there would be noise impacts associated with the construction of the development, but
this is controlled by The Control of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation.

Given the considerations above, the proposed development would not be contrary to the
requirements of Policy D14 of the London Plan (2021) and Policy EM8 of the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part 1 (2012).

AIR QUALITY

Policy EMS8 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 (2012) states that the Council will seek to safeguard
and improve all land, water, air and noise quality. All development should not cause deterioration in
the local air quality levels and should ensure the protection of both existing and new sensitive
receptors. Policy Sl 1 of the London Plan (2021) further supports this.

Policy DMEI 14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 (2020) states:

A) Development proposals should demonstrate appropriate reductions in emissions to sustain
compliance with and contribute towards meeting EU limit values and national air quality objectives for
pollutants.

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 124



B) Development proposals should, as a minimum:

i) be at least "air quality neutral”;

ii) include sufficient mitigation to ensure there is no unacceptable risk from air pollution to sensitive
receptors, both existing and new; and

iii) actively contribute towards the improvement of air quality, especially within the Air Quality
Management Area.

The proposed development is located in the Hillingdon Air Quality Management Area and within the
catchment of the Hillingdon Hospital Air Quality Focus Area which is located circa 300m to the north-
east. The proximity of Hillingdon Hospital is regarded as a sensitive receptor in regard to the impacts
of pollution from both the demolition and construction phases, and in the operational phase, from any
impacts caused by any increases in traffic generation and/or exacerbation of congestion in the local
area.

Whilst the proposed development would increase the number of staff by 4 and pupils by 20, the pupils
would access the site by minibus and the school Travel Plan is proposed to encourage sustainable
travel by staff. In view of the temporary permission sought, no significant air quality harm is
anticipated. The Council's Air Quality Officer has confirmed no objection to the proposals.

In terms of construction, the development would be subject to a Construction Logistics Plan that
would seek to minimise the impacts of construction traffic, controlled by condition, and the proposed
works, which would be limited by their scale and nature, should be carried out in accordance with the
Mayor of London's Control of Dust and Emissions during Construction and Demolition SPG. This
includes the requirement to comply with the Non Road Mobile Machinery Low Emission Zone
regulations.

Given the above considerations, the proposed development would not be considered contrary to
Policy DMEI 14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 (2020) and Policy EM8 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part 1 (2012).

7.19 Comments on Public Consultations
Please see Section 06.1 of the report.

7.20 Planning obligations

Policy DMCI 7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 (2020) states:

A) To ensure development is sustainable, planning permission will only be granted for development
that clearly demonstrates there will be sufficient infrastructure of all types to support it. Infrastructure
requirements will be predominantly addressed through the Council's Community Infrastructure Levy
(CIL).

B) Planning obligations will be sought on a scheme-by-scheme basis:

i) to secure the provision of affordable housing in relation to residential development schemes;

ii) where a development has infrastructure needs that are not addressed through CIL; and

iii) to ensure that development proposals provide or fund improvements to mitigate site specific
impacts made necessary by the proposal.

C) Applications that fail to secure an appropriate Planning Obligation to make the proposal
acceptable will be refused.

The Community Infrastructure Levy Regulation 2010 (Regulations issued Pursuant to the 2008 Act)
and the NPPF have put three tests on the use of planning obligations into law. It is unlawful (since
6th April 2010) to request planning obligations that do not meet the following tests:

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 125



i.necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms
ii.directly related to the development, and
iii.fairly and reasonable related in scale and kind to the development

The effect of the Regulations is that the Council must apply the tests much more strictly and is only to
ask for planning obligations that are genuinely necessary and directly related to a development.
Should planning obligations be requested that do not meet the policy tests the Council would have
acted unlawfully and could be subject to a High Court challenge.

On the basis of the NPPF and the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulation 2010, it is not
considered reasonable to request any planning obligations.

COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY (CIL):
The scheme would also be liable for payments under the Community Infrastructure Levy.

Please be advised that as from 1 April 2012, all planning approvals for schemes with a net additional
internal floor area of 100m2 or more will be liable for the Mayoral Community Infrastructure Levy
(Mayoral CIL), as legislated by the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 and The
Community Infrastructure Levy (Amendment) Regulations 2011. The liability payable will be equal to
£60 per square metre (from April 2019). The London Borough of Hillingdon is a collecting authority for
the Mayor of London and this liability shall be paid to LBH in the first instance.

In addition the development represents Chargeable Development under the Hillingdon Community
Infrastructure Levy, which came into effect on 1st August 2014. The liability payable is equal to £0 for
the proposed school use.

7.21 Expediency of enforcement action
Not applicable to the consideration of the application.

7.22 Other Issues
FIRE SAFETY

Policy D12 of the London Plan (2021) states:

A) In the interests of fire safety and to ensure the safety of all building users, all development
proposals must achieve the highest standards of fire safety and ensure that they:

1) identify suitably positioned unobstructed outside space:

a) for fire appliances to be positioned on

b) appropriate for use as an evacuation assembly point

2) are designed to incorporate appropriate features which reduce the risk to life and the risk of serious
injury in the event of a fire; including appropriate fire alarm systems and passive and active fire safety
measures

3) are constructed in an appropriate way to minimise the risk of fire spread

4) provide suitable and convenient means of escape, and associated evacuation strategy for all
building users

5) develop a robust strategy for evacuation which can be periodically updated and published, and

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 126



which all building users can have confidence in
6) provide suitable access and equipment for firefighting which is appropriate for the size and use of
the development.

B) All major development proposals should be submitted with a Fire Statement, which is an
independent fire strategy, produced by a third party, suitably qualified assessor.

It is noted that the proposed development does not constitute major scale development and as such a
Fire Statement does not technically need to be submitted as per part B) of Policy D12. This policy
does, however, require that the highest standards of fire safety are achieved under part A). This is
especially important given the proposed school use of the development.

The Planning Statement states that a Fire Strategy is in place at Meadow High School to ensure the
safe escape of pupils and staff in the event of a fire or other emergency. This new facility would be
required to operate in accordance with this established strategy. The temporary classrooms
themselves would be built to be fully compliant with the relevant Building Regulations with regard to
fire safety.

If recommended for approval, details to accord with Policy D12, part A), of the London Plan (2021)
shall be secured by planning condition.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so far as
material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including regional and national
policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in accordance with all relevant
primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use of land in
the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning applications
adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also the guidance
contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent should not be
refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal. Planning conditions should
only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing the conditions are necessary, relevant to
planning, relevant to the development to be permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all
other respects. Where conditions are imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for
imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an agreement or
undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 are necessary to
make the development acceptable in planning terms. The obligations must be directly related to the
development and fairly and reasonably related to the scale and kind to the development (Regulation
122 of Community Infrastructure Levy 2010).

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 127



Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning applications to
have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of opportunities and foster
good relations between people who have different protected characteristics. The protected
characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or
belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should consider
whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a proposal when
compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic. Where equalities issues arise,
members should weigh up the equalities impact of the proposals against the other material
considerations relating to the planning application. Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive,
but the objective of advancing equalities must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an
application. The weight to be given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to
determine in all of the circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in particular
the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the protection of property and
the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be proportionate and achieve a fair balance
between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable

10. CONCLUSION

The proposed installation of a single-storey temporary classroom (Use Class F1) for a period of 24
months is required until the new facility at the Harefield Academy site is completed (approved under
application ref. 17709/APP/2023/2673, dated 8th February 2024), which is anticipated to be in 2025.
The application is needed to support uninterrupted provision of SEND school places within the
borough. On the basis that temporary permission is granted and subject to conditions, this application
is recommended for approval.

11. Reference Documents

National Planning Policy Framework (December 2023)

The London Plan (March 2021)

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012)

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (January 2020)
Accessible Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document (September 2017)
Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document (July 2014)

Contact Officer: Michael Briginshaw Telephone No: 01895 250230

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 128



)

Ambulance Station

Meadow High School
(Special Needs)

Notes: Site Address: LONDON BOROUGH
[ ] site boundary OF HILLINGDON
For identification purposes only MeadOW ngh SChOOI RSISidents gerVices
' anning Section
This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee

Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.
© Crown copyright and database

rights 2020 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 01895 250111
Planning Application Ref: Scale:
3348/APP/2024/74 1:1,250 vy,
SX
Planning Committee: Date: s

Minor Page 129| April 2024 HNILLINGDON

LONDON




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 10

Report of the Head of Development Management and Building Control
Address: FORMER GARAGES SITE REAR OF SULLIVAN CRESCENT HAREFIELD

Development: Variation of Condition 2 (Approved Plans) of planning permission ref.
60653/APP/2022/531, dated 10-03-23 (Erection of no. 4 x two storey terraced
houses and no.2 x two storey semi-detached houses, with associated car
parking and landscaping works) to alter footprint and design of Plot 5 to
accommodate fully accessible dwelling to meet M4(3) technical specification.

LBH Ref Nos: 60653/APP/2024/295

Drawing Nos: 2021/D/320/P/03 Rev E
2021/D/320/P/06 Rev H
2021/D/320/P/07 Rev E

Date Plans received: 05-02-2024 Date(s) of Amendments(s):

Date Application valid  06-02-2024

1. SUMMARY

The application seeks a variation to Condition 2 (Approved Plans) of planning permission ref.
60653/APP/2022/531, dated 10-03-23 (Erection of no. 4 x two storey terraced houses and no.2 x two
storey semi-detached houses, with associated car parking and landscaping works).

The purpose of the current application is to amend the design of the dwelling which will occupy Plot 5
which involves a modest extension to the front and side of the property measuring 20.3m2. In
addition, a new window is proposed within the ground floor southeast elevation which serves the
kitchen and a minor alteration to the height of the roof.

The amendment has been proposed to enhance the accessible standards of the dwelling and assist
with meeting the (M4(3) technical specification, whilst retaining the number of bedrooms (3).

The proposed amendments to the scheme are minor in scale and as such, this application is
recommended for approval.

2. RECOMMENDATION

APPROVAL subiject to the following:

1. RES3  Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the date
of the original permission (10 March 2026).

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 131



REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2. RES4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete accordance with the
details shown on the submitted plans, numbers:

2021/D320/P/01

2021/D320/P/02

2021/D/320/P/04 Rev. B

2021/D/320/P/05 Rev. A

2021/D/320/P/08 Rev. A

2021/D/320/P/03 Rev E

2021/D/320/P/06 Rev H

2021/D/320/P/07 Rev E;

and shall thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1 (2012),
Part 2 (2020) and the London Plan (2021).

3. RES6 Levels

No development shall take place until plans of the site showing the existing and proposed ground
levels and the proposed finished floor levels of all proposed buildings have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such levels shall be shown in relation to a fixed
and known datum point. Thereafter the development shall not be carried out other than in
accordance with the approved details.

REASON
To ensure that the development relates satisfactorily to adjoining properties in accordance with
Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

4. OM19 Construction Management Plan

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete accordance with the
Demolition and Construction Management Plan, by YES Engineering Group Limited dated October
2023 and Traffic Management Plan (Figure 4.3 - TMP) approved in application reference
60653/APP/2023/3003 and shall thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the development
remains in existence.

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of surrounding areas in accordance with Policies DMT 2 and DMHB 11 of
the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

5. NONSC Land Contamination

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete accordance with the
details approved in application reference 60653/APP/2023/3178 for Condition 5i (a, b and c) i.e.
(Desk Study, Site Investigation and Remediation Method Statement).

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 132



follows:

(i) If during remedial or development works contamination not addressed in the submitted
remediation scheme is identified an addendum to the remediation scheme shall be agreed in writing
with the LPA prior to implementation; and

(iif) Upon completion of the approved remedial works, this condition will not be discharged until a
comprehensive verification report has been submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA. The
report shall include the details of the final remediation works and their verification to show that the
works have been carried out in full and in accordance with the approved methodology.

(iv) No contaminated soils or other materials shall be imported to the site. All imported soils for
landscaping and/or engineering purposes shall be clean and free of contamination. Before any part
of the development is occupied, all imported soils shall be independently tested for chemical
contamination, and the factual results and interpretive reports of this testing shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and neighbouring land
are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and ecological systems and the
development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other
offsite receptors in accordance with Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 (January 2020) Policies - DMEI 11:
Protection of Ground Water Resources and DMEI 12: Development of Land Affected by
Contamination.

6. NONSC Sustainable water management and water efficiency

No development approved by this permission shall be commenced until a scheme for the provision of
sustainable water management and water efficiency has been submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall:

i. Provide information about the design storm period and intensity, the method employed to delay and
control the surface water discharged from the site and the measures taken to prevent pollution of the
receiving groundwater and/or surface waters;

ii. Include a timetable for its implementation; and

iii. Provide a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development which shall
include the arrangements for adoption by any public authority or statutory undertaker and any other
arrangements to secure the operation of the scheme throughout its lifetime.

The scheme shall also demonstrate the use of methods to minimise the use of potable water through
water collection, reuse and recycling and will:

iv. Provide details of water collection facilities to capture excess rainwater;

v. Provide details of how rain and grey water will be recycled and reused in the development;

vi. Provide details of how the dwellings will achieve a water efficiency standard of no more than 110
litres per person per day maximum water consumption (to include a fixed factor of water for outdoor
use of 5 litres per person per day in accordance with the optional requirement defined within
Approved Document G of the Building Regulations).

Thereafter the development shall be implemented and retained/maintained in accordance with these
details for as long as the development remains in existence.

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 133



REASON

To ensure the development does not increase the risk of surface water flooding in accordance with
Policies DMEI 9 and DMEI 10 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020) and Policies SI2 and SI 13
of the London Plan (2021).

7. NONSC Materials

Prior to the commencement of any works above damp proof course level, details of all materials and
external surfaces shall have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. Thereafter the development shall be constructed in accordance with the approved details
and be retained as such. Details should include information relating to make, product/type, colour
and photographs/images.

REASON
To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with Policies
DMHB 11 and DMHB 12 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

8. NONSC Energy & Sustainability

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete accordance with the
Full SAP Calculation printout (Issued on date 28.09.23) and Technical Note Energy & Sustainability
(dated 24.10.23, Ref: J2992) approved in application reference 60653/APP/2023/3178 and shall
thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON

To ensure the development contributes to minimising the effects of, and can adapt to a changing
climate in accordance with Policies DMEI 2 and DMEI 10 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2-
Development Management Policies (2020) and Policy S| 2 of the London Plan (2021).

9. NONSC Step Free Access

Prior to any works on site above damp proof course level, details of step free access via all points of
entry and exit shall be submitted to, and approved in writing, by the Local Planning Authority. Such
provision shall remain in place for the life of the building.

REASON
To ensure housing of an inclusive design is achieved and maintained in accordance with Policies D5
and D7 of the London Plan (2021).

10. NONSC Building Regulations standards

At least one dwelling hereby approved shall be constructed in accordance with the technical
specifications for an M4(3) dwelling. The remaining dwellings shall be constructed in accordance with
the technical specifications for an M4(2) dwelling as set out in Approved Document M to the Building
Regulations (2010) 2015.

REASON

To not only allow the Building Control body to require the development to comply with the optional
Building Regulations standards, but to also ensure the appropriate quantity and standard of
accessible and adaptable housing is constructed and maintained in accordance with policy D7 of the

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 134



London Plan.
11. NONSC Tree Protection Measures

The demolition and construction works of the development hereby approved shall be carried out
strictly in accordance with the tree protection measures specified in the document titled' Report
regarding the impact on trees of proposals for development at Garages Site, Sullivan Crescent,
Harefield UB9 6NL' reference S1016-J3-1A-1, approved as part of application reference
60653/APP/2022/531.

REASON

To ensure that trees and other vegetation can and will be retained and not damaged during
construction work and to ensure that the development conforms with Policy DMHB 14 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

12. RES9 Landscaping (car parking & refuse/cycle storage)

Notwithstanding the details specified on the approved drawings, and prior to the commencement of
any works above damp proof course level, a landscape scheme shall have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include: -

1. Details of Soft Landscaping

1.a Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100), including revised siting and details of the
proposed 8 new trees as specified in the application

1.b Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken

1.c Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities where
appropriate and to include pollution absorbing species.

2. Details of Hard Landscaping

2.a Refuse storage (including the dimensions, design and external finish)

2.b Cycle storage (including the dimensions, design and external finish)

2.c Means of enclosure/boundary treatments

2.d Car parking layouts (including 3 active and 9 passive electric charging points, and at least 1
disabled parking space measuring 2.4m x 4.8m plus a 1.2m transfer zone)

2.e Permeable hard surfacing materials which must be used for the access road and parking spaces

3. Details of Landscape Maintenance

3.a Landscape maintenance schedule for a minimum period of 5 years

3.b Proposals for the replacement of any tree, shrub, or area of turfing/seeding within the
landscaping scheme which dies or in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority becomes seriously
damaged or diseased

4. Schedule for Implementation

Thereafter the development shall be carried out and maintained in full accordance with the approved
details.

REASON

To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities of the
locality and provide adequate facilities in compliance with policies DMHB 11, DMHB 12, and DMHB
14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020) and Policies G5 and T6.1 of the London Plan (2021).

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 135



13. RES22 Parking Allocation

The residential units hereby approved shall not be occupied until a parking allocation scheme has
been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. The parking allocation
scheme shall, as a minimum, include a requirement that all on-site car parking shall be allocated and
dedicated for the use of each of the residential units hereby approved and shall remain allocated and
dedicated in such a manner for the life-time of the development.

REASON

To ensure that an appropriate level of car parking provision is provided on site in accordance with
Policy DMT 6 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part Two 2 (2020) and Policy T6 of the London Plan
(2021).

14. RES10 Tree to be retained

Trees, hedges and shrubs shown to be retained on the approved plan(s) shall not be damaged,
uprooted, felled, lopped or topped without the prior written consent of the Local Planning Authority. If
any retained tree, hedge or shrub is removed or severely damaged during (or after) construction, or
is found to be seriously diseased or dying, another tree, hedge or shrub shall be planted at the same
place or, if planting in the same place would leave the new tree, hedge or shrub susceptible to
disease, then the planting should be in a position to be first agreed in writing with the Local Planning
Authority and shall be of a size and species to be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority
and shall be planted in the first planting season following the completion of the development or the
occupation of the buildings, whichever is the earlier.

Where damage is less severe, a schedule of remedial works necessary to ameliorate the effect of
damage by tree surgery, feeding or groundwork shall be agreed in writing with the Local Planning
Authority. New planting should comply with BS 3936 (1992) 'Nursery Stock, Part 1, Specification for
Trees and Shrubs' Remedial work should be carried out to BS BS 3998:2010 'Tree work -
Recommendations' and BS 4428 (1989) 'Code of Practice for General Landscape Operations
(Excluding Hard Surfaces)'. The agreed work shall be completed in the first planting season following
the completion of the development or the occupation of the buildings, whichever is the earlier.

REASON

To ensure that the trees and other vegetation continue to make a valuable contribution to the
amenity of the area in accordance with policy DMHB 14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020)
and to comply with Section 197 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

15. RES13 Obscure Glazing

Notwithstanding the details specified on the approved drawings, the first floor side windows serving
the dwellings on Plots 1 and 4 and the first floor angled window panel serving the dwellings on Plots
5 and 6 and facing the rear gardens of numbers 34 to 40 Sullivan Crescent shall be glazed with
permanently obscured glass to at least scale 4 on the Pilkington scale and be non-opening below a
height of 1.8 metres taken from internal finished floor level for so long as the development remains in
existence.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 136



16. RES12 No additional windows or doors

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development)

(England) Order 2015 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or without modification),
no additional windows, doors or other openings shall be constructed in the walls or roof slopes of the
development hereby approved.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

17. RES14 Outbuildings, extensions and roof alterations

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development)

(England) Order 2015 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or without modification);
no garage(s), shed(s) or other outbuilding(s), nor extension or roof alteration to any dwellinghouse(s)
shall be erected without the grant of further specific permission from the Local Planning Authority.

REASON
To protect the character and appearance of the area and amenity of residential occupiers in
accordance with policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

INFORMATIVES

1. 170 LBH worked applicant in a positive & proactive (Granting)

In dealing with the application the Council has implemented the requirement in the National Planning
Policy Framework to work with the applicant in a positive and proactive way. We have made available
detailed advice in the form of our statutory policies from Local Plan Part 1, Local Plan Part 2,
Supplementary Planning Documents, Planning Briefs and other informal written guidance, as well as
offering a full pre-application advice service, in order to ensure that the applicant has been given
every opportunity to submit an application which is likely to be considered favourably.

2. 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant planning
legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The Human Rights Act
(1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention
rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family
life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

3. 173 Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) (Granting Consent)

Under the terms of the Planning Act 2008 (as amended) and Community Infrastructure Levy
Regulations 2010 (as amended), this development is liable to pay the London Borough of Hillingdon
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) and the Mayor of London's Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL).
This will be calculated in accordance with the London Borough of Hillingdon CIL Charging Schedule
2014 and the Mayor of London's CIL Charging Schedule 2012. Before commencement of works the
development parties must notify the London Borough of Hillingdon of the commencement date for the
construction works (by submitting a Commencement Notice) and assume liability to pay CIL (by

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 137



submitting an Assumption of Liability Notice) to the Council at planning@hillingdon.gov.uk. The
Council will then issue a Demand Notice setting out the date and the amount of CIL that is payable.
Failure to submit a valid Assumption of Liability Notice and Commencement Notice prior to
commencement of the development may result in surcharges being imposed.

The above forms can be found on the planning portal at:
www.planningportal.gov.uk/planning/applications/howtoapply/whattosubmit/cil

Pre-Commencement Conditions: These conditions are important from a CIL liability perspective as a
scheme will not become CIL liable until all of the pre-commencement conditions have been
discharged/complied with.

4, 115 Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control of Pollution
Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you should ensure that the
following are complied with:-

A. Demolition and construction works which are audible at the site boundary shall only be carried out
between the hours of 08.00 and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between the hours of 08.00 hours
and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.

B. All noise generated during such works shall be controlled in compliance with British Standard
Code of Practice BS 5228:20009.

C. Dust emissions shall be controlled in compliance with the Mayor of London's Best Practice
Guidance' The Control of dust and emissions from construction and demolition.

D. No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit (www.hillingdon.gov.uk/noise
Tel. 01895 250155) or to seek prior approval under Section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you
anticipate any difficulty in carrying out construction other than within the normal working hours set out
in (A) above, and by means that would minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

5. 147 Damage to Verge - For Council Roads:

The Council will recover from the applicant the cost of highway and footway repairs, including
damage to grass verges.

Care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to ensure no damage occurs to the
verge or footpaths during construction. Vehicles delivering materials to this development shall not
override or cause damage to the public footway. Any damage will require to be made good to the
satisfaction of the Council and at the applicant's expense.

For further information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations, Central Depot -
Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon, Middlesex, UB3 3EU (Tel: 01895
277524).

For Private Roads: Care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to ensure no
damage occurs to the verge of footpaths on private roads during construction. Vehicles delivering

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 138



materials to this development shall not override or cause damage to a private road and where
possible alternative routes should be taken to avoid private roads. The applicant may be required to
make good any damage caused.

6. 16 Property Rights/Rights of Light

Your attention is drawn to the fact that the planning permission does not override property rights and
any ancient rights of light that may exist. This permission does not empower you to enter onto land
not in your ownership without the specific consent of the owner. If you require further information or
advice, you should consult a solicitor.

7. 12 Encroachment

You are advised that if any part of the development hereby permitted encroaches by either its roof,
walls, eaves, gutters, or foundations, then a new planning application may have to be submitted. The
validity of this planning permission may be challengeable by third parties if the development results in
any form of encroachment onto land outside the applicant's control for which the appropriate Notice
under Article 13 of the Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England)
Order 2015 has not been served.

8. IT05 Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981

Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981: Note that it is an offence under this act to disturb roosting bats,
nesting birds or any other protected species. Therefore, if applicable, it is advisable to consult your
tree surgeon / consultant to agree an acceptable time for carrying out the approved works.

9.

The submitted Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) identifies the site as not being susceptible to
groundwater flooding and the risk is therefore deemed low. Nevertheless the FRA recommends that
further groundwater monitoring be carried out to establish local ground water depths across the site
prior to construction. This monitoring should be carried out, as recommended.

153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies and
proposals in the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1 (2012) and Part 2 (2020) set out below, including
Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations, including The London
Plan (2021) and national guidance.

DMAV 1 Safe Operation of Airports

DMEI 10 Water Management, Efficiency and Quality
DMEI 12 Development of Land Affected by Contamination
DMEI 14 Air Quality

DMEI 2 Reducing Carbon Emissions

DMEI 7 Biodiversity Protection and Enhancement

DMEI 9 Management of Flood Risk

DMH 2 Housing Mix

DMH 7 Provision of Affordable Housing

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 139



DMHB 11 Design of New Development

DMHB 12 Streets and Public Realm

DMHB 14 Trees and Landscaping

DMHB 15 Planning for Safer Places

DMHB 16 Housing Standards

DMHB 17 Residential Density

DMHB 18 Private Outdoor Amenity Space

DMT 1 Managing Transport Impacts

DMT 2 Highways Impacts

DMT 5 Pedestrians and Cyclists

DMT 6 Vehicle Parking

LPP G7 (2021) Trees and woodlands

LPP H1 (2021) Increasing housing supply

LPP H10 (2021) Housing size mix

LPP H2 (2021) Small sites

LPP SI12 (2021) Flood risk management

LPP SI13 (2021) Sustainable drainage

LPP SI2 (2021) Minimising greenhouse gas emissions

LPP T4 (2021) Assessing and mitigating transport impacts
LPP T5 (2021) Cycling

LPP T6 (2021) Car parking

LPP T6.1 (2021) Residential parking

NPPF11 -23 NPPF11 23 - Making effective use of land

NPPF12 -23 NPPF12 23 - Achieving well-designed and beautiful places
NPPF14 -23 NPPF14 23 - Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change
NPPF2 -23 NPPF2 2023 - Achieving sustainable development
NPPF4 -23 NPPF4 23 - Decision making

NPPF5 -23 NPPF5 23 - Delivering a sufficient supply of homes
NPPF9 -23 NPPF9 23 - Promoting sustainable transport
CONSIDERATIONS

Site and Locality

The application site is an irregular shaped parcel of land measuring 0.53 hectares. It is located on the
eastern side of Sullivan Crescent and comprises a former garage court and a relatively small patch of
well-maintained grassed space adjacent to numbers 42/44 Sullivan Crescent. The site is enclosed by
residential properties and gardens on three sides and Green Belt land to the east. The site is
currently derelict and is gated with bollards to prevent access.

The surrounding area and approach to the site is predominantly residential with two-storey semi
detached dwellings and maisonettes. The northern boundary of the site adjoins the rear gardens of
numbers 191 and 193 Ash Grove. The western site boundary adjoins the rear gardens of 34 to 40

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 140



Sullivan Crescent and the side passageway of the maisonette at number 42/44 Sullivan Crescent.
The southern site boundary adjoins the external amenity space of numbers 1 to 5 Knightscote Close.

The site falls within Flood Zone 1 and is partially designated within a Surface Water Management
Zone. There are trees on and adjoining the site; however, none of which are protected by a Tree
Preservation Order. The site has a Public Transport Accessibility Level rating of 1a (Very Poor).

3.2 Proposed Scheme

On the 10th of March 2023 planning permission was granted for the erection of 4 x two storey
terraced houses and 2 x two storey semi-detached houses, with associated car parking and
landscaping works (ref: 60653/APP/2022/531).

It should be noted that the above application was a re-submission following the lapse of the granted
planning permission reference 60653/APP/2011/907 (refer to Section 3.3 for the planning history).

The current application seeks permission for amendments to Plot 5 to alter footprint and design of
Plot 5 to accommodate fully accessible dwelling to meet M4(3) technical specification, while retaining
the 3-bed unit. The proposed extension is to the front and side of the property which would extend up
to two stories in height and provide an additional 20.3 m2 of internal floor area. An additional window
is proposed to the southeast elevation which will serve the kitchen and a minor increase in the main
ridge height.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

60653/APP/2007/889 Land At Garages Rear Of 34 - 44 Sullivan Crescent Sullivan Crescent
Harefield

ERECTION OF A TWO STOREY TERRACED BLOCK (COMPRISING 2, THREE BEDROOM AND
1, TWO BEDROOM HOUSES) AND A PAIR OF SEMI-DETACHED BUNGALOWS (1, ONE
BEDROOM AND 1, TWO BEDROOM) WITH ACCESS FROM SULLIVAN CRESCENT INCLUDING
ASSOCIATED PARKING. (INVOVLING DEMOLITION OF EXISTING GARAGES)

Decision: 22-09-2008 No Further
Action(P)

60653/APP/2011/2430 Former Garages Site Rear Of 34 - 44 Sullivan Crescent Harefield

Approval of details in compliance with conditions Nos.3, 4, 5, 6, 8, 10, 12, 13, 15, 19 and 20 of
planning permission ref: 60653/APP/2011/907 dated 06/06/2011 (Erection of a terrace of 3 two-
storey, three bedroom houses and a detached four bedroom house with associated car parking and
landscaping)

Decision: 28-06-2012 Refused

60653/APP/2011/907 Former Garages Site Rear Of 34 - 44 Sullivan Crescent Harefield
Erection of a terrace of 3 two-storey, three bedroom houses and a detached four bedroom house

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 141



with associated car parking and landscaping.
Decision: 06-06-2011 Approved

60653/APP/2022/531 Former Garages Site Rear Of Sullivan Crescent Harefield

Erection of no. 4 x two storey terraced houses and no.2 x two storey semi-detached houses, with
associated car parking and landscaping works

Decision: 10-03-2023 Approved

60653/APP/2023/1614 Former Garages Site Rear Of Sullivan Crescent Harefield

Non-material amendment to planning permission ref. 60653/APP/2022/531 dated 10-03-2023
(Erection of no. 4 x two storey terraced houses and no.2 x two storey semi-detached houses, with
associated car parking and landscaping works) to amend the accommodation schedule to
coordinate with approved plans.

Decision: 16-06-2023 Approved

60653/APP/2023/3003 Former Garages Site Rear Of Sullivan Crescent Harefield

Details pursuant to the discharge of Conditions 4 (Construction Management Plan) of planning
permission ref. 60653/APP/2022/531, dated 10-03-23 (Erection of no. 4 x two storey terraced
houses and no.2 x two storey semi-detached houses, with associated car parking and landscaping
works)

Decision: 05-01-2024 Approved

60653/APP/2023/3178 Former Garages Site Rear Of Sullivan Crescent Harefield

Details pursuant to the discharge of Conditions 5 (Contamination), 8 (Sustainability and Energy) of
planning permission ref. 60653/APP/2022/531, dated 10/03/2023 (Erection of no. 4 x two storey
terraced houses and no.2 x two storey semi-detached houses, with associated car parking and
landscaping works)

Decision: 12-02-2024 Approved

60653/APP/2024/42 Former Garages Site Rear Of Sullivan Crescent Harefield

Details pursuant to the discharge of Conditions 3 (Site Levels Plan) and 6 (Sustainable Water
Management Scheme) of planning permission ref. 60653/APP/2022/531, dated 10-03-2023
(Erection of no.4 x two storey terraced houses and no.2 x two storey semi-detached houses, with
associated car parking and landscaping works)

60653/APP/2024/491 Former Garages Site Rear Of Sullivan Crescent Harefield

Details pursuant to the discharge of Conditions 7 (Materials), 9 (Step Free Access) of planning
permission ref. 60653/APP/2022/531, dated 10/03/2023 (Erection of no. 4 x two storey terraced
houses and no.2 x two storey semi-detached houses, with associated car parking and landscaping
works)

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 142



Comment on Relevant Planning History

Planning application 60653/APP/2022/531 was granted on 10th of March 2023 for the erection of 4 x
two storey terraced houses and 2 x two storey semi-detached houses, with associated car parking
and landscaping works.

Planning application 60653/APP/2011/907 proposed the erection of a terrace of 3 two-storey, three-
bedroom houses and a detached four-bedroom house with associated car parking and landscaping.
Planning permission was granted on 6th June 2011 and has subsequently lapsed unimplemented.

Subsequent details applications have been submitted and approved in order to discharge condition 4

(constructing management plan), 5 (contamination), 8 (sustainability and energy) attached to the
main planning consent attached to the main planning consent.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

Development Plan:

Planning law requires that applications for planning permission be determined in accordance with the
development plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

The Development Plan for the London Borough of Hillingdon currently consists of the following
documents:

The Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (2012)

The Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020)

The Local Plan: Part 2 - Site Allocations and Designations (2020)

The West London Waste Plan (2015)

The London Plan (2021)

Material Considerations:

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2023) is also a material consideration in planning
decisions, as well as relevant supplementary planning documents and guidance.

Local Plan Designation and London Plan
The following Local Plan Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

PT1.H1 (2012) Housing Growth

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 143



Part 2 Policies:

DMAYV 1 Safe Operation of Airports

DMEI 10 Water Management, Efficiency and Quality
DMEI 12 Development of Land Affected by Contamination
DMEI 14  Air Quality

DMEI2 Reducing Carbon Emissions

DMEI 7  Biodiversity Protection and Enhancement
DMEI9 Management of Flood Risk

DMH 2  Housing Mix

DMH 7  Provision of Affordable Housing

DMHB 11 Design of New Development

DMHB 12 Streets and Public Realm

DMHB 14 Trees and Landscaping

DMHB 15 Planning for Safer Places

DMHB 16 Housing Standards

DMHB 17 Residential Density

DMHB 18 Private Outdoor Amenity Space

DMT 1 Managing Transport Impacts

DMT 2  Highways Impacts

DMT 5  Pedestrians and Cyclists

DMT 6  Vehicle Parking

LPP G7 (2021) Trees and woodlands

LPP H1 (2021) Increasing housing supply

LPP H10 (2021) Housing size mix

LPP H2 (2021) Small sites

LPP SI12 (2021) Flood risk management

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 144



LPP SI13 (2021) Sustainable drainage

LPP SI2 (2021) Minimising greenhouse gas emissions
LPP T4 (2021) Assessing and mitigating transport impacts
LPPT5 (2021) Cycling

LPPT6 (2021) Car parking

LPP T6.1 (2021) Residential parking

NPPF11 - NPPF11 23 - Making effective use of land
23

NPPF12 - NPPF12 23 - Achieving well-designed and beautiful places
23

NPPF14 - NPPF14 23 - Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change
23

NPPF2 - NPPF2 2023 - Achieving sustainable development
23

NPPF4 - NPPF4 23 - Decision making
23

NPPF5 - NPPF5 23 - Delivering a sufficient supply of homes
23

NPPF9 - NPPF9 23 - Promoting sustainable transport
23

5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date: Not Applicable
5.2  Site Notice Expiry Date: 6th April 2024

6. Consultations

External Consultees

56 neighbouring properties, Denham Aerodrome and Harefield Tenants and Residents' Association were
consulted on 19-02-24. The consultation period expired on 04-04-24. A site notice was displayed for 21
days expiring on 06-04-24.

One representation was received in objection to Plot 5 being increased from a 2 bed to 3 bed.

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 145



Planning Officer comment:

It is noted that there is no increase in housing mix or density. Plot 5 was approved as a 3 bed, two storey,
dwelling in application reference 60653/APP/2022/531. The proposed changes relate solely to the design
and footprint, retaining the approved 3 bedrooms.

Denham Aerodrome:

We would like to draw attention to the fact that the site is within the Denham Aerodrome Traffic Zone.
Denham is a long established Civil Aviation Authority Licensed Aerodrome providing facilities for business
aviation and flying training for both fixed and rotary wing aircraft, and may be available for use at any time.
It is inevitable that any occupants in this location will both hear and see aircraft operations including aircraft
and it is important that all concerned are aware of the juxtaposition of the sites.

Planning Officer comment:
Please see section 07.04.

Hillingdon Friends of the Earth:

Hillingdon Friends of the Earth would like the Planning Committee to action these comments please,
because as much as possible needs to be done to reduce the impact of new developments on climate
change: - Please require that the fabric goes above and beyond current Building Regulations so the
dwellings are well insulated, highly efficient and zero carbon (passivhaus or equivalent) to avoid being
retrofitted later. Include heat recovery ventilation to avoid damp issues owing to being highly insulated. -
Please require one shared/community highly efficient heating system for the building (heat pump, ground
source if possible). - Sustainable materials should be used for the construction and the whole life cycle of
carbon should be taken into consideration and accordingly measures should be taken to reduce the carbon
emissions from the whole cycle. - Please require that electrical appliances which are fitted must be certified
energy saving products and all lighting is LED. - Ensure all suitable roof space has photovoltaic or solar
thermal installed and that all rainwater is harvester for grey water use. - Explore battery storage for the
property. - Ask Transport for London to review the nearby bus routes to ensure they have capacity. -
Create segregated cycle lanes from the development to the nearest Tube station large developments. -
Ensure the property is easily accessible to good walking routes and not just a car park - Ensure plentiful
cycle storage - Limit parking spaces to the minimum for less able bodied people and ensure all parking
spaces have electric vehicle charging points - Ensure as many trees are planted in the landscaping as
possible and that no plastic fake lawn is allowed. - All external paved surfaces should be porous to allow
drainage and reduce flooding. - Ensure it is very easy to recycle (easier than to dispose of general waste)
including adequate storage in communal areas, Kitchen designs to include separate bins, etc - Ensure
there is onsite composting - Ensure fixtures and fittings are durable, so replacements are not needed
frequently - All paved areas to include space for vegetation - Existing mature trees to be retained wherever
possible and additional trees to be planted - Provision for wildlife such as nesting boxes, bat boxes and
wildlife tunnels

Planning Officer comment:
The above comments from Hillingdon Friends of the Earth are noted and relevant conditions will seek to
ensure the dwellings are of high quality and sustainable in nature.

Internal Consultees

ACCESS OFFICER:

his application has been reviewed to amend the approved scheme to incorporate an additional M4(3)
wheelchair accessible unit as per the council's decision. The Accessibility Officer has worked closely with
the council's Principal Architect to draw up the revised scheme as per the submission. No additional

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 146



comments are deemed necessary at this stage. Conclusion: acceptable

CONTAMINATED LAND:

Having consider the nature of the proposed development (Variation of Condition 2 (Approved Plans)),
please be advise that we have no comment in relation to the application on land contamination but the
existing land contamination condition recommend for the original approved planning application
60653/APP/2022/531 is still applicable to the development.

HIGHWAYS:
As the variation is only related to the alteration of the footprint for plot 5, there is no issue or comment
raised.

CONSERVATION AND DESIGN:
No comments.

7.  MAIN PLANNING ISSUES

7.01 The principle of the development
PRINCIPLE OF DEVELOPMENT:

The principle of development has already been established through the main planning consent for the
redevelopment of this brownfield site to provide new residential dwellings. This application seeks to
modestly increase the internal floor area of Plot 5 to enhance the provision of accessible homes and
meet the technical specifications of the m4(3) standards. The proposed amendments do not impact
the principle of development.

HOUSING MIX:

The original consent provided the provision of 2 x three-bedroom semi-detached houses and 4 x two-
bedroom terraced houses, which would contribute towards the Borough's need for family sized
housing. The current application seeks to retain these provisions; accordingly, it is considered that the
proposal would consist of an appropriate housing mix.

7.02 Density of the proposed development

The density of development has been assessed as part of the main planning consent and considered
to be acceptable. This application seeks to increase the internal living space of 1 unit and would not
result in an increase in the number of units or habitable rooms proposed. As such the proposal does
not result in a change to the approved density of development.

7.03 Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character
Not applicable.

7.04 Airport safeguarding

Policy DMAYV 1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020)
states that the Council will ensure that uses such as housing, education and hospitals are not located
in areas significantly affected by aircraft noise without acceptable mitigation measures.

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 147



The application site is within 3km buffer of the Denham Aerodrome Zone. However, as the site is
within an established residential area within this zone, it is considered that visibility and audibility of
aircraft operations associated with Denham Aerodrome would not be of significant harm to the living
conditions of future occupiers. It is therefore considered that it would be unreasonable to refuse the
application on the ground of harm to the residential amenity of the future occupiers, in respect to
aircraft noise associated with Denham Aerodrome.

7.05 Impact on the green belt

The application site is not designated within the Green Belt; however, its eastern boundary adjoins
the Green Belt. Refer to Section 7.07 of this Committee Report for further details.

7.06 Environmental Impact
Not applicable.

7.07 Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Policies D3 and D4 of the London Plan (2021) require development proposals to be of a high quality
and to enhance the local context by delivering buildings and spaces that positively respond to local
distinctiveness.

Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020)
states that all development will be required to be designed to the highest standards and incorporate
principles of good design. It should take into account aspects including the scale of the development
considering the height, mass and bulk of adjacent structures; building plot sizes and established
street patterns; building lines and streetscape rhythm and landscaping.

Policy DMHB 12 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020) re-
emphasises the need for new development to be well integrated with the surrounding area and
provides design criteria as to how this would be achieved.

The proposal would involve the erection of a row of four x terraced dwellings (Plots 1 to 4) adjacent to
numbers 42/44 Sullivan Crescent, and two x semi-detached dwellings (Plots 5 and 6) behind the rear
garden of numbers 34 and 36 Sullivan Crescent. Given the nature of the application there are no
changes to Plots 1, 2, 3, 4 and 6. As such, the previous assessment is still relevant.

The current application seeks changes to Plot 5 to facilitate the implementation of M4(3) accessibility
standards in Condition 10 of the approved scheme. The alterations include increasing the footprint of
the dwelling at ground and first floor. The front elevation would be brought marginally forward with
level access and canopy, while retaining a staggered building line. To the rear, there would also be a
marginal increase in depth at first floor to ensure a good standard of accommodation, while widening
the landing. In addition, there would be a minor increase in height and width of the dwelling to allow
for wheelchair access to both floors.

As above, due to their backland location, views of the proposed semi-detached dwellings would be
limited from the street scene on Sullivan Crescent. The design would be in keeping with the
previously approved scheme and any harm would be outweighed with the benefits of the accessibility
of the dwelling.

Full details of the external finishes and materials would be secured by condition, in the event of an
approval (Condition 7). Also, hard and soft landscaping details would be secured by condition
(Condition 12). Refer to Section 7.13 of this Committee Report for the planning assessment in respect

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 148



to trees and landscaping.

It is acknowledged that the eastern site boundary adjoins the Green Belt. However, as set out in the
committee report approved by the main planning consent, the application site itself does not fall within
this designation. Moreover, the impact upon the Green Belt was assessed and considered to be
negligible when determining the main planning consent. Given the modest scale of the proposed
extension to the Plot 5 and the benefits arising from the contribution the dwelling will make in terms of
housing designed to the highest level of accessible standards, the proposal would not give rise to
additional impacts upon the Green Belt or street scene.

In light of the above, it is considered that the siting, scale, height and design of the proposed
dwellings would be acceptable on design grounds and that a high-quality development would be
delivered. The proposal would not cause harm to the character and appearance of the street scene of
the surrounding area. The proposal therefore accords with Policies DMHB 11 and DMHB 12 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020), Policies D3 and D4 of the
London Plan (2021) and the NPPF (2023).

7.08 Impact on neighbours

Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020)
states:

B) Development proposals should not adversely impact on the amenity, daylight and sunlight of
adjacent properties and open space.

Specifically, paragraph 5.38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies
(2020) states: "The Council will aim to ensure that there is sufficient privacy for residents and it will
resist proposals where there is an unreasonable level of overlooking between habitable rooms of
adjacent residential properties, schools or onto private open spaces. A minimum of 21 metres
separation distance between windows of habitable rooms will be required to maintain levels of privacy
and to prevent the possibility of overlooking. In some locations where there is a significant difference
in ground levels between dwellings, a greater separation distance may be necessary."

Paragraph 5.40 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020)
states: "For the purposes of this policy , outlook is defined as the visual amenity enjoyed by
occupants when looking out of their windows or from their garden. The Council will expect new
development proposals to carefully consider layout and massing in order to ensure development does
not result in an increased sense of enclosure and loss of outlook."

As this applications seeks to amend Plot 5, the previous assessment of the site in terms of Plots 1-6
is still relevant.

At the closest point, there would be a separation distance of approximately 26 metres between the
proposed windows on Plots 1 to 4 and the rear windows of the neighbouring maisonettes at numbers
187/189 and 191/193 Ash Grove and the two-storey dwelling at number 195 Ash Grove. Given this
separation distance, it is considered that the proposal would not adversely impact upon the residential
amenities of numbers 187/189, 191/193 and 195 Ash Grove, in terms of light, outlook and enclosure.
This is notwithstanding the representation received about the changes in ground levels between the
application site and the properties fronting Ash Grove.

It is acknowledged that the proposed dwellings on Plots 1 to 4 would contain windows and dormers in
their rear elevation. However, as stated above, there would be a rear-to-rear separation distance of

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 149



26 metres, which exceeds the recommended '21 metre' prescribed by Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 -
Development Management Policies (2020). A mutual degree of overlooking between rear gardens
and first floor windows already exists at numbers 42/44 Sullivan Crescent. As such, it is considered
that the proposal would not give rise to an unreasonable loss of privacy or overlooking for the
occupiers of the aforementioned neighbouring properties.

In terms of the proposed dwellings on Plots 5 and 6, there would be a separation distance of
approximately 20 metres between these proposed buildings and the first floor windows at numbers 34
to 40 Sullivan Crescent. Upon Officers' request, revised drawings were submitted showing new
partially obscured angled first floor windows in the front elevations of the proposed dwellings on Plots
5 and 6. This is to prevent any potential issues with overlooking or a loss of privacy for the occupiers
at numbers 34 to 40 Sullivan Crescent and their associated private amenity space.

The proposed dwelling on Plot 6 would be set-in approximately 1 metre (at the closest point) from the
rear garden boundary shared with number 34 and 36 Sullivan Crescent. However, the proposed
dwellings on Plots 5 and 6 have been carefully designed with a hipped roof profile in order to reduce
the overall bulk and massing of these buildings. Whilst the occupiers at numbers 34 and 36 Sullivan
Crescent would experience a change in outlook, the overall separation of approximately 20 metres
between the dwellings would ensure that the proposal would not have an unacceptable overbearing
or enclosing effect on these neighbouring occupiers.

There would be a separation distance of approximately 20 metres (at the closest point) between the
rear windows of properties on Knightscote Close and the proposed rear windows on Plots 5 and 6.
Although this would marginally fall below the recommended '21-metres', it is considered that the
proposed separation distance is sufficient to prevent an unacceptable loss of outlook or loss of
privacy for the occupiers at Knightscote Close (particularly as it is noted the windows would face at an
angle). The proposed first floor rear windows would be relatively close to the shared boundary with
Knightscote Close (approximately 1.5m - 9m) but would overlook a communal landscaped garden
area that already experiences mutual overlooking.

The site would be used in an exclusively residential capacity. It is therefore considered that the
provision of 6 dwellings and associated parking would not give rise to unreasonable levels of noise
and disturbance for neighbouring occupiers.”

Given the location and site context of Plot 5 the proposed amendments would not give rise to any
additional concerns with regard to neighbouring amenity, subject to conditions discussed above.

Having regard to the above, it is considered that the proposal would not cause unreasonable harm to
the living conditions of neighbouring residents, in compliance with the objectives of Policy DMHB 11
part B) of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020).

7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers
INTERNAL AMENITY SPACE PROVISION:

Policy D6 of the London Plan (2021) sets out the requirements for the gross internal floor area of new
dwellings at a defined level of occupancy. Table 3.1 of the London Plan (2021) states:

- A two storey dwelling comprising three bedrooms, 4 person occupancy must have a minimum gross
internal area of 84 square metres
- A three storey dwelling comprising three bedrooms, 6 person occupancy must have a minimum

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 150



gross internal area of 108 square metres
- A three storey dwelling comprising four bedrooms, 6 person occupancy must have a minimum
gross internal area of 112 square metres

Policy DMHB 15 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020)
states that the Council will require all new development to ensure safe and attractive public and
private spaces by referring to the Council's latest guidance on Secured by Design principles.

Policy DMHB 16 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020)
states that all housing development should have an adequate provision of internal space in order to
provide an appropriate living environment. The space standards set out in Table 5.1 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020) are the same as those found in Table
3.1 of the London Plan (2021).

Parts 3) and 4) of Policy D6 of the London Plan (2021) require double bedrooms to have a floor area
of at least 11.5 square metres, and for single bedrooms to have a floor area of at least 7.5 square
metres.

Given the nature of the current application there would be no alterations to Plots 1, 2, 3, 4, and 6 in
terms of internal amenity space. Therefore, the below will only assess Plot 5, which is the subject of
the application.

The proposed dwelling on Plot 5 is split over two-storeys. The proposed development would provide
the following:
Plot 5 - A three-bedroom, 4 person occupancy measuring 108.5 square metres

As demonstrated above, all the proposed dwelling would exceed the London Plan's minimum space
standards found in Table 3.1. All the proposed bedrooms (including those within the loft space)
would exceed the minimum floor area standards set out in parts 3) and 4) of Policy D6 of the London
Plan (2021).

The proposed dwellings on Plots 5 and 6 would have staggered front and rear building lines. The two-
storey front building line of Plot 5 therefore projects beyond the front bedroom window of Plot 6 by
2.67 metres, which while this is increased given the alterations, it would not be significantly worse
than the previously approved relationship. Vice versa, the proposed rear building line of Plot 6
projects beyond the ground and first floor habitable windows of Plot 5 by 1 metres, marginally less
than previously approved. Therefore, given the orientation of the proposed dwellings on Plots 5 and
6, their internal layout and previous permission, it is considered, on balance, that future occupiers
would receive an adequate level of outlook and light (despite the staggered relationship).

In light of the above, it is considered that the proposed dwellings would provide satisfactory internal
living conditions for future occupants, in accordance with Policy D6 of the London Plan (2021) and
Policies DMHB 15 and DMHB 16 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management
Policies (2020).

EXTERNAL AMENITY SPACE PROVISION:
Policy DMHB 18 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020)

states that all new residential development and conversions will be required to provide good quality
and usable private outdoor amenity space. Amenity space should be provided in accordance with the

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 151



standards set out in Table 5.3, which requires houses with three bedrooms should provide a minimum
of 60 square metres of private useable amenity space, and four bedroom or more houses should
have a minimum of 100 square metres.

Given the nature of the current application there would be no alterations to Plots 1, 2, 3, 4, and 6 in
terms of external amenity space. Therefore, the below will only assess Plot 5, which is the subject of
the application. The proposed alterations do not reduce the amount of private amenity space which
was previously approved under application reference 60653/APP/2022/531 and therefore, the
previous assessment is still relevant:

"The proposed development would provide the following private amenity space provision:
Plot 5 (a three bedroom house) - 55 square metres of rear garden space

It is noted that the proposed site plan includes annotated amenity space figures that differ from those
noted above. However, the figure quoted above does not include the side passageways leading to
the rear garden because this area do not constitute as 'useable private amenity space'. Planning
Officers are therefore of the view that the measurements quoted above more accurately reflect the
amount of genuinely useable private amenity space that would be afforded to future occupiers.

It is acknowledged that the quantum of private amenity space afforded to proposed Plot 5 falls below
the private amenity space standards found in Table 5.3 by a deficit of 5 square metres. However, this
short fall is considered to be relatively minor when compared to the overall amount of rear garden
space that would be afforded to the future occupiers of Plot 5. Additionally, there are material
considerations which need to be weighed against the conflict with the Council's standards:

There is a public park and children's playground which can be accessed through the walkway
between numbers 31 and 33 Sullivan Crescent. This public open space is within a safe and easy
walking distance from the site. The presence of this local facility provides enhanced amenity for the
future occupiers of the proposed dwellings. To a considered degree this minimises any shortfalls of
external amenity space provision arising from the proposed development. Furthermore, a condition
would be secured removing permitted development rights from the site to ensure that external
amenity space provision is not undermined by any future extensions to the proposed dwellings.
Overall, taking into account the proximity to the public park and children's playground, there is an
acceptable provision of open space that would be afforded to the future occupiers of the proposed
dwellings."

Notwithstanding the material considerations highlighted above, the proposal would conflict with Policy
DMHB 18 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020). This
disadvantage of the scheme would need be weighed against the benefits of the scheme as part of the
planning balance assessment discussed in section 1 of this Committee Report."

As above, concerns were raised regarding the conflict with Policy DMHB 18 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020). However, it was found to be on balance
acceptable given the site is within walking distance of a public park and children's playground.

7.10 Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

The application does not involve an increase in the number of units or habitable rooms above that
which has already been granted planning consent as part of application ref: 60653/APP/2022/531.
The proposal would therefore not give rise to additional movements above those already considered

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 152



acceptable and the proposal would not create a demand for additional parking provision. In summary
the proposals would not result in an additional impact upon the highway network in terms of parking
demand or pedestrian and cyclists safety.

A parking allocation and a construction management plan (CMP) condition were attached to the
previous consent. The CMP condition has been discharged under planning reference
60653/APP/2023/3003. The framework of the CMP will not change therefore given the minor scale of
the proposed amendment to the approved scheme, the re-imposition of this condition of not
necessary.

7.11 Urban design, access and security
Covered in the other sections of this Committee Report.

7.12 Disabled access

Policy D5 of the London Plan (2021) seeks to ensure development proposals achieve the highest
standards of accessible and inclusive design. Policy D7 of the London Plan (2021) requires for at
least 10% of dwellings to meet Building Regulation requirement M4(3) ‘wheelchair user dwellings',
with all other dwellings meeting Category M4(2) 'accessible and adaptable dwellings'.

Having regard to the above policies, the proposal would need to provide 1 dwelling that is Building
Regulation requirement M4(3) 'wheelchair user dwellings' compliant, with the remaining 5 meeting
Category M4(2) 'accessible and adaptable dwellings'. The applicant has provided details on the
proposed floor plans to demonstrate Plot 5 would be compliant with M4(3) regulations. Also, a
condition would be secured in respect to step-free access details (as per the Access Officer's
recommendations- refer to Section 6 for further details) (Condition 9). Subject to such conditions, the
proposed development would comply with Policies D5 and D7 of the London Plan (2021).

7.13 Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Policy H2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (2012) states that housing provision
is expected to include a range of housing to meet the needs of all types of households, and the
Council will seek to maximise the delivery of affordable housing from all sites over the period of the
Local Plan. For sites with a capacity of 10 or more units, the Council will seek to ensure that the
affordable housing mix reflects housing needs in the borough, particularly the need for larger family
units. This is supported by Policy DMH 7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development
Management Policies (2020).

The proposal is for less than 10 additional new residential units and therefore does not meet the
threshold in order to require affordable housing provision. As such, the proposal is not contrary to
Policy H2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (2012) and Policy DMH 7 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020) in respect of affordable
housing provision.

7.14 Trees, landscaping and Ecology
TREES AND LANDSCAPING:
Policy G1 of the London Plan (2021) states that development proposals should incorporate
appropriate elements of green infrastructure that are integrated into London's wider green

infrastructure network.

Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020)

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 153



states that landscaping and tree planting should enhance amenity, biodiversity and green
infrastructure. This is supported by Policy DMHB 14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 -
Development Management Policies (2020) which states:

A) All developments will be expected to retain or enhance existing landscaping, trees, biodiversity or
other natural features of merit.

B) Development proposals will be required to provide a landscape scheme that includes hard and soft
landscaping appropriate to the character of the area, which supports and enhances biodiversity and
amenity particularly in areas deficient in green infrastructure.

A condition was attached to the main permission in order to secure more comprehensive landscaping
details. It is noted this condition is yet to be discharged. It is suggested that the condition be re-
imposed if committee are minded to approve the application in order to ensure the soft and hard
landscaping scheme referred to in the previous consent is submitted in more detail for approval and
then delivered.

ECOLOGY:

Policy DMEI 7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020) states
that if development is proposed on or near to a site considered to have features of ecological or
geological value, applicants must submit appropriate surveys and assessments to demonstrate that
the proposed development will not have unacceptable effects. The development must provide a
positive contribution to the protection and enhancement of the site or feature of ecological value.

An ecological assessment was provided in support of the main planning consent and considered to
be acceptable in terms of the developments impact upon local ecology. However an informative
would be secured advising that should protected species be found at the site, the applicant(s) must
fulfil their duties under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. It is suggested that the informative be
included in the decision notice if committee are minded to approve the application.

7.15 Sustainable waste management

Policy DMHB 11 part (d) of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies
(2020) states that development proposals should make sufficient provision for well designed internal
and external storage space for general, recycling and organic waste, with suitable access for
collection. External bins should be located and screened to avoid nuisance and adverse visual
impacts to occupiers and neighbours.

An assessment of the schemes waste and recycling management was undertaken when determining
the main planning consent. However it was concluded that additional information would be required to
ensure that the proposal met the councils waste collection standards. As such in the event of an
approval, full details of the refuse/recycling stores (including their dimensions, external finishes and
design) would be secured by re-imposing condition (Condition 12).

Subiject to the above condition, it is considered that the proposed development would be able to
provide a convenient location for refuse and recycling facilities in accordance with Policy DMHB 11
part (d) of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020)."

7.16 Renewable energy / Sustainability

Policy Sl 2 of the London Plan (2021) states that residential development should achieve at least a
10% improvement beyond Building Regulations 2013.

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 154



Policy DMEI 2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020)
requires all developments to make the fullest contribution to minimising carbon dioxide emissions in
accordance with the London Plan targets.

Since the previous approval, the applicant has discharged Condition 8 (Sustainability Strategy) under
application reference 60653/APP/2023/3178, which was attached to secure the submission of a
Sustainability Strategy to demonstrate that the proposed dwellings would achieve an energy
efficiency standard of 10% CO2 improvement over Building Regulations requirements Part L 2013
(TER Baseline). Compliance with the Sustainability Strategy will be secured by condition (Condition
8).

A condition would be secured requiring the proposed dwellings to achieve as a minimum, a water
efficiency standard of no more than 110 litres per person per day maximum water consumption (to
include a fixed factor of water for outdoor use of 5 litres per person per day in accordance with the
option requirement defined within Approved Document G of the Building Regulations) (Condition 6).

Subiject to the above conditions, the proposal would be compliant with Policies DMEI 2 and DMEI 10
of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020) and Policy S| 2 of the
London Plan (2021).

7.17 Flooding or Drainage Issues

Policy SI 12 of the London Plan (2021) states that development proposals should ensure that flood

risk is minimised and mitigated, and that residual risk is addressed. Policy Sl 13 of the London Plan
(2021) states that development proposals should aim to achieve greenfield run-off rates and ensure
that surface water run-off is managed as close to its source as possible.

Policy DMEI 9 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020) states
that proposals that fail to make appropriate provision for flood risk mitigation, or which would increase
the risk or consequences of flooding, will be refused.

Policy DMEI 10 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020 states
that development within areas identified at risk from surface water flooding which fail to make
adequate provision for the control and reduction of surface water runoff rates will be refused.

The site partially falls within a Surface Water Management Zone. During the course of the application
a Flood Risk Assessment (dated 19.05.2022) prepared by The Environmental Protection Group Ltd
was submitted. The report confirms that:

. The site is located within Flood Zone 1 and the proposed use is appropriate for development of the
site.

- The site is not susceptible to groundwater flooding; however, further monitoring boreholes will need
to be carried out to establish the groundwater levels prior to construction.

- A drainage strategy needs to be produced in order to demonstrate the development will provide a
betterment on the existing brownfield runoff rate.

- A mitigation measure needs to be put in place to maintain the surface water flow path that cuts
across the site. Alternatively, the drainage system for the site could be designed to accommodate the
surface water that flows from Sullivan Crescent onto the site during the extreme events.

The proposal involves the construction of an extension which results in a modestly larger footprint. In
the event of an approval, a condition would be secured requiring the submission of a sustainable
water management scheme, that incorporates sustainable urban drainage systems (SuDs), to be

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 155



submitted to the Council for consideration (Condition 6). This would need to take into account the
surface water flow path referred to above, and how surface water run off onto the site would be
managed during extreme events. Also, the landscaping condition has been worded in such a manner
to ensure that permeable hard surfacing is used for the parking areas serving the proposed dwellings
(Condition 12). As noted above, the site is not susceptible to ground water flooding and therefore the
risk to the proposed development is low. Nevertheless, the submitted FRA recommends that further
monitoring boreholes be carried out to establish groundwater levels prior to construction. This
recommendation has been included as an informative.

Subiject to the recommended conditions, it is considered that the proposed development would not
increase the risk of flooding on the site or elsewhere in accordance with Policies DMEI 9 and DMEI
10 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020) and Policies SI 12
and Sl 13 of the London Plan (2021)."

7.18 Noise or Air Quality Issues
NOISE:

Policy D14 of the London Plan (2021) states that in order to reduce, manage and mitigate noise to
improve health and quality of life, residential and non-aviation development proposals should manage
noise by avoiding significant adverse noise impacts on health and quality of life.

The site would be used in an exclusively residential capacity. As such, in terms of the operational
phase of the proposed development, no significant issues are considered to be raised by the
proposal, in respect to noise.

The previous application attached a condition securing the submission of a Construction
Management Plan to minimise noise and other emissions caused during the construction phase as
far as practicable.

Since the previous approval, the applicant has discharged Condition 4 (Construction Logistics Plan)
under application reference 60653/APP/2023/3003. Compliance with the Construction Logistics Plan
will be secured by condition (Condition 4).

AIR QUALITY:

According to the Council's GIS, the site is not designated within an Air Quality Management Zone. As
such, there is no need to secure an Air Quality Management Plan, in the event that planning
permission were to be granted.

7.19 Comments on Public Consultations
Covered in other sections of this Committee Report.

7.20 Planning obligations

Policy DMCI 7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020) states
that to ensure development is sustainable, planning permission will only be granted for development
that clearly demonstrates there will be sufficient infrastructure of all types to support it. Infrastructure
requirements will be predominantly addressed through the Council's Community Infrastructure Levy
(CIL).

The Council adopted its own Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) on 1st August 2014. The Hillingdon

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 156



CIL charge for residential developments is £95 per square metre of additional floor space. This is in
addition to the Mayoral CIL charge of £60 per square metre. CIL rates are index linked. The proposal
involves the erection of new dwellings and is therefore CIL liable, if planning permission were to be
granted.

7.21 Expediency of enforcement action
Not applicable.

7.22 Other Issues
LAND CONTAMINATION:

Policy DMEI 12 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020)
states that conditions will be imposed where planning permission is given for development on land
affected by contamination to ensure all the necessary remedial works are implemented, prior to
commencement of development.

Since the previous approval, the applicant has partially discharged Condition 5 (Contamination) under
application reference 60653/APP/2023/3178, which was attached to the original permission given the
historic use as garages and the possibility that contaminants may be present at the site. Compliance
with the approved land contamination details will be secured by condition and further details relating
to 5(ii, iii and iv) of the condition are required in order to fully discharge the condition (Condition 5).

Subject to such a condition, the proposal is unlikely to pose land contamination risk to future
occupants in accordance with Policy DMEI 12 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development
Management Policies (2020).

OTHER MATTERS:

In the event of an approval, a condition would be secured removing permitted development rights
from the site to ensure that garages, sheds or other outbuildings, nor extensions or roof alterations to
the proposed dwellings at the site are erected without the written consent of the Council. This is
considered to be necessary in the interest of safeguarding the character and appearance of the area
and amenity of residential occupiers.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so far as
material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including regional and national
policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in accordance with all relevant
primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use of land in
the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning applications
adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also the guidance
contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 157



Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent should not be
refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal. Planning conditions should
only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing the conditions are necessary, relevant to
planning, relevant to the development to be permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all
other respects. Where conditions are imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for
imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an agreement or
undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 are necessary to
make the development acceptable in planning terms. The obligations must be directly related to the
development and fairly and reasonably related to the scale and kind to the development (Regulation
122 of Community Infrastructure Levy 2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning applications to
have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of opportunities and foster
good relations between people who have different protected characteristics. The protected
characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or
belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should consider
whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a proposal when
compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic. Where equalities issues arise,
members should weigh up the equalities impact of the proposals against the other material
considerations relating to the planning application. Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive,
but the objective of advancing equalities must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an
application. The weight to be given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to
determine in all of the circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in particular
the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the protection of property and
the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be proportionate and achieve a fair balance
between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable

10. CONCLUSION

For the reasons set out in this Committee Report, it is considered that the proposal would comply with
the objectives of national, regional and local planning policies and guidance. It is therefore
recommended that the application be approved, subject to the imposition of the conditions set out in
Section 2 of the Committee Report.

11. Reference Documents

National Planning Policy Framework (2023)

The London Plan (March 2021)

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management Policies (January 2020)

Hillingdon Local Plan Accessible Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document (September 2017)

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 158



Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document (July 2014)

Technical Housing Standards - Nationally Described Space Standard (March 2015)
Government Circular: Biodiversity and Geological Conservation- Statutory Obligations and their
Planning System (2005)

Contact Officer: Emilie Bateman Telephone No: 01895 250230

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 11th April 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 159



Notes:

I:l Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2020 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:
Former Garages

Site Rear of Sullivan Crescent

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 01895 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale:
60653/APP/2024/295 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:

Minor Page 160 April 2024

™ILLINGDON

LONDON




Agenda Annex

Hillingdon
Planning Committee

Thursday 11th April 2024

HILLINGDON

Page 161



Report of the Head of Development Management and Building Control
Address: WILLOWTREE MARINA WEST QUAY DRIVE HAYES

Development: Conversion of the first floor and loft space to create 3 x 2-bed and 1 x 1- bed
flats with ground floor extension for relocation of existing Chandlery

LBH Ref Nos: 46463/APP/2023/2279

Drawing Nos:

Page 162



AOMINLM\EZ0Z UdseN"uonediddy\BuipeaA ‘eutiely 9311 mojlim\sbuimelg\N

0007

d uonedoj a3y ‘Bmpueld uoied0| S - LO|

0521 uej

100 D01 AOMIWLM

uolsiney Jaquinu Buimelq
pl 0scl:l €202°€0'91
umelq v © 9|eoS ajeq

Ue|d Uol}edo] a)IS

Buimelq

Buluue|d

‘916 yan ‘Buipes A
‘Bl Aenp 1SN ‘BULIBIN 831IMO|[IN

yosfoid

uonduosag ajeq | Ny

*xx *x *

wos

wo9

woy

woc

0

0S¢l

Page 163



= €700 N1d QOMINLIM

uoisinay Jequinu Bupesq
pl 00c:L €202°'90°6¢
umeiq eV @ oeos s1eq

sue|d Joo|4 pasodoid

Bumesg

Buluue|d

416 vdn ‘Buipes
‘anll@ Aenp 1S9)N ‘BULIB|N 931IMOJIN

Josloig

opdissea] aea] Aew

wgp wol

e S e ——— R |V T4

11

NV1d 1407 d3S0d0dd

Bunry

¥

!

o
saxig g o) abeioig

1011 oM.

Buiar

ey

—e

L uBLy

funy

Auodfeg

Nss_E_m w| Y

Buug ﬂ

&

NV1d 40014 ANNOYO Ad3SOd0dd

NV1d 40074 1S¥l4 d3S0d0dd

Page 164




- €900 N1d QOMINLM

6 ws wol wg 0
uorsiney Jsquinu Bumelq 00z:L

pf ooz €202'90°6¢C 9 NOILO3S-NOILVYAT T3 A3S0d0ud G NOILO3S-NOILVYATITI Ad3S0d0dd
aq

umeiq £V ® 8|eos

suolens|g pesodold

Bumeiq

= I N
Z

Buluue|d

‘ N ¥
g16 van ‘Buipesy / y 9 AN =4
‘aAlg ABND 1S9M ‘BULIBIN S3IMOJIIM =

108(04d

uopduoseq | ejeq | Aoy

¥ NOILVYA3T3 d3S0d0oyd € NOILVYAIT3 a3S0d0oyd

5@ @l 3| ==

] . F .

. . O— g =
]

O O o g o O

¢ NOILVA3TT3 a3S0d0dd , I NOILVAZT3 A3S0d0dd

[=]
oo

oo | [

L]
11 g e N . :




jd

Scale @ A2
1:500

Tosn
WTMWQD_PLN_001

Willowtree Marina, West Quay Drive,

Yeading, UB4 9TB.
Existing Site Layout

Project
Planning
Date
16.03.2023
Drawing number

West Quay Drive

Page 166




= G00 N1d AQODMIALM

uaisinay J1aquinu Bumeiq wsL wol wg 0 0zt
e e e e ] o
pl 002Z:} £€202°¢0'9) 9 NOILLVAZT3 ONILSIX3 S NOILVA3T3 ONILSIX3
:SEn._ £V © eJeos ejeq

Buluue|d

N NN N

/ :m_
Y
suopens|3 Buisixg 3 H_u
Burneiq Nour

Buipea, "eutie|y 2211 Moy

002 suonersp bunsixaTey ‘Bmp suoneasye - suepd Joojy pasododd pue Bunsixs - 900-500-700-£00"NTd"ADMINLM\EZ0Z Y2 e UoReDl|

€16 74N ‘Buipea
‘anlI@ Aenp 1SS ‘BULEN S31MO|IM T - = = = - -
josloig
NV IdAIN
1]
)
:a_a_‘_“vw@n__ aleq | ney
¥ NOILLVAT13 ONILSIX3 € NOILVAT 13 ONILSIX3

|

0o ool B O EZEET = 1 o0l

€

i3
o
V
o |
¢

0O OO o g o g

¢ NOILVAZTd ONILSIX3 I NOILVAZT3 ONILSIX3

Page 167




= €00 N1d QOMINLM

uosiney Jaquinu Bumelg

NV1d 40074 ANNOYO ONILSIX3

pl 00c:L €202'e0'9l

uneiq £V © efeos aeq _\//_
—

sue|d Jooj4 Bunsix3g m
Bumeiq H

6 = O r .“._ |_ |
uiuue|d /J |_|\¥

|

oy | !

) L N

E
T
€16 van ‘Buipess M _I I__ .%T | | Sl
‘anlIg Aenp 1S9\ ‘BULIBIN S31IMOJIIM 'e) : = w

c ] .
Uopdiosed| erea Aoy | M my el
IO\ _—

- - . I

ws| wol wg
e = e e e e e WEGTAR ﬁ

Juiod
uowwoo

NV1d 40014 1Sdld ONILSIX3

Page 168

NV1d 1407 ONILSIX3

[EEENRN] NEENERINNNEEA

] — w il g
E £ 4
— —c T H O

| Tﬁ |

[TTTT

=il
— =

1y

e e [ e = |

<!
|

00¢7sueyd Jooy bunsixaey ‘Bmprsuoneaspe - suepd ooy pasodoid pue Bunsixe - 900-500-00-£00 N1d"ADMINLM\EZ0Z Y2eN uonedijddy\Buipes A 'eutie 331 mojjip\sBumela\iN

urod
uowwoo

urod
uowwoo



A
Qs

:I parking allocated to flats

5
2
= ¢
g
=
a 5 8
& Qo o
é R EYN
P | °8| =z
ek 3 £Q —
28 = g B = o
£ o P 1
X £o e o
22 ©
i i 2 @ g
238 9> | € 7] Q E;
qal g2 g 8 QRIES
il 12§ 8|7 9 .8 ?E
2[5] FEf R |E §e |8
&
E
3
E
S

West Quay Drive

Page 169




= /00 N1d QOMINLM NY1d 40074 ANNOYO ONILSIXT

uosiney Jaquinu Bumelq

pl 00¢:1 €coc’LL'vl r (y—
uneig £V © sjeos aeq _\//_

|
=
T

sue|d Jooj4 asn Bunsixg . m

Bumesg M

Buiuue|d = _

e

‘aAlIQ Aenp) 1SSpA ‘BULIB S3IMO|IIM
soloid |

/J " e i
€16 pan ‘Buipesy _I I__ 1 H

|

; L S

‘GQOMW.LMEZOZ YoIe~uoneaddy\Buipea ‘euliey 8a1L molpsBuimea\:N

0 NId

1d 100} Bunsixe™ gy ‘Bmpsueid 100y asn Bugsixe - 0!

£0d"30d 0L OMA '8EISET} S20T/HUISH
‘002" suef

uopduoseq]  elea| Aey | —l.

ws| wol wg 0 —
e = e e e e e WEGTAR ﬁ

Juiod
uowwoo

NV1d 40014 1Sdld ONILSIX3

Page 170

NV1d 1407 ONILSIX3

WOoO0y jue —
[NEENRN] EEENERINNNEEA d 1UEld D

(B ——— |
= = SI9OMOYS [BUNWWOY - xB
JOVHOLS WOOY INV1d -
(Asasunu) Bojaui4 — | ﬁ - rB
i

1y

.

JueIne)say

<!
/

[
=

[TTTT

urod urod
uowwoo uowwoo




Notes:

|:| Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2020 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

Willowtree Marina

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 01895 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale:
46463/APP/2023/2279 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:
Minor Page 171| April 2024




Address:

Development:

LBH Ref Nos:

Report of the Head of Development Management and Building Control

34, 36, 38 GREEN LANE NORTHWOOD

Partial demolition of ground floor space to the rear of number 38, and
amalgamation of number 36/38 to form a larger and more coherent retail unit on
the ground floor. Partial demolition of ground floor space to the rear of number
34 to facilitate the erection of a single storey E-Use workshop building. New
external staircase to retained upper floor residential units. Shop front to retail to
remain as existing.

77897/APP/2023/2663

Page 172



"KIOUIND US| INOLIM H0d 10 S{0UM Ul PENPOIdal 5 10U ADLL PUD JUBIAGOS §f BUMDI SIL
Woo dysiaulDdsIOY MM

SLO3ILIHD YV

dIHSYINLAV

) woy wog woz wQl wo
1280610 °} [ T i T T T T

o4 yodmaN ] [ T T T T T T T
h101933 PlO BYL

. 005:1
o001z 7610 ’ NV1d XD019 ONILSIX3

Aoy

101-0S [6 1]~

NV1d NOILYOO1 8 XDO19 ONILSIXT [st dumeia

odal

psio8ud

4l | Aaumoia

£202/80/£0 R

oy susbumoig SAIVA A5

(se10108Y $0°0 / Wbsz 00)
ONINNY1d " AIVANNOG NOILVYOI1ddY = me
L1 SONIATOH ANV NIFYD 8E-¥T UL

([sei0}oeYy 70 / Wbsy'ee0z)

997 9vH dIHSIIANMO SINVII1ddV
AOOMHIION — —
INVTNIO 8E 9€ Ve NI ANVT d3HIO=
INFWAOTIAIA GISOAON | awsostons ATY
Agpun| Ag ey uoydusseq ajoa| Aoy
_— —_ —|AM-wupp | =
wool wog woy woy woz wo

oselil
NV1d NOILVOO'

Page 173




RevBy |ChiaBy

A3
Checked| IDC

www harmspartnership.com

Drawing Size

prawnsy [ TB

ehouse, 77 Dale Street
Christophers Place,

PLANNING
07/08/2023

1:200

a
5
@
3 _ 8
z a
S u 3
a z :CE)
9 < w
gz Z
&
w oA 3
[a) x5 z
il 95 [
S 8z o
| gl O T [}
S5 3L |8
=
T :O < 4
£ ¥ Iz= N
LA
o =
5 -

oraving Title [ EXISTING SITE PLAN

oo 1971 50-102

iatus

Date

st

Page 174

authority.

This drawing is copyright and may not be reproduced in whole or part without written

EXISTING SITE PLAN




AQUOUING US| 10U 15T 10 S{0UM Ul PaonPoidal 5 10U ADL PUD [UBIAGE § BUMBIP 1
S1Z160v £020°}

frINIM dopuol [

S1O3LIHDHY '890|d s12ydoysuyD 4§ HN0D 5389 01

00££0568110 °}
Hotpicrior ™
woy woge wog wol w
24511280610 °} [ T T T T T
9V8 9 INW Jlubog yodmeN [ I T
19315 YOIH 6/ 'AI0123Y PO BYL F T T

5558862 1910 4 00§11

OHZ IW 13jsayouoy [

.wwk.mm_onk‘wgoo“M._M\NsMM\”.oow Z<l_n_ MUOI_m DWWO&OW—ﬁ—

VOgE M ‘PRUSIPM - [

Wodysiaupodsiuny M

Hlis

"YHON SUYor IS T

- 0el-0S L6 L[

NV1d X009 A3SOdOdd |3t ouweia E
MYQ [porosus [ | 4awmeia | £Z02/60/80 sea ,
JSPR—— 0051 | oo
ONINNVId sniois|
QL7 SONIQTOH ANVTNIIIO 8e-vT e
90T 9VH
AOOMHIJION
INVINIFIO 8¢ '9€ ¥€

INIWJOTIAIA AISOJOYd | =t wsioss

=

Agpun| Agroy uoydoseq spa ey

— - ——[Ah-ww-pp | =

Page 175

3DVdS ONPRIVA AF3AISSYd <]
JOVdS DNV AF JALLDY E
ONIQTING JOHSYIOM [
8e/9¢ NN IVI3y [
YEUNNTVIES [

(seiojomy
70°0 / WbSZ'00%) AVANNOE NOILYDITddYy s

(sas0p08Y 20 / Wbsy'ee0z)
dIHSYINMO SINYOI1ddY NI ANV dFHLIO m—m

ADI




Wodysiaupodsiuny M
SLO3ILIHD YV

dIHSYINLAV

008162 ¥
YOE 1M 'P|3!

1280610 °}
0d HOAMON
h101933 PlO BYL

0}
PM

"YHON SUYor IS T

LC1-0G 161

on Bmaor

KHOUIAD US| InOUIM 1D 10 S{oUM Ul panpoidal 5 10U ADLU PUD JUBIATS 5 BUAMDIP SIUL

00¢:1
NV1d 31S d3SOdOdd

NV1d 3US AISOJOdd [smisumaia

MIQ [perosus 1 [ 4awweia [ €202/60/80 #°a
ov  emstumoig 00zL| oo
ONINNYd snieis

QL7 SONIQTOH ANVTNIIIO 8e-vT

(5]

90T 9VH
AOOMHIJION
INVINIFIO 8¢ '9€ ¥€

INIWJOT3IAIA AISOJ0Ad

sl oslorg

Agpun| Agroy uoydioseq

appa| A

JOVdS ONMIV AZ JAISSVd
JOVdS ONAVd AF JAILDY
ONIQTING dJOHSHIOM
8€/9€ LINN TIV13d

Y€ LIINN V13

TIVM ONILSIX3

TIVYM M3IN d35Od0dd

Q)

AA=Lu-pp

INIRINIR R

N
N

>
w




[ha poto [ Ag nea

uopdussaq | sioq| sy

M¥a i

Q3UvadN ADI ANV GIATY SANOT0D HoLvH| soef v

wbs g / 4bs 98, 8

Wbszz / 4os 62 | 98 ¥04 ONIQING 1NO

whbs o / 4bs €51 9€

wbsy L1/ ybs szzL ve

VIV ONUINN

3INA3IHOS VIYV ¥OO1d ANNOY¥D

[— SR 2o zi poroo4 17 |#auneio|  £202/80/£0 =0
S103LIHOY¥Y “99D]d s18ydojsiD IS *HN0D 889 01
00££0S6 8110 Bupmo, N 0o
¢ v sasBumoig 00l:L o5
iR . ¢ ue w = e =
VB ILIW 5By poamen [ ONINNVTd[  emieis ' ' ' ' '
1931IS YBIH 6/ "A0o3Y PlO 2yl ool:l
GSSBBET 1910 4
OHZ IN skeuou [ QL7 SONIQTOH INVT NITIO 8e-vZ|  weo NV1d dOOTd ANNOID ONILSIXT
Jo0is 9IpQ L OOUeIOM SoABD
00816Z ¥T610 %
VOE LM ‘PloUSYOM [
"YHON suyor IS g 492 9VH
QOOMHLION
v >.g_ €O01-0G L] [rower INVTNITIO 8€ 9€ ‘vE
NY1d 3OOT4 ANNOYID ONILSIX3 ot uno INIWJOTIAIA QISOLOYd | =t iosiors

Page 177




N
ARTNER SHI

- &8 & z
A NEE g
2 51%|% %
IR gl
Q9 2|35 (8 = | O
i 2l
-4 z | O
o o |l
o Z | —
9 |s 2 [o~
= |z =4
s olslslsls S| e—
slsls
FEHEIE El e
= E
e | 2
il 2
8| 2
0
1 o |
2
o £
= o |3
5 8
(73 <U
9 8
4 £ H
L, 3 ¢
T z g s | ®
9 3 w z
gz z
g fo s 3
a 09 &
a €] w | O Q
5 B2a x | z S
O f8 |92 g
c %k [ 812|188
¥ 3zz J|la| =5
B
H
g
H
¥
5 :
_&
13
I8
€
IE
E
&
E
5
z
<<
—
o
o
o]
o]
—
o
—
w
&
o
Z
=
© 8
X =
Kz

Page 178




387 sqft / 36 sqm

AREA

UNITNO.
34A
36A

38A

SECOND FLOOR AREA SCHEDULE

Page 179

Rev By [ Chicd By|

use, 77 Dale Street,

worel 191 50-105

Drawing Tile| PLANNING

Checked 'Dc

Drawing size A2

Drawn By [TB

34, 36, 38 GREEN LANE
NORTHWOOD

HA6 2QB

24-38 GREEN LANE HOLDINGS LTD

PLANNING
07/08/2023

1:100

project Tile | PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT

Clent
atus
Date

st

8m

2m

EXISTING SECOND FLOOR PLAN

1:100




o ooA v%i g1 rewnia 7 £202/80/ 0

- oy emeunon SHAVA| s
\la] ONINNV1d

o Q17 SONIGTOH INVT NITIO 8e-hZ| e

o

i §0¢ 9VH

QOOMHLION

-_ é_ Q01-0G L & | |orenower INVT NI 8E 98 Ve
NOILYAZ13 HLIION ONILSIX3 [ o0 INIWJOTIAIA QISOdON | ot iosbss

mmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmm

wg wy wy wg wo
[ T T r T T T r 1

0ool-1l
(HLI4ON) V-V NOILYAT13

K R ELTIESIN IS e
f

L
11
am
1]




S1Z1607 2020}
rrLnimuopuol O
“80D|d s1eydoysiLD 4§ 'HNOD 5889 0

00££056 8110 ‘4
85 103 ‘Buposy Il
‘pooy Uopud Lol

£/511Z 80610 1
989 YW Tloubod podmaN [
‘fe8lS UBIH 62 "Ai04o8y PIO sul
SSGBBEC 1910 '+
OHZ LW I9js3uoun [
198143 8[OQ £/ "ONOYSIDM SIONDD

008162 ¥2610 4
VOE LIM PRISPM [
"UHON SUYor IS

=

LOL-0G L6 L [prewer

NOILVAITI LSVI ONILSIXT [ops0umoia

ooA porooD aL[#ewoa| £202/80/L0|  ewea
ZV  emsBume 00l:l 4005
ONINNYId [ snieis
QL1 SONIQTOH ANV NIFNO 8e-vZ|  wero
0T 9VH
JOOMHLION
INVTNIFIO 8¢ 98 vE
INIWAOTIAIA QISOdOYd | o ioefors

I8 Potuo

hgray

uopduosaq | sieq| sy

00lL:L
(1Sv3) 9-9 NOILYATTS

Page 181




oL
SIDILIHDAY

121607 L0204

rLnim uopuol 0

*9901d siydoIsIYD IS oD 5889 01
00220568110

A85 198 Buppsy W

‘Pooy UopuoT 101
£/511Z 90610 4

9V8 91IW Joubod podmeN [

“1994S UBIH 6/ "A1cko9d PIO SUL
S9988€T 1910

OHZ LW JeiseUSUoW [

59US SIPQ LL ‘SSNOUBIOM SIBAIED
008162 72610 '+

VOE LM PIRUSIOM [

“UHON SUYOT 45 T

@

Oni poaD 1| Aaumoa|  €20C/80/L0

ama

v ensowmo 00L:1

ETTeT

ONINNV1d

sl

AL SONIATOH ANV NIFIO 8e-v

wop

QO _.IOm, _.Q _. ON BMaaor

NOILVAITI ISIM ONILSIXI

L Bumoig

40C 9VYH
JOOMHINON
INVINIFIO 8€ ‘9€ Ve

INIWJOT13IAIA A3SOLOd

B posloiy

/A9 10!

g nay

uoycioseq [ aioq!

noy)

Inl

00L: 1L
(1SIM) @-a NOILYAT13

Page 182




W dseEds A o OD+ popaus g1 [4aumoa| £202/80/20 awa)
EFITT e
n 2y oo 00L:1 apos
dIHSHINLYV wg wy wy wg wo
V8 9 W ]9UDOd odMeN [ ONINNY1d snioig i f i f ' ¥ ' i '
“1984S UBIH 6/ "Aojo8d PIO SUL
o AL1SONIQTOH INVINIIIO 8e-vZ|  wow
o
40T 9VH
AOOMHLION
e 801-05161 INVI NIIIO 8€ ‘9€ Ve
NOILYAT 1 HINOS ONILSIX3 [ INIWJOTIAIA AISOJOYd |t ioeters
A9 pAuD | Ag Ay uoydyasaq ajog | ray|
pon pam o=

(HINOS) O

ool:l
=0 NOILYAIH

=]

7

(T

L0

L

U

=

L

Page 183



WS dUSIBUOGSLDU MMM

S1Z160v £020°}
frINIM dopuol [
'29D|d siydofsuyD IS 0D 5299 01

00££056 8110 4
A85 194 ‘Buposy W
‘PROY UopuoT 101

24511280610 °}

9V8 9 INW Jlubog yodmeN [
19315 YOIH 6/ 'AI0123Y PO BYL
558867 1910

OHZ IW 13jsayouoy [
190145 8JDQ £/ *9SNOUBIOM SIOAIDD

00814242610 °}
VOgE M ‘PRUSIPM - [
"YHON SUYor IS T

I OLL-0G [ 6 | [+
NV1d 4008 ONILSIXT |stourcia

0d] [peres 91| Aauweia [ £202/80/£0 era
ov  emstumoig 00ziL| s
ONINNV1d oS

QL1 SONIQTOH ANVTNIIIO 8e-vT

(5]

90T 9VH
AOOMHIJION
INVINIFIO 8¢ '9€ ¥€

INIWJOT3IAIA AISOJ0Ad

sl oslorg

Agpaun| Ag ey uoyduoseq

aioa| Aoy

AA-wurpp | =

KHOUIAD US| InOUIM 1D 10 S{oUM Ul panpoidal 5 10U ADLU PUD JUBIATS 5 BUAMDIP SIUL

00¢:L
NV1d 400d ONILSIX3

Page 184




S1Z1607 £020

rrLnimuopuol O
“80D|d s1eydoysiLD 4§ 'HNOD 5889 0

00££056 8110 °+

85 103 ‘Buposy Il

‘pooy Uopuo1 Lol
24511290610

4v8 9 YW 1ISubod podmeN [

‘fe8lS UBIH 62 "Ai04o8y PIO sul
SSGBBEC 1910 '+

OHE IW Jsiseyouowy [

49815 B|PQ £/ ‘SSNOYSIDM SISAIDD
00816242610

VOE LiM PRISPM [

"UHON SUYor IS

Ir|taweia| €202/60/80 sieq

>>Ni po0340

gy emsbumo 0ol:l 005

ONINNVd SniRis

AL1 SONIQTOH 3NV NIFHO 8e-vC e

GCL-OG L6 L [prowe

NOILVYAIT3 HIJON d3sOdOdd

st Burnoi

80T 9VH
JOOMHLION
INVINIFIO 8¢ ‘9€ ‘ve

INIWJOTIAIA AISOJOYd | =t islesd

I8 Potuo

hgray

uopduosaq | sieql

.

I

HE=

JUHM Q3IINIVd3d ANV ONILSIXT
SV NIVW3d OL INOJ4dOHS 7€ 8 9€ '8¢ LINN

ool
(HLIION) V-V NOILYATTZ d3SOd0dd

-

/8% JINN JIS0JOdd

S~

[
I
=B

u
1]

/A
—7/—\
0
<

o

JLIITH

—

\

[«

XA 5

A

= _H_ _H_Dnmn >
1 O M‘m '

B

Page 185

=




wood

AusioupDSIOU MR

S1Z1607 £020

1r|fswnoic| £202/60/80|  =ra

Emn* poroaud

CCL-0G L6 prove

NV1d JOOTd ANNOID A3ISOJOYd (s bumoia

rrinimuopuol O
SLO3LIHDYY “80D|d s18ydojsLD §S *HN0D 5889 0|
n gy emsbumo 00l:1 005
wg wo Wy wz wo
V8 9 1) o ONINNVId sniRiS
192118 YBIH 00l:L
o QL1 SONIQTOH INVT NITIO 86T wero NV1d 0074 ANNOYD A3SO40dd
oS oppq L. e0UeI
o SAVE ONDIIVd
N oy HeE P—— AINIVW ‘ONE

JOOMHLION
INVINIFIO 8¢ ‘9¢ ‘ve

INIWJOTIAIA AISOJOYd | =t eslesd

g oo

hgray uopdusseq | sioq| sy

Q3HSIOW3Q 3801 = =—
TvMONLSa 3

TIVM M3N G350d0dd 24

AD

vioL

JOHSYIOM

8€/9€ G3INIIWOD Q3SOd0O¥d

wibs /9 / 44bs 12/ € Q3SOdO¥d

vy "ON IINN

31NAIHOS VIV ¥OOTd ANNOYD

SIN3AISFY JO4
JOHSHIOM L1INg
AT3SOddNd A3SOdOdd

LHOMANS A3sOd0Odd

V9€ OL $SIOOV TYNJILXI

IVIINIAIS3Y

ANV SLINN TIV13d 3O

JOVIOLS NIg A3SOdOdd

d3aay JOOd TVNIILXI M3

30Vvds
-d3LvYO0T11V
NIg VdIX3

'SI1OAD "ON9 JO4
3OVIOLS ITOAD QI¥3IAN0D
ANV 33dND3$ d3sOd0dd

QILYWVYOTYWY SLINN TIV13d
ANV d3HSTOW3A 39 OL-
SLNN N3IMI3E TTVM ONILSIXT RS

A
/ :

ONILSIX3 SV NIVIFd INOJIJOHS:

ONILSIX3 SV NIVIFd INOAJdOHS:

ONILSIX3 SV NIVIFd INOY4dOHS:

Page 186




zi v%i 1r| e 7 £202/60/80
gy emsbumo 00l:L 4005
wg wo wy ug wo
ONINNVTd[  emieis
0ol:L
QL1 SONIQTOH INVT NITIO 86T wero NV1d dOOT4 1Sdl4 d3SOdO0dd
0T 9VH
QOOMHISON
-_ é_ CC1-0G 6] [nemoser INVT NI 8E 98 Ve
NV1d 3OO 18314 QISOdO¥d a1 oumoa INIWAOTIAIA QISOLOYd | e iosiors

mmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmm

3IV1S AF4O TYNOILIAVAL

V8e 1V1d 400
1Sal4 OL V1S SS90V ZmZJ,/
~~

NAAE]

Vv9¢€ 8 Ve ON OL SS300V
A04 WHO41VY1d ONIANV
Q3dVHS TV1IW a3S0d0dd

wbs 05 / 4405 885 vee
wbs 9 / 4bs g9 w9
wbs 29 / 4bs £99 wre

KEE ‘ON NN

31NAIHOS VIV YOO LS¥ld

\%

Page 187




(A0 ot | A9 nay uoycosaq
wbs 62 [ 4o T1E vee
wibs 07 / 405 957 voE
wibs 9¢ / Ybs /88 wve

VY ON LN

\%

31NAIHOS VAUV YOO ANODIS

,,,,,,,,,,,
E0t n %i papaND 1 [ Agumoc H_ £202/60/80 wa
‘90D|d s1eydoysis
p » 2y oo 00L:1 o
IS ws wo
Y8 9 IV o ONINNY1d wis
1004 UOH 6 001:1
o QL1 SONIQTOH ANVI NI 862 | wa, NV1d dOOT4 ANODIS A3SO40dd
o
90T 9VH
AOOMHINON
._ é_ YC1-0G 16| [orowe INVI NIIIO 8€ ‘9€ Ve
NY1d JOO1 ANODIS AISOJOY [t bumora INAWJO1IAIA AISOJONd | awweiens

Page 188




Bd 5 3o U Tour puB 1UBIAd05 1 BU R Sl
S1C160v L020 }

e frinim uopuol [

SLO23LIHDYY “89D|d $184dOJsUYD IS UNOD 5899 0L

00240568110 *}
AgS 193 Bupoey
POy UopuoT 101

£/5112 80610 +
V8 91N 1j2uBDd podmoN - []
1o0US UBIH 62 "AI0}oSY PIO auL

wod

dIHS¥INLYVY

‘19345 9IPQ £ @510y

008162 72610 4
VOE [3M
"UHON sUUor 3T

oy

8CL-0G L6 | [

SNOILYAITT dJOHSHIOM AISOJOYd |atu sumoia 0011

MIQ [porous Ir | wen | €202/60/80|  omo NOILVAT1I L1SIM AISOdOdd

gy emsBumoig, 00L: 1 aoos

001:L

NOILVYATT3 HIJON d3SOdOdd

ONINNVId sniols

QL7 SONIJTOH ANV N3O 8e-+C (]

/v_o_w_m AD0I1S NOANOT

, AN IWVH4 ANV

JOOAd NIAOOM Ndva

= = F
807 9VH g E A01¥8 4D0LS
QJOOMHLION £ E NOGNOT1
INVT NIFIO 8E ‘€ vE = 5
IN3WJOT3AIQ ISOdOYd | 4w oston g B ERVjlele}

AOl¥8 ¥3A10S

Tenmio] faren woea]  opa] o = ! |
Jy p— ——[Akewweop| -

B % r_mw_:OU ADNG YAA10S

7 oNnvEIaG——"
A0l¥8 a3y

IHOIT 400

-IHOIT 400y

ERJCREINAIN

001:1
NOILYATTT 1SV3 d3SOd0dd

400y ILV1S:

001:L

NOILYATFT HINOS d3SOd0Odd

!

S1V14 O131VO $SIDDV HIIM

Y133 40 XOVH ANV SIV1d OL 31V
SSIDDV HIIM 3DONIH 338WIL AIAAVOd 3SO1D

1HOIT 4004 A ¥OOLS NOANOT

Jwvad DZ(\\
JOOAd NIAOOM Ndva
3SINOD HORIE ¥INATOS: 3SINOD HOKIE JFAATOS
400 31V1$
ERICUNEINAN

3JON34 §39WIL 3AIVOd ISO1D
HOIYE HD01S NOANOT

AWVY4 NIGOOM
A4VA HIM MOANIM d3zV19 d31dnoa

Page 189



s12311

SIZ1607 £020 %
rinimuopuol O
HWoav ‘80014 s1BUdOISILD I oD 5989 01
00240868110 4

A85 198 Buppsy W
‘Pooy UopuoT 101

s

145112 80610 1
9V8 91IW Joubod podmeN [
"199US YOI 6/ "Aioko93 PIO SUL

Ir| s €202/60/80

ama

ool:1

T

ONINNV1d

sl

AL SONIATOH ANV NIFIO 8e-v

wop

9Z1-0G 16 L[

NOILYAI13 1SV A3SOHOYd |4 tumoia

40C 9VYH
JOOMHINON
INVINIFIO 8€ ‘9€ Ve

INIWJOT13IAIA A3SOLOd

B posloiy

/A9 10!

g nay

uockosed [ aioa [ nay|

J0148 A3 - ONINIY13a
dOHSIIOM d3ISOdOdd

HSINI X148 XD0L1S NOANOT,
= dOHSYIOM d3SOdOAd

SINN TIV13Y 40 ¥V3IY ANV
ONIQTING dOHSYYOM ‘SSIODV
NIg “TVIINIAISTY 304 31V ANV
JON34 JIENIL 0IQAVOE ISOTO

SUNN TVIINIAISIY OL SSIDDV
AIVIS AIAOCAIWI ANV MIN

ool
(1Sv3) 9-9 NOILYATTI Q3SOdO¥d

A

—IHa 400y

Page 190




SIDILIHDAY ‘99014 $18UdOIsID 45 "HNOD 5880 0L

SIZ1607 £020 %
rLnim uopuol 0

oL

=

| saumoa

£202/60/80

ama

0040568110 4
A85 198 Buppsy W
‘Pooy UopuoT 101

v emsoumo 00L:1

wg wy wy we wo

145112 80610 1
9V8 91IW Joubod podmeN [
“90US UBIH 61 "Ao}oRY PIO SUL

ONINNV1d

sl

5958967 1910 '+
OHZ LW JeiseUSUoW [
19315 B £L SSNOURIDM SI9MOD

AL SONIATOH ANV NIFIO 8e-v

wop

008162 72610 '+
VOE LM PIRUSIOM [
“UHON SUYOT 45 T

Aoy

L2105 16 L[

NOILYAT1T HINOS AISOdOYd [aru tumoia

40C 9VYH
JOOMHINON
INVINIFIO 8€ ‘9€ Ve

INIWJOT13IAIA A3SOLOd

B posloiy

/A9 10!

Knoy woucosod | awaaay|

= Jum e

3US 40 dV34 OLILYD HUM
3ION34 43WIL 3AdVO4 3SO1D

V8E V14 OLAIVIS SSIODV MIN—

SMOONIM ANV ;
S400A 40 AVIH OLADNG—
Q33 dIHOAV TVINIWDIS

AD1448 A3d - ONNIV.13d
dOHSYYOM Q3ISO4Odd

JWVad ANV §OOa
NIAGOOM Miva

HSINH D138 XD01S NOANO1
HUM JOHSHYOM A3SOJO¥d

IWYdd NIAOOM MIva
HUM MOANIM A3ZV19 a319noa

SIVIH OL3ILVD
JONVIINI HIIM 3DN34 §38WIL A3A4YOd 3SO1D

0oLl
(HLNOS) D-D NOILYAT T A3SOdO¥d

_

Ug ol

1]

A

Page 191




4

o
2
®

T

a

N

H
|3 z 1
[ >
5 o ]
| 3
2] H
5 2| &
P 5
9 5
Z £ 5
S =] g z
> uw [e) 8 5 <(O\
T z 2 a > <
0 < T — & [N
[roj— z E I L
> & < H 1
[T T = 5 O
o &g z £ 1O
s/l o Op S0 « a
8 g% |22 gl1ag|w
8 9 <=8 |92 s |9
©
=1 0 %% g Z18|8|5|O~
5 ¢ <0< S| 9| o | ®
3 a ®ZT 5 T - S o |
2 2
2 2
§ E ;g
3 € 3 2 o | %
i 2 2le| 8|8 [&]¢8

e
o
<

hiistophers Place,

PROPOSED ROOF PLAN

1:200

10m

5m

Oom

copyright and may nof be reproduced in whole or part vilhout

This drawing s

Page 192



Northwood
Methodist Chur

Northwood
and Pinner
Liberal
l. Car Park Synagogue

NVA

ENERMUN AT

Car Park

\
@ 1
S ) War
/Memorial L
, L
‘ ’
/ ’
.

,
.
clive
,Parade '’
,

INC’fI Site Address: LONDON BOROUGH
Site boundary OF HILLINGDON
For identification purposes only. 34’ 36’ 38 Green Lane Rglsalgre‘m; g:g\{:gzs

This copy has been made by or with Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW,|
the authority of the Head of Committee Telephone No.: Uxbridge 01895 250111
Services pursuant to section 47 of the . L . .

Copyright, Designs and Patents Planning Application Ref: Scale:

Act 1988 (the Act). 77897/APP/2023/2663 1:1,250

Unless the Act provides a relevant

exception to copyright. Planning Committee: Date:

© Crown copyright and database A | 2024

rights 2020 Ordnance Survey i ri

100019283 Minor Page 193 P




Report of the Head of Development Management and Building Control

Address: 90 LONG LANE ICKENHAM

Development: Demolition of the existing detached, single dwelling and the erection of a
building consisting of 9 no. two-bedroom flats, with associated parking and
amenities.

LBH Ref Nos: 8905/APP/2023/2419

Page 194



Ordnance Survey (c) Crown Copyright 2023. All rights reserved. Licence number 100022432

Location plan
Dwg No 3321-SK1 Scale 1:1250

Page 195



PI[SISMO) MMM ail
22B218 GBRTO L

. 7Irg 640, XAAIN ‘PIEISIEH
PY TIAdCH ‘TRUIULISL, [10 PIoUSIeH

ALT SHILVIOOSSV SYHMOL

I

3030

€2 U
SO A8 Nt | czoz whikdoo @) 7 007 | 7w
AR LO—=129% on 9
up|d »o0|g
bunsix3
ERINNY

'XS8 0ldn "wWbyusxol

‘aup buoT o

NOILdI¥9S30 )

h

£

i
{

Page 196

SELEEIRESE

)

P




L
- "
1
I =<2
§207 auns 351 1ve 0044
- ~
wi0/s25051
] woma
sS0st g -
- - »
L -] | ewes s
a
suDpd 00}y Bugsirg
L0000 meeww)
xs9 0240
“ueyuayor
auny BuoT 05
L e
-
S9]1BI00SSY SISMO],

- S—

JuSIeH | SurqyIoN | Funseg| @

o1qe], 8)euIpio—o)

PIYEYy)

002853 E0E:

ABASAS DNIQTINE — ADI NOLVIABNESV

AHANNS DIHAVAD0dOL — AEA

I I e
wop wg wg wy wg wo

Page 197




b

Jul

pusy

o gt

s307 2uns 191 | 4y oo wo, wg w9 wpy wz wo

/529091
]

sasoss -
o=

suoypasg Sunsitg

xs8 olan
Pt
auny BuoT 0§

woymnayg faT woymnayg wmay
SO)RIOOSSY SIOMO],

BV seomaies BultaswBog pue AeAms

SpuQQsE wrnq SUQQGE wWmnaq

w0

w | o

e e

i Sumpn fwuns sovouna 1 ey

s

VqFteH | SurgyoN| Sunseg| ar

o[qe], 9)eUIpIo—0) i

(o) oty e
Tl

uoymaalg 1yby uOYDAT JU0LT

spupo-ge WP sJwp0gE WD

2:
28 So=o

s avic wis sqie e @
B dog

1 oo sipulS —
st st aibuS

} |
M

Wy
o

N 3
18

ATMMNS 50401 — ADI

Page 198




PI[SIOMO} MMM Eil
228218 G6810 ML
L Ir9 edn  XAQIN ‘PoTjaavE
PY [IAIRH ‘[PUTUIISL [I0 PIRAIRH

LT SHLVIDOSSYV SYHMOL

2 unp 3w

<20z Wbk © | 00Z 'L 7ws

7< A CO—1CTE o o
up|d eyS / »dolg
pesadolg

JurL

'XS8 0lgn "tpyusxd|
‘aupT bBuoT 0640

NOLLAC¥0S3T PEE]




P SISMOY MMM ail
gc8eI8 G6810 1t

19 840, XAAIN _‘PIRIISIRH
Py TIAdRH TRUTULISY [0 P[oYeIeH

QLT SHLVIDOSSV SHHMOL

pAE L

<70z 161580 @ | 001 | 7ws

VoA TO—12CC on oy

}noAp| Jool} punoi9
pup oy pasodoud
ERINNN

'XS8 0l8n "wWbyusXo| /
‘aupT buol 06

NDLL4T¥0S30 v | A

00,:,000 |

KK
o

0

0%
SRR

otols

0"‘

XX

}1NoADT Joo|4 pJ9

N U

264220001 Jequinu sousol penesal SyUBLL Iy ‘€207 YuBLAdon umoiy (o) Aening souUDUP.ID




: =
1
[ve) >
<
>
cu“g S
o °
£S5 C o
=l 2 o g |9
2 o 2 1
Ell o E| o & | —
gl c o] 9 o |
slo<c| @20 M
45 2 o™
gllo = oSle |-
= - =
e — |2 s ||y
58 E |3

TOWERS ASSOCIATES

Harefield Oil Terminal, Harvil Rd,
Harefield, MIDDX. ~UB9 6JL.
L 01895 812822
wves. www.towers.ltd

Second floor

Roof Layout

[

0 0O

[

B o L TS

Roof Carcassing Layout

First floor

Page 201




J— uoI123g /j

Page 202




4

Side Elevation from 88 Long Land

A

Side Elevation from 92 Long Land

E

Ilml
=)=
b=z

i

- =

Rear Elevation

Front Elevation

DESTRIPTION

AT

REV.

90 Long Lane,

JOB,

Ickenham. UB10 8SX.

TITLE

Proposed
Elevations

REV. A ‘

s we.3321-07

S

3
3

) Covion 2003 [RUBY DS

©

UB9 BJL.
01895 812822
wes. www.towers.ltd

Harefield Oil Terminal, Harvil Rd,
Harefield, MIDDX.

A
=
|
2
i
=
g
O
e}
0
2]
<
u)
o
=
=
o
=

TEL.

Page 203




228218 66810

LT SHLVIDOSSV Sd¥dMOL
B

uuuuuuu

18 W [

AR CO—LCET on o

S S 984S
pasodold pup Dulis|x3

‘aup7 buol 06

"INIOS 13FLS

spwpg-gs wryng

J350d0dd

880N

s

I

7
o dl

"ANFOS L 3341S

,j]_u,

swip0-gs wrynq

LEL

fir

ONILSIX3

L] [H0 |
i/
1Y |

Page 204




The Douay Martyrs School
Cardinal Hume Campus

.7 North Hillingdon Centre

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2020 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

90 Long Lane

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 01895 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale:

8905/APP/2023/2419 1:1,250

Planning Committee: Date:

Minor Page 205| April 2024




Report of the Head of Development Management and Building Control
Address: MEADOW HIGH SCHOOL ROYAL LANE HILLINGDON

Development: Temporary redevelopment of the site to provide a single storey temporary
modular classroom (Use Class F1)

LBH Ref Nos: 3348/APP/2024/74

Drawing Nos:

Page 206



—

81102 uoissiwqng Bujuued 10d

‘0N GOr UninoN uondiosa uoisinsy uoisinay

4] Butuued Joj panss| 1d

2215 Jaded BuO. vonduosaq AgeIns snels
0¢1d=V=¥a-00 - YA - AON - ¥200JAL

Jequny ey edk| pre] eunjop  JojeuiBug alolg
€202 Iudy -aleq anss| aloig W®00s L 9EdS
d9  PaN%BYY 1 umelg

ue|d Uoleso ayg anss| Buiuueld

ousiojay Bug

uopBulH 1100493 YBIH MOpESIY

auey aloig

05/855 €V210 L

481 610d

BISAYOD

aue suleg

N ableyxg U0Y

S1D231IHDOHYWV
NNITAON

paniasa SB[y PRI UNNON @
“suofieayoads puE SBUIEID 1UBA3[R JBUI0 [l Y Lo) pea1 50} 51 Buwep

S U0 Pe0aL}o 8 O} SUOISUBLUIP PUE S[a/ uo SuoISUBLUIP paInBy asq)
fq panss| ajeq uopdussog  *oN
[ ez0erei/e| ‘suosssep Rewoduel] 10d
sawpuawY

SN NN NN WW N 0059 oROs
4 o S 0 [

EpUnOg WoEIdy —— Se—

KIRPUNOG BUSIBIND ——Sm—
puaba Aiepunog

so0|g urejy - buipjing bupsix3

Buiping

Wio4 yxIS
- Buippng Bupsix3

seloN

Page 207



—

81102 uoissiwqng Bujuued 10d
‘0N GOr UninoN uondiosa uoisinsy uoisinay
4] Butuued Joj panss| 1d
8715 saded 60 uonduosaq AceINS sneis

€¢1d=V-4a-00 - YA - AON - ¥Z00OAL

Jquny ey edk] pre] eunjop  JojuiBug alolg
IV

€202 |udy -oleq anss| paloly Dpajopuisy 8o
d9  PaN%BYY 1 umelg

ue|d 100} punois) Bunsixg anss| buluuelq

ousiejay Bug

uopBuliH g7 |00y9S ybiH mopeajy

awe) paloid

05895 EK240 1
481 610d
101S8LI4D.

\ﬂ\ oue sueg

SBuRyE UKD

S1D231IHDOHYWV
NNITAON

poniasal SYBU Iy PSILIT UNIAON @
"suojjedljioads pue sBUIME.P JuBASIB 3UIO [|e UjiM LoNouNiucd Ul peal aq o} si Bumesp
UL "84S UO Payoal aq 0} SUCISUBLUP pue sjanal ly *Aluo Suoisuawwp painby as

fq panss| ajeq uondussag  *oN
Ar| €e0ueHoz| ‘swoosssep frenodue1] }0d|
sjuawpusury

EIU — | T W 00l 93RS
S [4 13 0 3

FIEPUNOR AUSIBUIND ——Se—
puabe Aiepunog

seloN

Page 208




—

00b:}

8102 uoissiwqng Buluueld  J0d
o gor urnay From——e.
w Buuelq jojpenss|  1d
s s By vodiseg pgEns sl
[27d -V - ¥0 = XX = PA = AON - ¥Z00OAL

[ _ps o N T |
€20 udy wpeq onss| palosg WDl s

© oo 1 weq

suogere Bugsixg anss| Buiuelg
s

UopBulliH g7 [004os YBIH Mopealy

ouey ol

oBuryorg wog

S1ID31LIHDYV
NNIAON

panssas sty paur InIoN G

Faponssy  owq uondssq ‘o
] o] e TRnt] Tod]

‘swowpusuy

SN I 00101196
H T 0

wio s - Bupyng ugsng

wio s - Bupgng Bugsya

uoneAd|3 3sap pasodoid

sansodod elupisey - Buppng Bujsia

00b )

®

wio s - Buppng Bujsi

uoneAs|3 yynog pasodoid

(o]
o
N
[<8)
(@)}

G
oph

®

wio s - Bugpng Bugsig

Hl
uoljeAd|3 jse3 pasodold

00b: )

O

t

wio s - Bupging Bugsa

uoieAd[3 YpoN pasodolid

®



—

81102 uoissiwqng Bujuued 10d

N cor uniroN uojduosq UOSINGY  UOIS! oy

4 Buuueld Joj panss| d

o213 1adeg 610 wondiseq ApGeIng ‘smiey s

€¢d=V-4a-00 - YA - AON - ¥200JAL

equny ooy @[ pAe]  eunon  Joeupuo Telolg

£20¢ |1dy 2leq anss| paloiq WO0S L ek

d9  PaN%BYY 1 umelg

ue|d a)s pasodoid anss| Buluueld
20usiaEy BIg

uopBulH 1100493 YBIH MOpESIY
e

woou "
woou oju

0548 0l

481 610d

JIsa4IND

sue suleg

N SBuRyE UKD

S1D231IHDOHYWV
NNITAON

por nunroN®
“suofieayioads pue SBUIEID 1UNSIR! I e LM L 151 Buwep
SIL "8} U0 PaYI8UD 8] O} SUOISUBLIP PUE S[aRd] [y A ip painBy s

Aqponss|  aweg uopdudsaq  ‘oN

[ ez0erei/e| ‘suosssep Rewoduel] 10d

SpuswpuUawY

SRON_ NN NN W W N 0050} 3RS

3 o [ 0 3
fiepunog Ueaddy —— Se—
HIEpUIO dUSIBUNG. ——Sem—
pusba Kiepunog

so0|g urejy - buipjing bupsix3

Wio4 yxIS
- Buippng Bupsix3

Page 210



—

81102 uoissiwqng Bujuued 10d
‘0N GOr UninoN uondiosa uoisinsy uoisinay
4] Butuued Joj panss| 1d
8715 saded 60 uonduosaq Aiceing sneis

¥¢1d=V=-¥a-00 - YA - AON - ¥Z00DAL

Jquny ey edk] pre] eunjop  JojuiBug alolg
IV

€202 |udy -oleq anss| paloly Dpajapuisy  eos
d9  PaN%BYY 1 umelg

ue|d Jooj4 punos) pasodoid anss| buiuueyd

ousiejay Bug

uopBulliiH g7100y9S YBIH Mopesy

auey aloig

05/855 €V210 L

481 6/0d

101S8LI4D.

) i
ableyxg U0Y

S1D231IHDOHYWV
NNITAON

ponasal SIBU Iy PN UNAON @
"suojjedljioads pue sBUIME.P JuBASIB 3UIO [|e UjiM LoNouNiucd Ul peal aq o} si Bumesp
SIU L "9iS U0 PBYoRL 8GO} SUOISUBLUIP PUE S[aA [l *AIUO SUOISUSWI PaInBy s

fq panss| ajeq uondussag  *oN
Ar| €e0ueHoz| ‘swoosssep frenodue1] }0d|
swawpuoury

EIU — | T W 00l 93RS
S z 13 0 3

fuepunog uopealidy —— Se—
FUEPUNOG AUSIOUND  ——Sem—
puabe Aiepunog

[ ]

seloN

2
20y
woosgse|)

3
26197
woojssel)

Page 211

0@ Jonpoud 10ex3 “kejiwis o Inojoo
umoJg "sousy Bugsixe sy o} paxyj aq o} Bulussios ybly wg'|
‘aul| sous) sy Buoje Bulussiog Arlodws |




— 001 K
e oSS Buiueld - Jod uonead|3 )sap pesodoid O

w Bujuueld o} penss| 1
< deq i wopgsag pems s

827d*V - ¥Q - XX = ¥A = AON - ¥Z00OAL

[ pe s N T |

€20 udy wpeq onss| palosg WL Bs
@ P 1 uweq

suogene[3 pesodoiq anss| Buuelg
s

UopBulliH g7 [004os YBIH Mopealy

ouey ol

wioy s~ Bupng Buispa

o r L
[ty
wiog - Buppng Busia suooissego Aieiodue - Bugping pasodoid sapieodoid enuspiset - Bupping Bupsig

S1ID31LIHDYV
NNIAON

panssas sty paur InIoN G

001
P g uoijeAa|3 yjnos pasodoid @

3 ] T

‘swowpusuy

B m— s GEVEIECS
s T 0

wio - Bupyng Busng wio3 g~ Bupyng buisp3

swoaisse Aeiodwa - Bupgng pasodasg

212

00} 1
uoiens|3 yse3 pasodoid

B

P

-

wioy - Bupgng Buispa

00} 1 1
uoieAs|3 ypoN pasodolid

!

suoossset eiodwe] - Bupjng pesodoid wio3 - buping Buisi

sopon




a0 2y ® opos

. e B (1)
p——" 1noAe pasodolid

mnl

6up|Ng NP0 BN ££03N X b INokef pasodoig
N

2 oseud fem mopeap
oo

PI uopoRIISUOD B
w0

abeis Jopio 18 NDg| Abareng all4
zWEE - BAJE J0OJ} B0 |

2W 8 W Gy
2 WOo0ISSB|D | WOOISSED

6£5000 Bumesp
905 9589[d SJEIFP UOOUUOD 04

SION UIGesErod [eursy|

52881 S8 15020U - K016 BIES - (100p paleInSUI) S1000

62 9 84 008 S IS2I2U - A219 ON|g - SMOPUIM

S0 V 00 0087 S8 - ASID - SjeipowLRlU} ‘SUWIN|OD

S0V 00 008 S€ - AID - S18LI0D [EUISIX® ‘SUWIN|OD

S0V O} Jo! S8 1S91EaU - ADID) BUIMASO0D - LNIS [ewal

55300 404 S8 1S0IE0U - GUUM - JOOH

S0V

01 10) S 1581E0U = K319 BUMES00D - BI0SE) BHSOUWOD [[EM LIS
6 300J0: 59 1S91E0U = OIYM - (Weeq BuLeA0D) erose lem Buo

581901204 - 15 BU36000 - 1 Buianoo) se1o8e 1om Dot 00} -1 [ 00} -1

SS 3 00 o4 S8 1S8IEBU - BYUM - S M wopog

S0V 01 o1 S8 152183U - ABIS) BUMAS00D) - M [eonion :o_ﬂ“\rm—m ﬂmwg :o_ﬂ“\r@—m F—H.—.-om

S0V 01 Jo: S8 150120 - A0ID BUMOS00D - SlIEM

ewnin | IWIHOS HNOT0D TYNHILXI

+/9pI0 J0 BUI) 1 AYGBFEAE %001S UO 1UBPUBTE BIE (UMOUS
J) S2n1X| [BOUIOB PUE SI00P [ELLBIXS "SMOPUIM 4O LOWSOU 3L |

*a1S U0 BUIPING PaUSILIY [ENIOE BU) WOl
Auen Aew umoys BUIPING 84) *4ns Se pue Auo sesodind sneasnil
10} @I (S)DUNEID DUIAURAWODDE AUE PUE S} 124} 210U B5Eald

[er0idde (01u0D Buppng

DU 15940 81 0119910 5| CUNEIP 4} U0 Unous ABai2s o Ay g|dwex3 [ensiA

“A/N\PIE POBIXP 0} 1080XE NOA J BAUSD By IOk
10BIU00 6528|d “DUILBUIDUBIS BANDSI ABLU ;LL/NYE UBL) 181201 51 |
JBY} J00}j B UO POSOALL! BUIPRO] AUY "2W/NME S| BUIPEO] J0O}; PIBPUBIS.

00} -1 m 00L: L Z
uoljeAnd]3 i1se3j uoljens|3 YiioN

U0Nd1osa UoISneY

PN UGRNeLO 0] PaLL0de1 94 O] SarUETBIISID [y

BUMESD S14) 40 095 10U 00

ruorssyuied

Bl 10wy BuOAUE 0} PEBIAP 10 peOnpoIde: 10 pedoo eq 1ou IS 1|
PRI UGRELO 10 ALBA0I] Bl S| BUIMED SIUL

2202 Pejwr ugeNENOd BUAd0D

L




—

81102 uoissiwqng Bujuued 10d
‘0N GOr UninoN uondiosa uoisinsy uoisinay
4] Butuued Joj panss| 1d
8715 saded 60 uonduosaq AceINS sneis

¥€1d =V =-¥a- 00 - YA - AON - ¥Z00DAL

Jequny ey edk| pre] eunjop  JojeuiBug alolg
IV

€202 |udy -oleq anss| paloly Dpajapuisy  eos
d9  PaN%BYY SO umeiq

Ue|d JUSUBJBISUIBY [EAOWY - 1SOd anss| Buuueld

ousiojay Bug

uopBuiiH g7 |00y9S ybiH mopeajy

auey aloig

05/855 €V210 L

2
S1D23d1IHDYV
NNIAON

poniesal SYBU Iy PSILIT UNIAON @
"suojjeljioads pue sBUIME.P JuBASIS J3UIO [|e UjiM LoNouniuco Ul peal aq o} si Bumerp
SIU L "9}iS U0 PBYoRL 8q O} SUOISUBLUIP PUE S[A8 [y *AIUO SUOISUSWIP PaInBy s

£q panss| aeq uondudseq  *oN
SO[_ezo 061 Sio0ssep KERamel] 10d]
swawpuaury

EIU — | T W 00l 93RS
S z 13 0 3

FUEPUNOG AUSIOUND ——S—
puabe Aiepunog

seloN

Y0079 WHO4 HIXIS

Page 214

Jayuo)
( A1epunoq ) seau ||yul UsRIS
‘panowal Usaq sey Jiun Aelodwa)
8y} aouo pajueld 8q 0} s8]

IV T
eJojpues) eloubepy 850l
( pieAunod ) sau Juswade|dey tosueg
*peAoWal Usag sey Jun Aelodway

a) 80u0 pajueld aq o) s81]



Meadow High School
(Special Needs)

Ambulance Station

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2020 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

Meadow High School

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW,|
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 01895 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale:
3348/APP/2024/74 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:

Minor Page 215

April 2024




Address:

Development:

LBH Ref Nos:

Report of the Head of Development Management and Building Control

FORMER GARAGES SITE REAR OF SULLIVAN CRESCENT HAREFIELD

Variation of Condition 2 (Approved Plans) of planning permission ref.
60653/APP/2022/531, dated 10-03-23 (Erection of no. 4 x two storey terraced
houses and no.2 x two storey semi-detached houses, with associated car
parking and landscaping works) to alter footprint and design of Plot 5 to
accommodate fully accessible dwelling to meet M4(3) technical specification.

60653/APP/2024/295

Page 216



3 [ '€0/d/0ce/drsienc

‘AT “ON ONIMYHA
e—

1202 930 NS

00€:} 8|eas
AN €V © 00€:}

woe wge 0c Sl ol S 0
NV1d 3LIS 03S0Od0¥d é

NOJLJI¥0S3a
RO NATTINS p suspieb
lleussiul uaamjaq ybiy wg-| /o Jaquny g2 mau
LIS SIOVIVO mmhw_nmm 9AOqe SIjj34) WwQ0E Ypm udas Mopuim MIeq UbHY e}, B i q
22 122 G6810 'Xed L1} 0SZ 681 1

vy ajeb pue asudy ybiy wi g ajgeyo0| mau Keq 30 SH1

MN 88N ‘IDAINEXN “FULNIO OIAID '0L/3Z

JOINYIS SHYOM JWWVHOOUd LIV 0} saued paindsqQ S340]s Iq pgs
S3DINY3S SLNIAISTH

juassal)

, , ueAljins ov pue
! j]2q udaub ssaosoe ayqnd 9¢ SON 0} Wwg Jo
$S99Xa Ul aduejsip

SMOpPUIM gjoid 03

paanba se wooJpag 400 Jejueid epp
“ieq [ Seiou UoSheY ey sBupjiew peos yum 1S} wody Aeds G @siel Jo eale
sioned painojod

poppe suwip pue fejds mopui

Salou Aiepunog ‘pappe Bubioes SpieA asnja) Bunsesyuod
120810 UBAIINS € O} SIODUM W0OJPaq 100] 51 :
[ZAN%4 B

8

oy pappE SWIp g pUe § 1old ‘Siuawainba) s suteld| v

ul syjed pue /%u
"pasIAG) Bj0U PaUS | 10|d O} PAPPE WET

0UISQ Ui MU E31E U] sfAeq Bunjied ‘peos

5p's panolL) o) paIsnIpE b 10jd O seate uspieo | € !

w patoaiioo oppayos uonepouioaoy | o
71957 S WoT RO 55205 BUEd SFEEe

€210k | ap

25071

abpa und DD 0} L p ) : Lpue apis pauiquod
Buyupid yos m

vzzoso|

paAowal

sy} Buysixs -
v_uo:m:_ﬁ_xm ,

sInojod Bunsenuod
ul s1oned sjqeswad

217

Buyupid yos

—Irg—r_rl My L] WARHER )
FEpFEECr b e A P

uapigh Jeas
(@]
L
FLlomtt s , 1 uapJeb Jeas

usamjaq ybiy wg'y ejo sequin q

qels Buined pasodoid

soau) pasodoud %

soaJ) Bupsixe

(s

TR
A=

uapaeb Jeal

o

Tt
N

e | FEH uapaeb Jeas
L, B £ 2 pauIp}a1 yso Buysixd

N —

\ - 4-I‘<l
_suapaeb Jeal 0} S99} May Soup ./ o
V' N /?mcme\ figul

pays

/

oy
s

N N
4, uapseb
B uapaeb Jeas | deal

A

o

a
108
[<]

F

uapJaeb Jeas

o
e

W/ =930ld

zW09 = G jold

W6 = ¥ 10ld

WEL =g 10ld

We/l =210ld

zW0ocl = | 10ld

ALINGNY NIQHVO ILVARd

T

R
i

1o
.
e
g
TIT
T
°

uguewisy
i
T

_ 40 T 34

8 A Lt o |

S ~ p’pue | jo1d suspieb Juoly 0} S99} May
[
\ : ﬁ/ Buiapd SpWID} USIMISq
Buibpae gjo1ouod

g
=}
s
=i
F

(B

D4~

slqeidepe epp s|qissod 9
sAeq pJepuess |10} 2|
ONIMAYd

leloL sBulomag e uoapaeb Jeas /

V1D [Wz'88 / QN <t

b

)
s

fio
N

1141

® osnoy Aalois g ‘di ‘g oul e \\ B
8|qIS$800€ JlBydRauM VIO (G801 \ >QQRUU pup uinjal i

® esnoy Aalois 7 ‘di ‘ggoul e .
HO| Ul WG'|, anoqe ,/w_u\_\wxwho—w 916uis Buysixa
N
>

9
i

08

-

AWZ'ZLL = VIO © slawlop Jeal

yym sasnoy Kalojs Z ‘d9 ‘ge soug
o] Ul Wg'L anoge

AWZ'ZLL = VIO @ siowliop Jeal

ypm sasnoy Kalojs Z 'd9 ‘gy soug e

NOLLYGQOWWOODJV 40 31NA3HOS

LIN3OS3IHO NVAITINS

RS
/\\

%/
N

/" uapJeb Jeal

Buppipd asnoy jo juolj I o} squd paddoip

yjpdjoo} dpunp}

T




H | '90/d/0c€/d/ieoc

‘n3y
==

1202 AON
S1v0

9 ANV § LOTd 40 SNV1d d3S0d0odd

noL
IN9 68N ‘QT13I4TUVH

LN3OS3I™O NVAITINS
31IS SIOVHVYO HINYOSH

preen

BT S I

MnL 880 ‘3OQINEXN 'FHLNID OINID ‘01/3Z

30IAY3S SHUOM B INAVHOON TYLIdVO
S30IA¥3S SINIISTY

il

po
212q [sieniuy SBI0U UoIsiAay Y
oS
S10u 19611 3 "RBuUpI023e pasira sueld 'su00ipaq o]
o pappe s 0} 558l 2

waivao| 8

0 sy

vz | ea

HOV3 Ol 3A0VdS
ONDRVd F1avidvav i
'® 3SNOH HOV3 Ol
S30VdS ONDARRVA ¥VI 2

29’88 © VIO
a3ge-dv
91071d

Wg'80lL © VIO
EYG =4

L'y =6 eb
8SNOH 9[qIss80dY - Q39 € -d¥
G 101d
'SVYIYV TV.LOL

05111 9Jeas

| | | ! ' ! |
Sl ol S 0

JINIHOS A3LINISNOD 40
INIdd1004 S3LVIIANI 3NIT d3d

S 107d
NIIHO aIO01E NI
3INIHOS (€)¥IN d3SOdOYd HOOTd
ANNOYO NI 3SYIHONI LNIYdLOOH
_Hj, T iy
9101d ,_/_:::A,. A2
o g ] 7
N HOLVH N33¥9 NI 'IW3HOS
(e)¥IN A3SOdO¥d NI Y0014 ANNO¥O LON
_ ATNO 30074 LS¥I4 NI 3SVYIYONI INI¥dLO0S
|
1
Iy
1]
— i
AT | _/ﬂ_
| Ll

(0L NOILIANOD (£)¥IN 133N OL AIHINDIY IASYIYONI LNIHdLO04 ONIMOHS) Nv1d 4004

S 107d
Jr—
e
sofffcanosao
it
==
9107d .
A
= Lo
sz \
e
zam
- /
)@ Elzamd
§ w0
T e il wo
I~ a1l dano
a1
Hive
R
[ 5 A
e s
e B fa3|
e 2 ||| ' N R
La3m =
kS gz

NV1d 400714 1SdlId

ﬂ_m

sqa
oéo

ez
OMNINZHOLIOMAN

NV1d 40014 ANNOHO

Page 218




120z 93a

ER
fr—

9 ANV G 107ld 40 SNOILVAZ 13 3SOdONd 00¢Z:1 2Ip3s

F f F e
EON mF o— m o

ol
IN9 68N ‘QT13I4TUVH
LN3OS3HO NVAITINS
31IS SIOVHVYO HINYOSH

preen

BT S I

MnL 880 ‘IOQINEXN ‘FHLNID OINID ‘04/3Z

30IAY3S SYHOM JWAVHOON TYLIdVO
S30/A¥3S SINIAISTY

B

21eq [senuy

seoe| e

8

seeie| sa

&

&

|
v s [o]=|<[2

vziose] s

B

S3ONVHO d3S0d0dd ONIMOHS SNOILLVYATTE

(o)}
N
S 107d 9107d 9107d S 1071d 9107d S ._.On_mp
ol inilils @
- b— e —— s — pu— , ”_”
__I_I__ _I_I_ T _
_
..... E- T - ] —
P _
o |
sauj| Arepunoq sauj| Arepunoq _ I_
NIFHO NI NMOHS ISVYIHONI NIFHO NI NMOHS 3SYIHONI NIFHO NI NMOHS 3SVYIHONI NIFHO NI NMOHS 3SVIHONI
SNOILVATTA 71V a3y NI IN3IHOS A3LNISNOD 40 3ANINLNO
NOILVATTE LSYI HLNOS NOILVAT13 "V3d NOILVATT3 LS3IM HLHON NOILVA3T3 LNOHYA

G Jold 03} Adoued |aa}s/s ‘doy sse|b deap 0og1 x Buol pog | Areleudolid

JBAQ SI||2]L WWOOE YIm adua4 Jaquil] pJeod aso|D W’ | :8jes) a|qexo0T ads pue aoua4 uspies)

3eQ Jybr apIS %@ s100Q juoi4

‘saued SHY U0 umoys se |aued pazelb paxly 81ndsgqo daABY 0} SMOPUIA\ paAe|dS uoleAs|3 jJuoid Joojd ISt
wnuiwnly 9dd Aeso yieq:siooq oed/Mopuipg

}lomoLg aoepie s|lepn

S8l uteld ooy

‘31137vd STVIMILVIN




SITE AREA = 1525m?,0.1525ha

50 75 100 125m
|

Scale 1:1250

NOTES: - DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING. The Contractor must verify all dimensions at the site before setting out,
commencing work, or making any shop drawings. Any discrepancies must be reported to the Contract Administrator before proceeding.

[Rev

Date

RESIDENTS SERVICES
CAPITAL PROGRAMME WORKS SERVICE
2E/10, CIVIC CENTRE, UXBRIDGE, MIDDLESEX, UB8 1UW
Tel: 01895 250 111 Fax: 01895 277 224

Revision notes Initials
Project Scale Drawn by
FORMER GARAGE SITE, 1:1250 @ A4 MY
SULLIVAN CRESCENT, HAREFIELD, UB9 6NL [pate Checked by
Description NOV 2021 SV
SITE LOCATION PbgH 220 Drawing No. Rev.
2021/D320/P/01




Notes: Site Address: LONDON BOROUGH
[ ] site boundary Former Garages OF HILLINGDON
For identification purposes only Slte Rear Of Sulllvan Crescent R§|Side-nts ger\{-ices
' anning Section

This copy has been made by or with Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW,|
the authority of the Head of Committee Telephone No.: Uxbridge 01895 250111
Services pursuant to section 47 of the . L . .

Copyright, Designs and Patents Planning Application Ref: Scale:

Act 1988 (the Act). 60653/APP/2024/295 1:1,250

Unless the Act provides a relevant

exception to copyright. Planning Committee: Date:
© Crown copyright and database A | 2024

rights 2020 Ordnance Survey i ri

100019283 Minor Page 221 P




This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 To receive the minutes of the previous meeting
	6 Willowtree Marina - 46463/APP/2023/2279
	7 34, 36, 38 Green Lane - 77897/APP/2023/2663
	8 90 Long Lane - 8905/APP/2023/2419
	9 Meadow High School - 3348/APP/2024/74
	10 Former Garages Site Rear of Sullivan Crescent - 60653/APP/2024/295
	 Plans for the Hillingdon Planning Committee

